ON, dhmdryimmpannhuflmnn-
"Mo‘ Reprane, Sturminster division
anty of Dorser, 55 miles (8.8, W.) from
aftesbury. The population is returned with the parish.
Th Jisd elted to St. Mary. Farringdon, an-
mw is mentioned in the Inquisitio Gheldi,
‘a8 giving name to a hundred, which in after times was
transferred to Redlane. There is a medicinal spring
& hﬂte ‘neighbourhood.
| FARRINGDON (GREAT), a parish comprising
t.he market town of Farringdon, the chapelry of Little
Coxwell, and the tything of Hospital, in the hundred of
Farrinepon, and the tything of Wadley, or Littleworth
with. Thrapp, in the hundred of SmriveENHAM, county
of Berks, and containing 2784 imh#abitants, of which
number, 2271 are in the town of Farringdon, 35 miles
(W.N.W.) from Reading, and 68 (W. by N.) from Lon-
~don. Here the Saxon kings had a palace, in which
 Edward the Elder expired. The town acquired some
celebrity during the war between the Empress Maud
‘and n, from a castle erected by Robert, Earl
“wof Gloucester, which he defended for the empress with
'ﬂhtmgmnhed bravery, until want of sprovisions com-
him to surrender, on which Stephen levelled it
ith the ground. In 1203, the site was granted by
“ John, for the erection of an abbey for monks
- Cistercian order, which subsequently became a
(othe ‘monastery of Beaulieu, in Hampshire; and
‘a charter for a market was obtained by the
Beaulien, During the civil commotions in the
Mu 1., Farringdon house was garrisoned for
, and a large body of the parliamentary forces
arepulse before it a short time prior to the re-
nof Oxford. It was one of the last places which
ered, and it is worthy of remark, that Sir Robert
; ‘of the house and manor at that
. held a commission under the commonwealth,
nde’ihe assailants,  The property after-
» him, and was retained by his descend-
éﬁ,uﬁq Henry James Pye, Esq.,whowas p
great part of the reign of George . #

Wﬂham Hallet, Esq., some-

Farringdon is a small
ted with oil,

paved,
water from a noted spring

: 1 mmlon, which he had then recently .

y situated in, the fertile
‘more than two miles from -

: Funnwnou, county of Berxs, th
. hundred of Bampton, county of Oxfor

e Y
¥

PAR

‘mh‘?& Mhocg’be'awh’ fﬁdm" ?agr
are s tere
qumﬁtiel mn:lsebhouse, stan ‘°}d

ding in
~of the town, is a compact building enclosed ﬂ?’

rails ; the upper part is used for the town.hall, hi%h
all pnbhc iness is trapsacted. The local aﬂali's of
the town are managed by a_bailiff, who, with
the constables, is appointed at the manorial court :
and the county magistrates hold petty sessions for
the division every alternate Tuesday, or as oo
re(} ire, at the town-hall. The living isa vw
it was formerly a prebend in Salisbury Cithedral,
is now a lay fee in the peculiar Jurisdiction and patron-
age of the Lord of the Manor, rated in the king's books
at £14. 1. 3. The church, dedicated to All Saints,
is a spacious cruciform edifice in the earliest style
of English architecture: a plain square tower rises
from the intersection, and was formerly surmounted
by a spire, which was partly thrown down during
the siege of Farringdon house; the lower part only
is remaining, and rises but little above the roof of the
church. In the interior are some ancient monuments,
especially one to the memory of Sir Henry Unton, K. G.,
ambassador to France in the reign of Elizabeth, and
who challenged the Duke of Guise for s disre-
spectfully of that queen. At Little Coxwell, in this pa-
rish, is a chapel of ease. There is a place of worship for
Baptists. The National school, which was erected in
1825, at a short distance from the town, on the road to
Wantage, is a neat stone building ; it was intended to
accommodate two hundred boys, and is supported chiefly
by voluntary contributions. There is likewise a school
for female infants, conducted on the Lancasterian sys-
tem ; and various benefactions have beer. made for the
purpose of apprenticing poor boys. In the immediate
vicinity of the town is Farringdon hill, rising gradually
from the vale, and surmounted by a small grove, which
is visible as a land-mark at a great distance: it com-
mands a fine view of the rich vale, and of parts of the
counties of Oxford, Gloucester, and Wilts. Within the
parish, about two miles northward, is Radcot bridge, an
ancient structure, near which a battle was fought in the
reign of Richard IL, between the insurgent barons and
Robert de Vere, Marqms of Dublin, the king's favourite,
who was defeated, and compelled to swim across the
es in order to effect his escape. Near the town
the remains of an ancient causeway, supposed by
writers to be of Roman origin, ll:utlgy oﬂletsb,.:::’
with more probability, assigned to the Norman
Robert D' gyley, who is believed to have coattrddﬁl it
so” after the Conquest.
RINGDON (LITTLE), a cha ;
e parish of LANGrorD which is the

J‘ﬁﬁ .
+Lechlade, containing ;401‘nhab""" cha

‘ culi sdi
af i c:hi‘&:‘.:, %s
GTON,

ATt

5
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FARRINGTON-GURNEY, a ck
of Cunmo:iMlglumr, ™ ﬁnm,
SomersET, 84 miles (N. E. by N.

526 inhabitants. The chapel i u)_v
Baptist. Thaexsaplmofmuhip n Me-
thodists. The adjunct to the name is derived from the
Gournays, its ancient possessors, of whom Sir Thomas
de was con ‘in the murder of Edward II,
at Berkcley castle, for which his estates were confiscated,

Farrington. has since been annexed to the duchy of
aﬁw{aﬂ A coal mine is wrought here,

FARSLEY, a township in the parish of CALVERLEY,

of Mou.r.v, West riding of the county of
Yonl, miles (E.N.E.) from Bradford, containing, with
the township of Calverley, 2605 inhabitants. There is
a place of worship for Baptists.

FARTHINGHOE, a parish in the hundred of King's
SurToN, county of NorTHAMPTON, 3§ miles (N.W.byW.)
from Brackley, containing 476 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£16. The Earl of Wilton was patron in 1794. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael. Captain Philip
Thicknesse, a noted tourist and miscellaneous writer,
was born here in 1719.

1 FARTHINGSTONE, a parish in the hundred of
- Fawsrey, county of NomrrHAmrron, 7 miles (N.W.)
from Towcester, containing 265 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
| diocese of Peterborough rated in the king's books at
| , and in the patronage of the Bishop of
. Lincoln. e church is, dedicated to St. Mary. On
~ the brow of a hill is an ancient intrenchment with a
lofty mount, called Castle Dykes, much obscured
with woods, and intersected from east to west by a large
ditch : in ing among the ruins, a vaulted room was
discovered, with another beneath it. On the declivity
‘of a conti hill is an area of an irregular form, called
the Castle Yard, with trenches on all sides except the
south-west, at the bottom of which ‘are huge heaps of
cinders, earth, and pebbles.
ih FARWAY a parish in the hundred of CovryroON,
of Devon, 3 miles (8. by E.) from Homton,
faining 346 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
deaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated jn the
kmgjn’booknt £15. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the
hu. I, P;:t. 'ﬂae church dedicated to St. Michael,
some piers an othu'poruommtheN
,dwo was endowed 1795, by m
Atkinson, with the divtM of oeqthinltock,.pmdm
about £7. 10. per annum, SR
 FAL a joint wvmh!pvﬁtbm&?h;,hw ris|

@%éi Yohu the
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kettown,nnd ish, ha

',éru'a'

jurisdi

separate cally \§
i hundred of Faver-

in the
sham, lathe of Scray, coun-” RNl
ty of Kent, containing 4208 3 &
inhabitants,of which nimber,
3919 are in the town of Fa- g
versham, 9 miles (W.) from "
Canterbury, 18 (E.N.E.) from
Maidstone, and 47 (E.) fro . Ams,
London, on the road to Dovor., This town is of.w
antiquity, having been inhabited by the Britons prior to
the Roman invasion. Tt was held in royal demesne in
811, and is called, in a charter granted by Kenulf, King
of Mercm, “The king's little town of Febnnhm." In 930,
King Athelstan held a council here, “ to enact laws, md
devise methods for their future obiservance,” It is re-
turned in Domesday-book as heing held xwmm the
Congqueror, by the name of Favreshant ; and he is said to
have given the advgwao the abbey of St. Augustine,
in Canterbury, and anor to one of his favourite
Normans, as a rewar for his services. In 1147, a cele-
brated abbey for twelve Cluniac monks was founded
here by Stephen, who, with Matilda, his consort, and
his eldest son, Eustace, Earl of Boulogne, were interred
within its walls, as were also several other person;
of renown. The town has obtained peculiar privilege
and numerous charters from various kings. |
states that the endowments and privileges grant
Stephen were confirmed by successive sovereigni
that the abbots sat in thirteen several parli
the reigns of Edward I. and Edward II., b
account of their reduced state and poverty, th
to do so after the eighteenth year of the latter
reign. It appears that an acrimonious fi Mg.
isted for a considerable length of time between t
monks and the people of Faversham, who endured -
reluctance the imposts and exactions of the former.
‘Among these grievances were claims, by way of compo-
sition, for allowing the mhabitantq to send their |

to , for exposing their wares to s&le in
market, for the liberty of brewinﬁ. &c. 3 An which
matters continued till the time of

monastery shared the fate of the otlwr
At that period its clear revenue wa
6886.12.6}.,butthefuﬂnnu;l ~




- water. Ma.nyoftbe hmlle
ome, and there are an assembly-room,
md a public subscription library. Faversham
st shed_for its manufacture of

which i d to have been established
ithe reign of Eliza but restricted to

uals. till 1760, when government con-

m‘vﬁh due regard to additional secu-
ver , in 1767, l. re containing twenty-
of gunpowder blew up, and considerably

five
damaged the town: a fnuch more disastrous occur-
rence took place on the 17¢th of April, 1781, through
he explosion of seven thousand pounds of gunpowder,
y which the corning-mill and d,\i;ﬂ,?honse were blown
to atoms, the workmen killed, and the buildings in
Fayersham and ington. either' wholly or partially
unroofed, and otherwise greatly damaged; so tremen-
dous was the report that it was heard at the distance of
twenty miles. Government granted pecuniary aid for
the relief of the suffering inbhabitents, and an act was
mued for the greater safety of gurpowder-works, one of
ie provisions of which was the removal of (e stores
into the marsh, a considerable distance below the town.
During the late war, the quantity of powder annually
manufactured here was twelve or thirteen thousand
affording employment to nearly four hundred
~ Since the peace of 1815, the Crown has dis-
 the works near the town, but retained the more
orks ; the former have become the property
manufacturer, who conducts the business
scale, Faversham is nevertheless a
, le traffic, as more than forty thou-
d quarters of corn, besides a considerable quantity
s, fruit, wool, and other articles of merchandise,
ped every year for London: there is also a
for Roman cement, and ship-building is
n to a small extent.
t in the reign of Elizabeth had eighteen ves-
five to forty-five tons' burden. quay
and, under the appellation of Thorn, has
se, and in its stead three new quays,
e been constructed close to the town. The
river has been much improved of late ;
hundred tons' burden cen generally
T}wﬁfwlththe tides, and the channel

o

mfm ﬁ‘hﬁ,"men';md,vfrqg dredg

dred of Faversham, as tenants of the
manor, are under his jurisdiction and protection, and
he appoints a steward, who holds two courts annally
called Admiralty Courts, or Water Courts, at which

regulations for the benefit of the fishery are made, To
be a f_ree' dredger, it is necessary to have served a
seven year's apprenticeship to a freeman, and alse to be a
married man. The right of this fishery was originally an
appurtenance to the manor of Milton, but was detached
from it by King John, who conferred it upon Faygr-
sham abbey, together with the property in the grounds.
The markets are on Wednesday aid Saturday, besides
which there is a cattle market monthly, and an annual
fair on Michaelmas-day.

; Reverse.
From an early period this town has been a mem-
ber of the port of Dovor, as one of the cinque-ports,
and this connexion may probably account for many
of the privileges it has obtained. The oldest charter
now extant is that of the 36th of Henry IIL, in which
its freemen are styled “Barons; " cther charters of
confirmation, with extended privileges, have been given
by subsequent monarchs, and that under which it is now
governed was granted in the 37th of Henry VIIL, by
which the government is vested in twelve jurats, of whom
one is annually chosen mayor, twenty-four common coun-
cil-men, assisted by a town clerk, two chamberlains,
two serjeants at mace, and other officers. The mayor
is chosen annually on the 30th of September; the
jurats are chosen by the mayor and the greater
of their own body; and one half of the common
council-men are elected by the mayor and jurats, the
other half by the common council; the twelve jurats
are justices of the peace. A company of mercers was
established by a by-law of the corporation in 1616, con-
sisting of a master, two wardens, and eight assistants,
who have the power of admitting persons to the free-
dom of the company, of which the mayor is always
master, and two of the jurats are chosen wardens s ;
the town clerk is the clerk of the company, The
freedom of the town is obtained by servitude and b

archase, the fee of which is £10; ‘and every son o
it iy R e 11§ T
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l“ﬁmnmmlthe 18th of Elizabeth, when a

ter of Canterbury. The church, dedicated
y, Was ded prior to the Conquest, and
liam the Conqueror to the abbey of St.
: Canterbury. The present edifice is a
eruciform structure of fiint, partly in the de-
d partly in the later style of English arc
vnth a light tower at the west end, crowne
‘ mmwclea, and surmounted by-an octagonal spire,
ity-three feet high, The interior of the west end
_’rehmlt in 1755, from a design by the late George
wce, Ksq., at an expense of ahout £2500, raised
partly by assessments on the inhabitants, and partly by
a domtxon from the corporation ; but the tower and
spire are of more recent erection. At the west end
of the south aisle is a large room, now used as a
school-room, and beneath this is a crypt, or chapel,
divided in the centre by three round pillars sustain-
lng pointed arches. The monuments  are nume-
but not particularly interesting, = There are
placea of worship for Baptists, Independents, and Wes-
leyan Methodists. The grammar school, situated on the
north side of the church-yard, was founded by Dr, Cole,
.of Kent, and Warden of All Souls’ College,
in the 15th of Henry VIIL, who bequeathed to
.and cogvent of Faversham divers lands in the
g urhood, for l:e school, mdwhkh ‘ the novices of
“the abbey were to instructed in. grammar ;" but at
the dissolution the lands became yested in the crown,

s obtained for re-founding it; the mayor,

comptnted governors, with a common seal,
ibythewarden. or . sub-wardén,

tiuir nomimtmn, the Archbis

ty of Faversham, with their. succes-

ws of All Souls’ Colhge Oxford, and .
of . Cﬂlrf‘,

»couneyof Otroan,umﬂu (mw

born here lm 1595 rthiti
Marsh, Bishop of Peterborough
title of baron to the family -
FAVINLEY, otherwise F. .
in that part of the parish of URN W i
the north-castern division of mgm wd, ‘county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 13 miles (W. by .')' W
containing 16 inhabitants. = ik
FAWCET-FOREST, a towmlup pm%y in the
of Orron, East ward, partly in that of Smap;
ward, but chiefly in that part of the parigh of w
which i is in Kunparn ward, county of Wmm:unn,ﬂ»
miles (N.N.E.) from Kendal, containing 54 inhlhim
This wild and extensive district was anciently called
Fauside, and belonged to Byland abbey, Yo&lhim SEIR
FAWDINTON, a township. in that part of f
parish of Cunpary which is in the wapentake of -
vortH, North riding of the county of Yorx, 53 miles
(N. E. by N.) from Boroughbridge, conwning ISI ‘inha-
bitants. AT
FAWDON, a townelnp in that part Of t-he of
Gosrorra which is in the western division of CasTun.
ward, county of NORTRUMBERLAND, 4 miles (H.N.IJ%
from Newcastle upon Tyne, contatmng 747 i
In 1801, there were only twenty-six mhtbimm,ﬂ
increase being caused by the establishment of extensive
collieries. .
FAWDON, a joint township witah Gllneh
side, in the parish of INGrAM, 0
QUETDALE ward, county of NoRTHUMBER
(8. by E.) from Wooler, mtmmng 80 ix
FAWKHAM, ; hum of
Darrrorn, and i . !
Hoxg, co £
Dartford, mﬁngp,‘ §
rectory, in the uﬁdmnry and dmoeae of
mM m the ' Mh -ﬁ ﬁs' 0‘ ‘&'l
of V. D, Folk, Bsq. and Miss
Th}cwﬁh.‘ﬁomhﬁum is pri
early style o architecture,
- FAWLER, a hamlet in that M .
CuaryBURY Which s in the hundred




of Fo*wnnorl,
Hererorp, 8 miles

nmr,m puilh partly hwhe hmdmd of Ren-
ing the tythings of Brightminstone and
MM efly in that part of the hundred of Bisuor's
Warraam which is in the New Forest (East) division
d"ﬂu county of SouTHAMPTON, 6 miles (8.8, E.) from
ton, containing 1684 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in thn iar jurisdiction of the incumbent,
. rated in the king's books at £34. 13, 6}, and in the
of the Bishop of Winchester. The church
. is dedicated to All Saints; in the windows are some
~_curious specimens of pamt/ed glass. At Exbury, in this
_‘g‘l&;hu chapel of ease. There is a place of worship
Methodists. The parish is bounded on the
east lly the Southampton water.
FAWNS, a township in the parish of Kirkwazrrp-
_INGTON, north-eastern division of TINDALE ward, county
of NorTHUMBERLAND, 134 miles (W.) from Morpeth,
containing 8 inhabitants, It consists only of a single
farm, anciently called Le Fawings.
FAWSLEY a parish in the hundred of FawsLEy,
;uﬁnv ‘of Nonrsmmn 5 miles (8. by W.) from
Ve 22 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
< mry of Northampton, and dio-
Jeterborough, rated in the king's books at
. Kni, , Bart, was patron in 1819,
‘dedicated to St. mﬂ contains several fine
the Knightley family, lords of this manor
e of Henry IIL; énd at whose mansion,
park, the parliamentafin party came to their
luﬂenl e hreaking out of the
weekly ‘market was formerly held on
" Dr. John Wilkins, a celebrated divine and
, was born here in 1614.
] in that part of the parish
‘whicmuwithin the liberty of Sm.
X, Jocally in the Hunsley-Beacon
of Harthill, East riding of
;m ‘)’-hnlbl (8.W.) from South Cave,
‘inhabitants.

snehpdvmthepm-hofhumu,

Y, county of NorRTHAMPTON, 6

whhhambermmmthetowuhi,po!!"

grant, and in
tranage of Sir Robert Peel, Bart., whose late
about the year 1810, erected and liberally endowed
chapel, which has since received an addition of onehun-
dred and twenty free sittings, the Incorporated Society
for the enlargement of churches and chapels having
granted £60 towards defraying the expense, There is a°
place of worship for Wuleyan Methodists; also a Na-
tional school, well supported. The Roman road Wat..
ling-street, the Birmingham and Fazely canal, and tﬁﬁ'
Coventry canal, pass through the chapelry, which
abounds with coal and stone. There are extensive
printing and bleaching-works, and some woollen, nail,
and edge-tool manufactories. A court leet is held once
nl:e three ygu;d tlac:re are fairs for cattle, on March 21st,
the second Mon ysinJamm-yFebmaryA 1,
tember, and December; the third Mondayspxrxix Js\;g,
August, and November; the last Mondays in May and
June, and the first Monday after Old Michaelmas-day.

FEARBY, a township in the parish of MAsmam,
eastern dwion of the wapentake of Hane, North
riding of the county of Yonx, 2 miles (E.) from Muham;
containing 214 inhabitants.

FEARNHEAD, a joint township with Poulton, in
the parish of Wannma'ron, hundred of West Dersy,
county palatine of LancasTer, 2} miles (N.E.) from
Warrington, containing 631 inhabitants,

FEATHERSTON, a township in the parish of Havr-
WHISTLE, western division of TinpALe werd, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 3% miles (8. W.) from Haltwhistle,
containing 289 inhabitants. Featherston castle, which
has been recently repaired and enlarged by its present
noble owner, was from an early period the seat of the '
Featherstonehaugh family, one of whom, Timothy, rais-
ed a troop of horse for the king during the civil war,and
was knighted under the royal banner; but having been’
taken prisoner at the battle of Woroester in 1651, he
was beheaded, and his estate loldbyparllament tothe‘
Earl of Carlisle. ‘

+ FEATHERSTONE, a chapelry in that pu'rnﬁthe

sh of WoLversamMprrON which is in the eastern

vision of the hundred of CuTTLESTONE, county of
Srarrorp, containing 49 inhabitants, : g

FEATHERSTONE a parish com: ming the m i
ships of Ackton and Whitwood, in the lower division of
the wapentake of AcBrice, and the townships of Fea-
theutom and Peerston-Jaglin, in the upper divﬁim_

m ntake of Oscorpcross, West riding oﬁ ‘
York, and containing 945 inhabita

s A




tothoceeducatedatthe
0 ve.' 'This place gave name to an

md as long been noted for the manu-
“and fish hooks. ~There are fairs for

m Oc ber when a constable is chosen. John
n, an eminent Roman Catholic divine, and
1€ Tast abbot of Westminster, was born here ; he held
sputations with Cranmer, Ridley, and Lntlmer, but per-
kind oﬂices for many others of the persecuted

FEERING a'parish in the Witham division of the
~ hundred of LExpEN, county of Esskx, 1§ mile (N.N.E.)
. from Kelvedon, cmminﬁng 615 inthabitants. The living
T discharged viearage, in the archdeaconry of Col-
R and diocese of London, rated in the king's
: ;*books at £11, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
London. The church is dedicated to All Saints. The
parish is separated from Kelvedon by the river Pont, or
Blackwater, over which there is a light and elegant bridge.
I’ELBRIGG a parish in the northern division of
dwlimdwa ‘of ErPINGHAM, county of Norrork, 3
‘miiles (5.W.) from Cromer, containing 165 inhabitants,
‘The Tliving is a disc with the rectory of
‘Metton united, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and dio-
MMMeh rated in the king's books at £6. 18.4.,
‘and in the of Rear Mmiral Windham. 'I‘he

uou, West l'i‘ ~of the county
(N.E. hy Na) ﬁmm, comp

of Brierly, Havercroft with Cold
Hiendley, and Shafton, and containing
The living is a vi ,in the arche
of York, rated in the king's books at
in the patronage oftheArchbuhO]Jonpﬂi.
is dedicated to St. Peter.. Prudence Berry, in 1637,
queathed £6 towards the mp;)ort of a s
the parish, in augmentation of whose salary, £10
is paid by Viscount Galway, for teaching pogr
of the township of Havercroft.. )
FELLISCLIFFE, a township in tlw pmsh
Hamestawarre, lower division of the wapentake
CrAro, West riding of the county of YORk,
(W,) from Knaresborough containing ' 382 mkm
This township is within the peculiar e ‘
jurisdiction of the court of the hononr of Kmﬁus
boro s
) FELLSIDE a township in the paxuh of*'W
BAM, western division of CHESTER ward, count;
tine of Duruawm, 54 miles (8. W.) from New
taining 455 inhabitants. = The late Earl of
in 1812, erected a handsome chapei in the
Gibside hall, one of the seats of the famil
FELLY, a hamlet in the parish of AN
ern division of the wapentn.ke of Bro
NorrincHaMm, 8 miles (8. W. g t)o from
taining 71 inhabitants, Rnlph
gave a church and i :
to the monks ofmorWi ]
‘honour




f Surrork, 63 miles (W. by 8.) from
g 389 inhabitants. Thehvmg
!ﬁ the archd of

's books at
R ‘Gould was patron in 1822.
ﬂedicated ‘to St. Peter. There is a fair
: 16th of August, for sheep, lambs, and toys.
FELSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of Hinck-
~ YORD, county of Essex, 4 miles (E.S.E.) from Great
* nmow, containing 1724 inhabitants. The living is a
1 ‘the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese
rated in the king's books at £13. 6. 8., and
onage of the Hon. W. T. L. P. Wellesley. The
dedlcated to the Holy Cross, has lately received
mﬁde of seventy free sittings, the Incorporated So-

ent of churches and chapels having
wﬂﬁsoto)vuds yingtheexpeme,mxtma

superb monument to the memory of Lord Rich, who, in
t&b,ﬁéign"of Elizabeth, founded a free school and an
~almshouse, the former of which has been long supported
the principal families in the county. Sydney
90, gave a rent-charge of £7. 12. per an-
and teaehmg six children, and other

parish hthehundred of SPELTHORNE,
L tx,‘4mﬂu 8.w.) from Hounslow,

. hmg is a discharged
oﬁ , and diocese
‘rated - king's books at £8, endowed with
bmﬁﬁcﬁéh,uﬂd #£200 royal bounty, The
-Mdn'is WW in 1818, The church is

st. 4

) ‘i ‘the hundred of TLVII-
, 7 miles (N.W. by N.) from
“inhabitants. = The living is a

! nbooksltmt endowed with
tromgeoftheBilhnp
St. Margaret.

B} uﬂle-(an.byN)&omHm-
itants. The living is a dis-
hdeaconry mddioee.edlie-

in ﬂw hundred of Tun--

«a,pﬁ‘l&'h ‘the hundred of BroxAsH,

side of Coqw wlnch winds beauzfnlly

parish, and is crossed by a stone bridge of thm
to the westward of the village. On the south
the river there is ameat place of worship for P
terians, . Fairs for cattle, sheep, &c. are held
first Monday in May and the first in November.
barons of Northumberland did homage at F,
Alexander, King of Scotland, which so exasperated
John, that in 1216 he caused the village to be burned.

FELTON, county of SOMERSET. '
CHURCH. '

FELTON (OLD), a joint towns]np with Acton,m
that part of the parish of Frrrox which is in the
eastern division of CoquerpaLe ward, county of Nor-
THUMBERLAND, 8 miles (8.) from Alnwick, oontnimng |
91 inhabitants.’

FELTON (WEST), a pansh in the h\mdred jof &
OswesTrY, county of Savor, 5 miles (S.E. by E,) from =
Oswestry, containing 1035 inhabitants. The living i;
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese
Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's books &
£20. 12.6., and in the patronage of the EarlofCuven
The church is dedicated to St, Michael. The Ellesmere
canal passes the boundary of .this parish. There is a
remarkable well in the township of Woolston, dedicated
to St. Winifred. John Dovaston, Esq., a man of learn-
ing, science, and ingenuity, was born here in 1740, and
died on the 31st of March, 1808 : the limited education
which he received was at* the village school, and  the
varied and extensive abilities which he afterwards dilr
played were self-acquired. The estate, called the Nursery, @4&;
is now in the occupation of his son, J. F. ‘M. Dovaston, ' -
Esqt who has distinguished himself by his poetical at-
tainments, his sportive genius, and lively imagination.

FELTWELL, a parish comprising the consolidated
parishes of St.Mary and St.Nicholas, in the hundred '
of GrimsHOE, county of NorvoLxk, 63 miles (8.) from
Stoke-Ferry, containing 1153 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconryomefolk,md diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £23. 17..34.,
M’inthephomgeoftha(lrmmdthem
of Ely, alternately. There is a place of worship for %

AL 1 Methodists. Aﬁn’fm‘wyl,&&uhddm

’, & hamlet in the pandl of An!

m of ‘Bmmmvnmo:, parts of LiNpse
of meow,ﬂ miles (8. by w.) from Great Gri
is returned with the pw §

o

|
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. The liv harectory in
and diocese of Bxeter, rated ‘in the

's books at £16. 18, 6}., and in the"
Ohelkv J. Rogers, Mr. Wolley, and the Northcote
ﬁnﬂy, alternately. The church, dedicated to St. An-
" drew, has a very rich wooden screen. The villages
of Colestock and Corscombe are in this parish. Feni-

n bridge was the sceme of a sanguinary contest, in
ich' Sir J. Russell and Lord Grey defeated the Cornish

insurgents, in the reign of Edward VI.

FENRO!’HER a township in the parish of Hes-
, western division of MorreTE ward, county of

'mvlnnnmun, 5 miles (N.W. by N.) from Morpeth,

# mﬁi\ﬁng 99 inhabitants.

'ANTON, a parish in the hundred of Tose-

n, county of HuntiNGpON, 24 miles (8. by E.) from
St. Ives, containing 776 inhabitants. The living is a

. dinch vicarage with the perpetual curacy of Hilton

‘ , in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese

i ‘meoln ratéd in the king’s booksat £11. 11. 54., and

the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Trinity

fall, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St. Peter
d St. Paul. Joseph Ellis, in 1728, endowed 2 school
with about £10 a year, for teaching four children of
Fen-Stanton, and four of Fen-Drayton. The river Ouse
runs through the parish.

FENTON, a joint township with Faugh, in the
parish of Havron, Eskpare ward, county of CumBER-
LAND, 8 miles (E.) from Carlisle, containing 331 inha-
bitants.

FENTON, a chapelryin the parish of BeckincEAM,
wapentake of Lovepen, parts of KesTeven, county of

"‘ LiNconw, 74 miles (E.S.E. ) from Newark, con
99 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to All Saints.
FENTON, ahamlet in the parish of KerTLETHORPE,
~ wapentake of WELL, parts of Linnsey, county of Lin-
~ coLN, 9% miles (N.W. by W.) from Lincoln, ccmtunmg

198 inhabitants.

' 7 'FENTON, a hamlet in thepmnhofWoo:.zn,
eastern division of GLenpALE ward, county of Norwra-
mtnmnn,ﬂ-mﬂea (N.by w.) from Wooler. The po-

is returned with the parvish. There is a fair

F‘ for cattle, sheep, and horses, on the 27th of September.
© FENTON (KIRK), a parilh partly within the li-

2

“berty of St. Perer of York, East ridlni ch:eﬂy
in the upper division of the wapentake of
Asn, Wut of the county of YORK, ¢
, me \ of , Little Fenton, and Kirk-Fen-
k i« &nhbim of which number,
A “;;G;nin:the Tﬁﬁm?m5W(s.
8. &onx'hdmﬁer lmgod
& , in the jm&i‘:‘w&f atr "of the
’ of Kirk-Fenton in the ‘

Sroxe upon TnN'r, northem divhiunu ‘the b
of PrresILL, county of STArrorD, 2% miles (’D.
Newcastle under Line, The popuhﬂon is
with the parish. L

FENWICK, a township in thepnﬂch of Smmuﬁ
HAM, north-eastern division of TiNpALe ward,
of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 134 miles (N.W. byw) ﬁ'on
Newecastle upon Tyne, containing 76 inhabitants. Fen-
wick tower, which was the seat of the dncient family of
the same name, has long been in ruins; in pulling down
a part of it in 1775, two hundred and twenty-six
nobles of the reigns of Edward IIL, Richard II., andM‘
David II. of Scotland, were found.

FENWICK, a township in the parish of CAm'u:.n,
upper division of the wapentake of OscoLpcross 088, |
riding of the county of Yorxk, 5% miles (8. W')W
Snaith, containing 295 inhabitants, 'There is a plnod'f
worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

FEOCK, a parish in the western divisiog of the
hundred of Powmm, county of CorRNWALL, 5 miles (8,
from Truro, containing 1093 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king’s booksat £11,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Exeter. The
church is dedicated to St. Feock ; it has a low detached
tower at the distance of twenty feet from the mai
building, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan :
thodists. The parish is bounded on the east b;
river, on the west by a creek of deonﬂl ¢
and on the south by Carrick roads.

FERENSBY, atownship in the parish of F 3
lower division of the wapentake of CLARO, W:*
of the county of York, 2% miles (N.E. by N.)
Knaresborough, containing 110 inhabitants. This tow
ship is within the peculiar ecclesiastical dicti
the oourtrof the honour of Knareshorough.

FERNHAM, a hamlet in the parish and }
Sar1vENHAM, county of Brrks, 2% miles
from Great Farringdon, containing 183 inhabitants.

‘FERNILEE, a township in the pmnhd
hundred of Hiem Prax, co of Dlm, con
422 inhabitants. Thomas 1786, b

i

FERRIBY (NORTH), a parish in the-
the town of Kinesron umﬂm,m idi

of Yorg, ‘the t:
e



FERRIB Y(SﬂUTH).npaﬁ&mahe northern dzvi-
" the of YArsorOUGH, parts of Linp-
, county of LiNcowLn, 3} miles (W.by8.) from Bar-
ton upon JHumber, containing 4563 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£12. 17. 6., and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Lingoln, | The church, dedicated to St. Nicholas, is re-
markable as standing north and south. There is a
se of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The Humber

ds the parish on the north.
FERRING, a parishin the hundred of PoLiNg, rape
‘of Allmnn., county of Sussex, 3% miles (W.) from

red vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
shester, rated in the king’s books at £6. 8. 4., and
he patronage of the Prebendary of Ferring in the
Cathedral Church.of Chichester. The church, which is in
‘\ﬁ carly style of English architecture, is dedicated to St.
drew, in honour of whom a chureh, or monastery,
r*wu built here 8o early as the time of Offa, King of
ke Mercia, of which there were some remains in the reign
s ‘* of Edward III, ;
fud MY (EAST), a chapelry in the parish of Scot-
, wapentake

: of CormriNGHAM, of Linbpsey,
L of LincoLy, 74 miles (N. by E.) from Gains-
'3 wdng 151 inhabitants. The chapel is
to St. Mary. There is a place of worship for
Methodists.
RY-BRIDGE, a hamlet in the parish of FErry-
, upper dlvhi'on of the wapentake of OsGoLp-
s, West, ri of the county of York, 21§ miles
from Y The population is returned with
, .. This place derives its importance from its
‘ n on the great north road ; there are some ex-
e hm,mdﬂuhm lreingmerdwellbmlt
ar stone here crosses the nvermtre.ne
Mof this pass was warmly contested by
Mhielwf York and Lancaster, since which period
me skeletons, pieces of armour, and other milita~
, ‘have been often found in the neighbourhood.
phee of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
Y-HILL, a chapelry in the parish of Mzgr-
.xmihmmn division of DarriNegTON Ward,
W 5% miles (E,N.E.) from
; ining 574 inhabitants. The cha-~

mﬂn: aecond- :

hlmdmd of Comonn county of Sur

(W.) from Leatherhead, containing 377% ¢
The hvmq is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surr
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's b
at £21. 10. 5 The Rev. J. G. Bolland was patron_
1818.  The' church is an ancient structure . of flints;
pebbles, chalk, and Roman tile, and, though now smaﬂ,
appears to have been formerly large and cruciform. .
bones of about twenty human bodies, a small pi
some knife blades, were found near this spot in 1 58.;
and on the top of the hill other bones have been dis-
covered, supposed to be the remains of those Saxons
who were killed in the pursuit of the Danes, after the
battle of Ockley, in 851, which seems to be counte-
nanced by the name of Standard hill having been glven
to a neighbouring eminence.

FEWCOT, a bamlet in the parish of S'rou—Lm E;
hundred of ProuvemLEY, county of Oxrorp, 4 miles
(N.w.) from Bicester, containing 148 inhabitants. .

FEWSTON, a parish in the lower division of the
wapentake of Craro, West riding of the connty
York, comprising the townships of Blubberhouses,
ton with Norwood, Fewston, Thurcross, and Grest
Timble, and containing 1989 inhabitants, of which
number, 610 are in the township of Fewston, 7 miles
(N. by W.) from Otley. The living is a discharged vi-
carage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the court for the
honour of Knaresborough, rated inthe king's books at
£5, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the pa- A
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to Sti
Mary Magdalene. ‘

FIDDINGTON, a joint tything with Natton, in the = *|
parish of AsacaURCH, lower division of the hundred of %’
TEWKESBURY, county of GLoUCESTER, 3 miles (E.byS.)
from Tewkesbury, containing 166 inhabitants. .

FIDDINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Can-
NINGTON, county of SomErser, 7% miles (W.N.W.) ;
from Bridg-water, containing 185 inhabitants.  The .
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of =~
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the 3
king’s books at £ 6. 10. 24., and in the patronage of the
Rev. H. W. Rawlins. The church is dedicated to St..
Martin, i

FIELD, a township in the parish of Leicm, south- W
ern division of the hundred of Tormonsrow, county &
Sruvonn, 44} miles (W.) from Uttoxeter, contumng 73 &

FIELD-DALLING aparish in the n dmm '
of the hundred of GREENHOE, county mmu, 5%
miles (E. by N.) from Little Wnlsu_xghnm containing’

822 inhabitants. The living is a nmu%

in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated

the king's books at £5. 8. 1}., and endowed with £400 *
royal bounty. Mrs. Smith was patroness in 1811.
el in dudicated o bhndrews +Mistud e fiessoiye, 1
hmﬂwdﬂnmﬂe;mdhmamguam

i

g;
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) division of
nﬂu(mw. by W.) from Blandford.
95 inhabitants. The living is a
| mth that of Bellchalwell, in the
mmyrdx reet, and diocese of Bristol, rated
3 ‘s books at £5.1. 5;"andinthe pa-
&l’w mvers The' church is dedicated to All

[ELD, a pansh in the hundred of- Cxum.me-
, county of Oxrorp, 44 miles (N. by W.) from Bur-
_containing 136 inhabitants, The living is a per-
} y, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Chan-
r of the Cathedral Church of Salisbury, endowed with
‘per annum and £200 private benefaction, £600
| bounty, and £ 300 parliamentary grant, and in the

of the Hon. and Rev. Hugh Percy. The

1 is dedicated to St.John the Baptist. The river

ode skirts part of the parish. Jane Bray, in 1715,

a rent-charge of £4. 10. a year for tcachxng poor
dren.

'FIFIELD, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
BexsineTon which is in the hundred of DorcnEsTER,
county of Oxrorn, 3 miles (N.E) from Wallingford,
containing only 2 inhabitants,

- FIFIELD-BAVANT, a parish in the hundred of
Cravx, county of Wivrs, 6 miles (8. W.) from Wilton,
oontammg 42 inhabitants.: The living is a 'dmcharged

, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salishury,

*u&eﬂmﬂm kmgs books at £7. 10., and in the patron-

LD.EAN a parigh in'the hundred of AmEs-
BURY, county of WiLts, 4% miles (N.) from Amesbury,
containing 437 inhabitants. The living is a discharged

e .
~ vicarage with a sinecure rectory, in the peculiar juris-

diction and patronage of ‘the Treasurer in the Cathedral -
. Mofmabury mwdinthekmgsbooksatimj;-

The church is dedicated to St. Michael. iy
’ ":‘M*lpﬂhh in the eastern division of thhnﬁ
dred of | , county of NorroLk, 3 miles by

imvm cmhhﬂng 424 inhabitants,
uchdeawnry

of Norfolk, mm‘

fﬂlﬂl‘ﬂi&yﬂ&d in the king's books at
] wwpﬂmn in 1820 @

s (
bltmts. i
Tyrringham, |ﬁ the a
diocese of Lincoln, mad inthe k\ing

FILKINS a hamlet in the p
hundred of Bamrron, county of C
(8. by w.) from Burford, eominingsosiﬁ!mbim
FILLEIGH, a parish in the hundred of B&kvm,'
though locally in the hundred of South Mo
of Drvon, 32 miles (W.N. w.) from South tdlt,
containing 307 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £ 12. 5. 2., and in the
tronage of Earl Fortescue. The church, dedical
St. Paul, was built by Earl Fortescue in 1732. 7T
isa charity school, chiefly supported by the E
Countess, in which about fifty children are e
and clothed. Limestone and a hard stone of a
tinge, used for building, are obtained in the pmsh'
perfect nautili have been found here,
FILLINGHAM, a parish in the western division of
the wapentake of AsLACOE, parts of Lixpsey, county of
Lincorn, 10 miles (N. by W.) from Lincoln, con: i
979 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the a
deaconry of Stow, and diocese of meo]n, ra ;
king's books at #£22, and in the patron
Master and Fellows of Balliol College, Ox]
church is dedicated to St. Andrew. There
for pigs on the Thursday in Easter week and
22d. 1Inthe grounds of | Summer castle, an
edifice built by Sir Cecil Wagsin 1760, are v

,ratedintheklngs'
'-patronageofﬂxecrm ‘The ehurch is de
to St. Mary and All Saints : to the southward ¢
thenﬂmofanandmtcmle,nﬂm




sle;. and' co

ts. Hereare laces of w
f for"lnhpendenta and Wesleyan MMP ists. 1o
north road. through Highgate passes to ﬂa?&m

Sty

the paris chm'ch and it is joined by a new road f
the Prebendary of St. John's Wood, Pnddmgton. A market, forpngs
‘hﬂn Cathedral Chlntqhof Yorki i here every Monday This place is within the j
S OROUGH (GREAT), a parish in the hundred tion of a court of requests for the recovery of - debﬁ

) m:mtyaf SurroLk, 24 miles (W. by 8.) from under 40s., held at Kingsgate-street, Holborn. Tn 1 “&;

W; containing 392 inhabitants. The living Robert Waren gave land at Finchley for cha
is _vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio- uses, which, together with property arising from other
g ch, rated in the king's books at £5. 1. 3., benefactions, was vested in certain trustees, who
b -mﬂwpah'ong.ge of the Bishop of Ely. The church erected an almshouse for six poor persons's the income
| &‘,ﬁ&dﬁdﬁcmw St. Andrew. is about £280 per annum, part of which is applied in
-+ . FINBOROUGH (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred repairing the church and highways, relieving the poory, .
of , county . of SurroLk, 33 miles (8.W. by S.) and other purposes, the sum of £10 per annum
y-Market, . containing 70 inhabitants. = The paid to.a National school, which is further sup,
discharged perpetual curacy, in the archdea- by subscription. F nchley common, stated to contain
Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the . one thousand and ten acres of land now enclosed, is
books at £1, 13, 4., endowed with £ 600 royal situated partly in this parish and partly in ﬂuf of
~ bounty, and in the patronage of the Provost and Fel- Friern-Barnet and Hornsey. On this spot General onk

ﬁ of King's College, Cambridge. The church is de- drew up his army in 1660 ; and here also a detac g
to St. Mo.ry of troops encamped durxng the summer of 1780, wﬁ
,aplrxsh in the hundred of CLACKCLOSE, the riots in London, occasioned by the meeting of the
v of NorroLk, 5 miles (B; N. E.,) from Downham- Protestant Association under Lord George Gordon.

Ly .containing 708 inhabitants. It formerly com- FINDERN, a chapelry in the parish of MickLEOVER,
twe palilhcl ; St. Martin's, a discharged vicarage, hundred of MorLesron and Litcmurcw, county of
el's, a discharged rectory, in the archdea- Dgerny, 5 miles (S.W. by 8.) from Derby, containing
‘and diocese of Norwich, now con- 363 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to All Saints.
ointly in the king's books at £17. 6. 8, There is a place of worship for the Uniterians. The

of the Crown and the Rev. R, Forby. Trent and Mersey canal passes through the cha-

e of worship for Wesleyan pelry. John Allsop, in 1714, bequeathed land and pre- +
‘and toys issheld on mises, now producing £50 a year, for the maintenance
f queaonvAugnst oth. of a schoolmaster, to teach the children of Fmdern,’&
Willington, and Stenson ; there is also a bequest by
John Erpe, of 13s. per annum, applied to the same pur-

pose,.
FINDON, a parish in the hundred of Bricurrorn,
in, booh at £12. 9. 4} The rape of Bunnnn, county of Sussex, 4 miles (W. 8. W.) ﬁ
" patron in 1819 The church from Steyning, containing 477 inhabitants. The living is
VI, granted a charter a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
nnd the two follow- of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £13. 3. 9.,
u into disuse; but at West-court, and in the patronnge of the President and Fellows of,
'harfocmttlebnAprﬂiSrd ; College, Oxford. = The church, dedicated to i
&

h in the hundred of St.John the Baptist, lsmoﬁtlymtheearlyEngluhuyk,

m‘k' (E. by N.) from with an east window of decorated architecture.

Theﬁlggmav;} are fairs on Holy Thursday for pedlary, and on Sq)-
iocese tember 14th for sh - g I

; M EINEDON, otherwise THINGDON, a parish i

'tha hundred of Huxrox, county of . onmAMx,;: ‘

) lmha (N. E. by N.) from Wellmgbamngh,

4 minblbihntn. Thelivmgunw m




chard Engain, Lord of Blatherwike, in ho%‘mur of the
irgin, the revenue of which, at the dissolu-

o tum, was estimated at £62. 16.

FINGALL, a parish in the western division of the

mpentake of Hane, North riding of the county of

;€O the townships of Akebar, Burton-

, and Hang-Hutton, and containing

'398 inhubitants of which number, 126 are in the town-

MOfFingall 5 miles (E.N.E.) from Middleham.

"The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Rich-

. mond, and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books

! 18. 18, 4., and in the patronage of Marmaduke

, Esq. "The church is dedicated to St. Andrew,

FINGEST, a parish in the hundred of DessoroveH,

%ﬁ “county of Bucxmcu.ut, 5% miles (N.w. by W.) from.

G  Marlow, containing 295 inhabitants. The living
i8 a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckmg

“ham, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks

ﬂw £6. 7. 11., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
‘and £ 200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Prebendary of Dultingcot in the Cathedral Church
of Wells, The church, dedicated to St. Bartholomew,

“exhibits some remains of Norman architecture; the
font is circular and enriched with arches. There is a

in land, by the Rev. Francis Edmunds, for teach-
ing and clothing twelve children.

FINGLAND, a township in the parish of Bowngzss,
ward and county of CumBERLAND, 6§ miles (N.) from
Wigton, con 128 inhabitants,

! FINGRINGHOE, a parish in the hundred of Wix-
STREE, county of Essex, 4} miles (8.E. by 8.) from
Colchester, containing 472 inhabitants. The living is a
dilclm'ged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colchester,

‘and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£13.7, Peter Firmin, Esq. was patron in 1826. - The

" church s dedicated to St, Andrew. The river Colne is

navigable on the east, amlGeetoncreekonthemth
il ot gha parish.

. FININGHAM, a parish in thethHAn

W county of SurroLx, 63 miles (W.8.W.) from

Eye, mggssitghubxtants The living is a dis-
| ed rectory, in csm'eluleo,eonryo1 , and
%d{!%rwich, rated in the mat

zm. 10. 5. Hon, J. H. Frere was
b g 'F’hemsh!h pun e v
‘e uttleu\dmysubaldonthe

‘uungndchﬂnngnlhmdmmbuofhuyu was
established by the rector, and MMM
by private contributions, i il
FINSTHWAITE, a parochial chupdry 3
of Cowrron, hundred of LonspAne, north of the
sands, county palatine of LANCASTER, 8% miles (N.E.
by N.) from Ulverstone. The population is returned
with the parish. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £600 private benefaction, and £ 600 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the land-owners. The»
chapel, which is dedicated to St. Peter, was consecrated
and made parochial in 1725. There is a small endow-
ment for a school, the gift of James Dixon,
Finsthwaite is bounded on the north-east by
of Winandermere lake. Ner
FINSTOCK, a hamlet in that part of the : :
CuARLBURY which is in the hundred of Bawsury,
county of Oxrorp, 4% miles (N.) from Witney, con- -
taining 497 inhabitants, ’
FIRBANK, a chapelry in the puinh ot'Kmm- i
LonspALg, LonspALe ward, county of WesrMorrAND, |
104 miles (N.) from Kmkby-Lonsdale, containing 209
.inhabitants. = The living is a perpetual cy, in
archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese nt'
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and
bounty, and in the patronage of the me
Lonsdale. The.chapel and 1
edge of an extensive moor. "
on the west by tha )
Yorkshire.
FIRBECK, -
Perer of YORrK,

curacy, :
York. endowed with a:dl,%o
~peculiar jurisdiction patronage of the
theCathidmiChnrchonork. 'lhchuuh.
toSt.BeterhuludyrewMum
dred and fourteen free sittings, the Incorpora
for the uf ehm-obum ;




mam m wm ammyulhmty
. ‘the of ‘the Rev. Joseph Walls. The
héadiemed to St. Andrew.  Steeping river runs
B /inwhich thereare several good springs
:xﬂmyammthedxmh is ‘chalybeate.
W msav (EAST), a parish in the eastern division
wxnik e of AsLacox, parts of LiNpsEy, county
‘6% ‘miles (W.byS.) from Market-Raisen,
29 inhabitants.  The living is a discharged
muiy; “held by gequestration, in the archdeaconry of
+ = Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
~ 1#6.13:4. The church, dedicated to St. James, has fallen
into ruins'; the parishioners resort to Saxby church.
' FIRSBY (WEST), a township adjoining East Firsby,
ﬁwﬁvm «division of the wapentake of ASLACOE,
of LinpsEy, county of LincoLn, 8% miles (W. by 8.)
m Market-Raisen, containing 34 inhabitants.

+ WFISHBOURN (NEW), a parish in the hundred of
loxtnd StockBRIDGE, rape of CHICHESTER, county of
Sussex, 1§ mile (W.) from Chichester, containing 288
~inhabitants. - The living is a rectory, in the peculiar

‘of the Dean of Chichester, rated in the king's

‘at £5. 10., and' in the patronage of the Crown.
mum dedicated to St. Peter and St. Mary, is in

| «ﬂmully\ le of English architecture; it has lately re-
1 on of forty-six sittings, of which thirty-

: "M*hcbrmd Society for the enlarge-

yan Methodists ; also a_school, endowed with
: ihyéﬂemoflmd(}nwe : ‘
RTO} st

~p&uh of 'St. chuu:t. LicurieLp,

that part dl’g
which is in
northern division of the hundred of Oru.ow,

Srarrorp, 3§ miles (E.) from Lichfield, con Dl
inhabitants. The Birmingham and Fazeley canal crosses
the south-west angle of the township.

FISHLAKE, a parish in the southern division of the
‘wapentake of StrarrorTa and TrckuiLy, West ri
of the county of Yomrk, comprising the chapelry of
Sykehouse, and the township of Fishlake, and contain-

F!S’H'ER’WIUK a townzhip in

ing 1274 inhabitants, of which number, 723 are in the -

township of Fishlake 41 miles (W.) from Thorne. The
living is a vicaragc, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
York, rated in the king's books at £13. 3. 9., endowed
with £400 private benefaction, and £1600 pnrhament-

ary grant, and in ‘the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter of Durham, The church is dedicated to St.

~Cuthbert. The Rev. Richard Rands, in 1641, founded

and endowed a school for the education of children
unlimitedly : ‘the property consists of a school-house
and garden, with cértain lands producing an i

of £102.18, a year: forty children are now ed\u::‘:ge

FISHLEY, a parish in the hundred of WaLsmas,
county of Nomrox.x, 4 of a mile (N.) from Acle, con-
taining, with the parish of Upton, 465 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Norwich, rated in -the king's books at £5.
Robert Dundas, Esq. and others were patrons in 1801,
The church is dedlcnted to St. Mary.

FISHTOFT, a parish in the wapentake of Skir-
BECK, parts of HoLraND, county of LixcoLn, 3 miles
(E,S.E.) from Boston, containing 456 inhabltants The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £19. 6. 8., and in
the patro of Francis Thirkill, Esq, The church is
dedicated to St. Guthlake, The pamh is bounded on the
south by the river Witham. There is an endowed school.

FISHWICK, a township in the parish of PrEsrton,
hundred of Auouxnmnnnu, county palatine of Lan-

‘casTER, 1% mile (E.) from Preston, containing 284 in-

habitants.
FISKERTON, a parish in the wapentake of Lawgess,
parts of LixDsEY, county of LincoLn, 4% mlles (a)
from Lincoln, contmnin(fu 94 inhabitants.
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stow, and dl
Lincoln, rated in the king’s books at £12. 1. 8,
the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Peter
The church, dedicated to St. Clement, is a 4
structure, having portions of Norman ufchitum M
a tower at the west end ; xtwupurtly

i
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Black canons, who had a ¢
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middle division of the wa  of Hbl.unxr.ss, East
riding of the county of Yo ‘11 miles (E. N.E.) from
Kingston upon Hull, containing 119 inhabitants,
FITTLETON, a parish in the hundred of Erstus
and Everiry, county of Wn.'rs, 8} miles (W. by 8.)
from Ludgershall, containing, with the tything of
Hackle.swne, 298 infu.bxtants The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaeonry and diocese of Salisbury, rated in
the king's books at £28, and in the patronage of the
Presxdent and Fellows of Magdalene College, Oxford.
The church is dedicated to All Saints,
. FITTLEWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Bury,
of ArRUNDEL, county of Sussex, 3% miles (S.E.

tbemmod

h of Hvum.mu,

‘by E.) from Petworth, containing 631 inhabitants. The
Jiying is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of

ester, rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 4., and
in the patronage of the Bishop of Chichester. " The
church has portions in the early English and decorated
styles of architecture. The river Kother bounds the
parish on the south, and is there crossed by a bridge.
FITZ, a parish in the hundred of PrmaiLy, county
of Savor, 53 miles (N.W. by N.) from Shrewsbury,
containing 229 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's books at
£5. 5. 10, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. Paul. The river Perry runs
h the parish, which is bounded by the Severn.
FITZHEAD, a parish in the western division of
the hundred of Kinassury, county of Somerser, 2%
miles (E. by N.) from Wiveliscombe, containing 300 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Prebendary of Wiveliscombe in the
Cathedral Church of Wells, endowed with £400 private
benefaction, and £600 royal bounty. The church, de-
dicated to St. Mary, has a tower at the west end.
FIVEHEAD, a parish in the hundred of Aspick
and Buistons, county of Somerser, 5 miles (8. W.
by w.) from Langport, containing 326 inhabitants. The
living is & discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
T@\mton,, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £7. 2. 8., endowed with £200 private
, and £ 200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age pftheDeun and Chapter of Bristol. The church,
dedicated ‘to St. Martin, is a neat bundmg, with an
ﬂthled tower at the west end.
_ FIXBY, a township in the parish ofl:lu.xnx,
pentake of Moumr est ri of the county of Yorxk,
l&‘mﬂu (N. Nw) ﬁ-om Huddersfield, containing 345

FLADBURY a parish in the middle division of
the hundred of Oﬂumm.ow, county of WorcesTER,

h Bradley, Thr
township of Hill w

i)

FLAGG in
hundred of i‘lwn PEAx, coun
from Bakewell, containing 220 mha.bitnqm

FLAMBOROUGH a parish in the wape)
Dickering; East riding of the county of York,
(8. N. E.) from Bridlington, containing 917 inh
The living is a curacy, in the are onry
of the East riding, and diocese of York, enddwed it}
£400 royal bounty, and £1400 parliamentary grai
and in the patronage of the Archbishop of York and
W. Strickland, Bart. alternately. The church is de-
dicated to St. Oswald. There are places of worship ﬂn-
Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists. Some writers ¢
pose this parish to derive its name from the Saxon
Fleam-burg, and assert that Ida, the Saxon, landed at
the Head ; others infer that its appellation originated
from the “flame,” or light, anciently placed on the cliffs,
to direct mariners in the navigation of the German
ocean. Though in ancient times the place was of
some note, the Danes, in their hostile attacks
England, frequently making it one of their prini
stations, it can only at the present time be oonsidm‘ed
as a fishing village. Flamborough Head is a lofty pro-
montory overlooking the village, forming a magnificent
object, and one of the greatest natural curiosities in
the kingdom. The cliffs, which are of limestone rock,
white as snow, extend in a range from five to six milei,
and rise in many places to an elevation of three hun-
dred feet perpendicularly from the sea. At the bue
are several extensive caverns, formed by some mighty
convulsion of nature, or worn by the. action of
water. The scenery is very grand and impos
On the extreme point of the promonﬁry, ut the di
tance eastward of nearly a mile and a half from
village, and at an elevation of about two hun
and fifty feet, a light-house, with revolving points, was
erected in 1806. In the summer season, these cliffs are
the resort of a vast number of aquatic birds, from various
regions, to build their nests and rear their young; boys
are frequently let down the rocks by means of ropes
fastened to stakes, and bring away with them busl
of fox the use of the sugar-house at Hull. S
mtlgu of Danish structures are still visible in
%’ viz., an ancient ruin at the west end, called “t
es’ Tower, and the intrenchments around

minated “ Little Denmark,"
ELAMSTEAD apnﬁnhmthehxmdmdof
county of H.n-rronn, 2% miles (N. w.) ﬁ'oq
containing 1392 inhabitants. The livi
curacy, in the of Hunti
of Lincoln, endowed with 5890 ]



Ver runs, an :
stedt, in allusion to its situation
There is a small sum for the education
1 ~ An almshouse for two widowers and two
vs was founded in 1669, by Thomas Saunders, Esq.,

owed them with a rent-charge of £5. A priory,
i ‘to St. Giles, is stated by Leland to have

1 founded at Woodchurch, in this neighbourhood,

' - de Tony, for a prioress and nuns, the de-
of which, at the dissolution of religious houses,
to the crown, and were granted by Henry VIII.
Richard Page, Knt., to whose mansion Edward V1.,
in his infancy, being in an infirm state of health, was
sent for the {e'neﬁt of a salubrious air.

. FLASBY, a joint township with Winterburn, in the

rish of GARGRAVE, eastern division of the wapen-
take of Staincrirre and Ewcross, West riding of the
county of York, 44 miles (N.W. by N.) from Skipton,
containing 134 inhabitants. A

. FLASHBROOK, a township in the parish of As-
DASTON, northern division of the hundred of PireniLL,
county of STArrorp, containing, with Batchacre, for-
merly deemed extra-parochial, 127 inhabitants.

- FLAT-HOLMES, an island in the parish of Up-
H1LL, hundred of WiNTERSTOKE, county of SomErser,
7 miles (N. W. by W.) from Uphill. The population is
returned with the parish. It is about a mile and a
half in circumference, commanding a delightful prospect
of the Bristol channel. On the iighest point of land
 # light-house, at an elevation of about eighty feet.
UNDEN, a chapelry in the parish of HEmEL-
“hundred of Dacorum, county of Hurr-
es (W.S:W.) from King's Langley, contain-
Bitants, The chapel, dedicated to St. Mary

.hlisequutmd stered v watered by a stream
: %ﬂ L (FLYFORD), county of WORCESTER.—
ee FLYFORD-FLAVEL.

 FLAWBOROUGH, a chapelry partly in the pa-

_of Omston, northern division of the wapentake of
1AM, and partly in the parish of STauNTON, south-
on of the wapentake of Nmwarky eounty of
\m, 8 miles (S.by W.) from Newark. That
_in the parish of Staunton contains 85
id the population of the other paff s

the return for Orston. * v
g %ﬂ.liovnslnp in the parish of Awune,
ﬂb&t{of.;S'r. Perer of York, and partly
‘of Burnmer, North riding of the
- miles (8.W.) from- Easingwould,
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; stands at the distance of about a mile from -

FLE
VELLS, county of Grovcrster, $ miles (N. by E.) from
Newnham, containing 196 inhabitants, ' A&vhi*il
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Hereford,
and diocese of Gloucester. Sir T. Crawley was patron
in 1810. 1In the reign of Stephen, an abbey for Cis-
tercian monks, dedicated to the Blessed V. - was
built here by Roger Fitz-Milo, second earl of Hereford,
the revenue of which at the dissolution amounted to
£112. 13, 1.: the chief part was burnt down in 1777.
There are establishments for smelting iron-ore, and
works which produce weekly twenty tons of pig iron of
excellent quality: the wheels which set in motion the
bellows and hammers are turned by a powerful stream
of water, which falls into the Severn near Newnham.
FLAXTON on the MOOR, atownship partly with-
in the liberty of St. Peter of York. East riding, and
partly in that part of the parish of Bossaiy which
is in the wapentake of BuLmEer, North riding of the
county of York, 9 miles (N.E. by N.) from York. The
population of the former part is returned with the Ii-
berty of St. Peter; the latter contains 299 inhabitants.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
In 1807, a lead box, containing about three hundred
small Saxon silver coins, in high preservation, some
silver rings, and several pieces of spurs, were turned
up by the plough in a field near this place. ‘
FLECKNEY, a parish in the hundred of GARTREE,
county of LEICESTER, 74 miles (N.W. by W.) from Mar-
ket-Harborough, containing 450 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, and in the patronage of Lady
Byron. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas, The
Union canal runs through the eastern part of thi
parish. '
FLEDBOROUGH, a parish in the northern divi-
sion of the wapentake of THURGARTON, county of Nor-
TINGHAM, 53 miles (E. by N.) from Tuxford, containing
75 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the
king’s books at £9. 7. 6., and in the patronage of Earl
Manvers. The church is dedicated to St. Gregory.
FLEET, a parish in the hundred of Ucescomse,
Dorchester division of the county of Dorser, 4 miles
(W. by N.) from Weymouth, containing 132 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's
books at £5. 6. 8., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty. J. Gould, Esq, was
patron in 1802. The church is a small ancient edifice
dedicated to the Holy Trinity. The parish is snpp:g
to take its name from its situation near the Fleet water
A market and fair were granted in the 26th of Henry IIL,
which have been discontinued. : TOTN h e
~ FLEET, a parish in the hundred of ELLOE. parts
of H(i{m.mn, county of ng?::;ﬁig' miles (E. by 8.)
from Holbeach, containing 77’ tants, iy
is a rectory, in the mhdelmﬂf‘viﬁﬁidm of Lincol.
rated in the king’s books at £15. Joseph Dodd mt
was patron in 1807. The church, the steeple of whic
is at some distance from tiltt';:f dicated to St. Mary
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of NORTHUMBERLAND, 6 milea (s.s. by!é from Bd-‘
ford, containing 94 inhabitants.

FLEMPTON, a parish in the h\mdved of Tmuoo:,
county of SurroLk, 4§ miles (N. N.W.) from Bury-St.
Edmund’s, containing 129 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory with the rectory of Hengrave, in the archdea-
conry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £5. The Rev. R, S. Dixon was patron
in 1826. The church is dedicated to St.Catherine. The
navigable river Lark runs on the north of this parish.

FLETCHING, a parish in the hundred of Rusu-
MONDEN, rape of PEVENSEY, county of Sussex, 33 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Uckfield, containing 1690 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in
the ln 's books at £3. 6. 8. The Earl of Sheffield was
ptnbn in 1786. The church is dedicated to St.An .
dréw and St. Mary. A National school has been esta-
blished, and a neat school-house was erected in 1824,
A fair for the sale of pedlary is held here on the Monday
preceding Whit-Sunday. The river Ouse runs through
the parish, and there are several chalybeate springs. A
Roman military way was discovercd some years since

- on St. John's common.
FLETTON, a parish in the hundred of Norman-
. Cross, county of HunTiNGDON, 1 mile (8. by E.) from
| _Peterborough, containing 159 inhabitants. The living is
. a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and dio-
| cese of Lincoln, rated in the kmgs books at £9. 3. 0.
| 'The Earl of Carysfort was patron in 1798. The church
is dedicated to St. Margaret. In digging a well in this
parish, in the year 1739, fossil shells and wood were
found at the depth of thirty feet.
; FLIMBY, a parish in ALLerpALE ward below Dar-
went, co\mtyof CuMBERLAND, 24 miles (8. by W.) from
- containing, exclusively of seamen, 376 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Carlisle, endowed with £600
royal bounty, and £1400 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Landowners. The church, which
was rebuilt in 1794, is dedicated to St. Nicholas. This
parish was anciently a chapelry in the parish of Cam-
merton, from which it was separated in 1545 it lies on
the sea coast, and abounds with coal.
FLINTHAM, a parish in the northern division of

the of BinguaMm, county of NorrinGHAM, 61
mﬂn w from Newark, containing 546 inhabitants,
The li 8. discl::}ed vicarage, in the archdea-
conry of diocese of York, rated in the
king's bookl at £.6 2. 6., endowed with £400 pri-

atebenefuctwn ndi(OOroyalbounty,andmthe
patronage of the "Master and Fellows of Trinity College,
Cambri The church is a spacious edifice dedicated

to St. Aj Therema&heeofwmih!pforWa-
leyunMetodish In 1727,

, the income of which, about £20 per
mum, tppliedfothelnﬂ:mchmdchlldm the
school-house was erected in 1779. Wﬁuvove
-Nwtonhlbyhintkhmhh. ‘Thex , which’
is of dmueuu,ildmdmm-
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The living is a perpetml re
and diocese of Norwich, endwed with
bounty, and £200 par grant, and
patronage of Thomas W, Coke, Esq.: Inﬂlerdgn
Henry I1I. a priory of the order of St.A
founded at this place, as a cell to Wals
by Robert d'Aiguillon, the revenue of which was- ’vll\ipd
at the dissolution at £55. 5. 6.; the walls and offices
remain, Here is a hill with a square area, surrounded
by a trench, where, in the reign of William Rufus, the-
hundred court was held.
FLITTON, a parish in the hundred of Frrrr,
of Bepnrorp, comprising the chapelry of Silsoe, and the
township of Flitton, and containing 1069 inhabitants,
of which number, 501 are in the township of Flitton, 13
mile (W.) from Silsoe. The living is a disc vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of Lin-
coln, rated in the king's books at £11. 7. 8., and in the
patronage of the Dean and Canons of Christ Chur
Oxford. The church, an ancient edifice, dedi
to St. John the Baptist, contains several monuments,
amongst which is a figure in brass of Thomas Hill, who
died in 1601, at the great age of one hundred and twenty-
eight years. Southward from the village, which was
anciently called Flitcham, is Pallox hill, remarkable
in the beginning of the last century for a gold mine
discovered in it, which was seized for the and
leased to a refiner ; the produce, however, being too in-
considerable, it was soon abandoned.
FLITWICK a parish in the hundred of Ren
sTokE, county of Bepror, 2} miles (8. by w.) ron
Ampthill, contumng 489 inhabitants. The liwi‘ng
disch , in the nrchdeaconry of Be
and diocese of meoln rated in the king's bog
£7. 17., endowed with £200 private benefaction
£ 200 royal bounty. The Duke of Bedford was p
in 1820. ' The church is dedicated to St. Poter !
Paul. A monastery, or cell to Dunstable priox
erected here in 1170, by Philip de Sannerville, ‘wz
FLIXBOROUGH, a parish in the northern
the wapentake of ManvLey, parts of Linnsny
meoul, 11 mnlu (N, w. by w.) from Glandford
o of ts, « The living s
the vicarage of upon Stather
archdeaconry of Stow, and diocese of Li
thekmgsbooksltﬁlﬂ. 10.  Sir Robe
was patron.in 1822, The
Saints, The parish, in whhhnm t;
is bounded on the west by the mﬂm
A.nderson, Blrt.
in the




 of W for Wesleyan
‘and Mersey run through

GLAND, county of SurroLk, 3 miles (W. N,

W&‘ﬁm ) t, containing 34 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, united to that of Blun-
deston, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.
' . FLIXTON, a parish in the hundred of WanGrorp,
county of SurroLk, 3 miles (8. W.) from Bungay, con-
taining 209 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vi-
carage, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6. A. Adair,
Esq. was patron in 1820. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary, At this place was an Augustine nunnery,
founded by Mareny, Baroness Creke, in 1258, and valued
at the dissolution at £23 per annum.

FLIXTON, a township in the parish of ForLkron,
wapentake of Dickering, East riding of the county of
Yorx, 6§ miles (8.) from Scarborough, containing 267
inhabitants. An hospital was founded here in the
reign of Athelstan, by one Acchorn, a knight, for an al-
derman and fourteen brethren and sisters, “ to preserve
travellers from wolves and other wild beasts:" it was
restored and confirmed in the 25th of Henry VL, by the
name of Carman’s Spittle, but was dissolved before the
26th of Henry VIII: a farm-house occupies its site.

. FLOCKTON, a chapelry comprising Nether Flockton
and Over Flockton, in the parish of TrorNHILL, lower
division of the wapentake of Aenrica, West riding of
the county of Yomrk, 6} miles (E. by 8.) from Hud-
dersfield, containing 988 inhabitants, The living is a

bery etual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
, and in the patronage of the Rector
rahill. The Independents have here a place of
ip. There is a small sum for the education of
en. The chapelry abounds with coal mines.
JOOKBOROUGH, a chapelry in the parish of
prLy, hundred of LonspaLg, north of the sands,
* palatine of LaNcAsTER, 5% miles (E.S.E.) from
tone. The population is returned with the pa-
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeacon-
\ ‘and diocese of Chester, endowed with
‘benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and

roval

S : t- This place, now
‘was formerly a town.
_parish in the hundred of NosorrLe-
ORTHAMPTON, 74 miles (W.) from
wtaining 861 inhabitants. The livin
the archde: y of Northampton,
pugh, endowed with one-third .of
~hamlet of Glasthorpe, which is

in the king's books at £17, and in
), dedicated to All Saints, has por-
architedture,
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z%d.igioguesof gforii%’ rated. in the king's books at
- 13. 4. Sir W. R. Kemp, Bart, was patron in 1816,
The church is dedicated to St. Michael, - o

FLOTTERTON, a township in the parish of Ror-
BURY, western division of Coquernaue ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 34 miles (W.) from Rothbury,
containing 92 inhabitants,

FLOWTON, a parish in the hundred of BosMERE
and Craypon, county of SurroLk, 53 miles (W.N.W.)
from Ipswich, containing 150 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£3. 9. 94., endowed with £200 royal bounty. H. S,
Thornton, Esq. was patron in 1815. The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary,

FLYFORD-FLAVEL, a parish in the upper division
of the hundred of Persuorg, county of WoRcESTRR,
8% miles (E.byS.) from Worcester, containing 159 in-
habitants, The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch.
d and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 4. 9. Thomas Sheldon, Esq. was patron
in1823. The church is dedicated to St, John the Baptist,

FLYFORD-GRAFTON, a parish in the upper divi-
sion of the hundred of Persuorg,county of Worcas-
TER, 8 miles (E.) from Worcester, containing 241 in-
habitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's books at
£20. 0. 10. The Earl of Coventry was patron in 1797.
The church is dedicated to St.John the Baptist, Here
is an endowed school.

FOBBING, a parish in the hundred of BArsTABLE,
county of Essex, 34 miles (E.) from Horndon on the
Hill, containing 407 inhabitants. The living is a ree-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diccese of Lon-
don, rated in the king's books at £21, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St.
Michael. This parish has Shell-haven and the Thames
on the south, and Holly and East havens on the east.

FOCKERBY, a township in the parish of AbLiNG-
rLEET, lower division of the wapentake of OscorLp-
cross, West riding of the county of York, 10 miles
(8.E.) from Howden, containing 106 inhabitants. Here
is a free school, formerly a grammar school, endowed
with land producing £60 per annum, the gift of Mr.
Skerne: the master is appointed by the Master and
Fellows of Catherine Hall, Cambridge, to which hall
there are eight exhibitions, founded by the same indivi-

“dual, whose niece, Mrs. Mary Ramsden, in 1743, founded

six fellowships and ten scholarships in the snme(,’fprefgr-
ence being given to youths born in the county of York,
and more particularly to such as had been educated in
the free school at Fockerby. x
FOGGATHORPE, a township in the parish of
Buswita, Holme-Beacon division of the wapentake of
Harraisy, East riding of the county of
(N.) from Howden, containing 137 inhabitants,
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
FOLESHILL, a parish in the county of the city of
‘CoveENTRY, 24 miles (N.E. ib{gﬂ.) from Coventry, con-

taining 4937 inhabitants. living is & vic: not
in s , in the archdeaconry of Coy ,m

of Li d and Coventry, and
Crown. . The church is.

'.YOII, miles ,
: “Tl‘
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FOLKE; a parish in the hundred of ﬁituonux,
Sherborne division of the county of Dorser, 33 miles
(8. E. by 8.) from Sherborne, 269 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in ‘the peculiar jurisdiction of
the Dean of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at
£9.12. 34, The Rev. W. Chafin and the Dean and
Chapter of Salisbury were joint patrons in 1777. The
church is dedlcated to St. Lawrence.

FOLKESTONE, a parish
in the hundred of ForLkE-
sTonNg, lathe of SmEPway,
7 county of Kent, comprising
the sea-port and market

town of Folkestone, which
/ has a separate jurisdiction,

- A the hamlet of Ford, and part
Ve of the hamlet of Sandgate,
and containing 4541 inhabi-
Ce O)E© 3 tants, of which number, 3989
(‘orpoﬁw Seal. are in the town of Folke-
stone, 374 miles (E.S.E) from Maidstone, and 71

(E. 8. E.) from London. This place, culled by the
Saxons Fulcestane, and in Domesday-book Fullchesion,
is by some antiquaries supposed to have been a Roman
station, though its particular name has not been as-
certained. A great quantity of Roman coins has been
found here, and on one of the hills in the immediate
vicinity of the town are the remains of a quadrilateral
fortification, of which the vallam and fosse are plainly
discernible. Though supposed to have been a Castra Sta-
tiva of the Romans, it was probably only one of those
forts which that people, in the reign of Theodosius the
Younger, erected at different intervals for the defence
of the southern coast, and of which, or of other similar
fortifications, traces may be observed along the whole
ridge of hills which terminates the plain. Eadbald, the
sixth king of Kent, built a castle here, on the high chﬁ'
close to the sea-shore, which having been reduced to
a heap of ruins by the Danes, and Earl Godwin, when
« he ravaged this coast in 1052, it was rebuilt by William
de Albrincis, or de Averenches, who became lord of
this place after the Norman Conquest, and it continu-
“ed to be the chief seat of the barony till it was de-

stroyed, and also the cliff on which it stood, by the en-

croachments of the sea. King Eadbald, some time after
he had built the castle, founded within its preeincts a
priory for nuns of the Benedictine order, of which his
daughter Eanswithe became first one of the sisters, and
afterwards abbess. This convent having been
during the Danish ravages, a convent for

monks was erected on its site, by Nigel de Mnudevme
lord of Folkestone, in 1095, who e it a cell to the
abhey of Lonley, in Normandy. Not after, the sea
having so far' wasted that of the cliff upon which
it stood as to endanger the , the monks re-
moved to a new lltnation, ] to ‘the south
of the d&rwards
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ed the xnhabmtn by the tithvnf 'thz m r
and commonalty of the town of
year1378the.grenurpm‘tdﬁtm m
united forces of the Scots and French; this ﬁevm
added to the continual encroachments made upon it
the sea, reduced it to a very low and inconsi 2
state, in which it continued until the last century, when,
by the establishment of a fishery, and a lucrative 'tude
with France, it encreased in opulence and' importance ;
and since that time from the salubrity of the air, the
pleasantness of its situation, and the excellence of its
beach, it has become a fashionable and well-fmquenled
place for sea-bathing.

The town is situated on the shore of the Euglish
chanmel, opposite Boulogne, and in a hollow betwden
two cliffs rising precipitously to the height of ninety
feet above the level of the sea, stretching into an ex-
tended and very fertile plain, terminated on the east
by the beautiful bay of East Ware, and extending on
the west for nearly three miles; through small but rich
glens, to Romney Marsh, bemg bounded on the north
by a bold ridge of picturesque hills. The houses, irre-
gularly built of brick, stand chiefly on the acclivities of
the western cliff, on the summit of which is the church ;
the streets are narrow and indifferently paved, ‘and the
inhabitants are supplied with water by two rivulets,
one of which flows through the centre of the town. The
environs are pleasant, and the high grounds command
an extensive view of the French coast. There are hot
and cold baths fitted up with every convenience, and a'
bathing-machine on the beach : the hamlet of
is‘also much frequented as a bathinm Qy E
are fond of retlrement.

7S of the cinque-port ofbmh v{'

R enjoys special privileges: the

(" harbour, which was M,

‘and protected by jetties, was
formerly kept in

a new andmoreupaqiwx ¥ frc
accumuhrgelmon of ghingle, it oi:ld tﬁb!: ~ i fm'
a sum of mone uisite for {
tion of sluices, and o{hzr wﬂiz{m
capable of aff ane’homge for a e
numberof vesieu ‘!’o :



ain, and town-clerk. The. , who is coroner by
pf"" i o ey oA
; or ;. ler Jjurats, who are justices
of t} ’ 'mm@.ha!dlnconﬂofgsion
~¢ourt of record under

once @ year; have also power to hold
' charter of the 20th of
IL, for the recovery of debts to any amount
exceeding 40s., and in which fines of lands are levied,
A new and spacious Guildhall, is now being erected,
with jury-reom and council-chamber adjoining. There
is, a common gaol and house of correction, of which
the Earl of Randor is hereditary gaoler, appointing a
' .. A court of requests is held for the recovery of
debts not exceeding 40s.

The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £700 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The church,
dedicated to St.Mary and St. Eanswith, anciently that
of the priory, is a cruciform structure oi' sand-stone, in
the early style of English architecture, with a tower in
the centre supported by very large piers, from which
spring pointed arches: the western division of the
building has been contracted in its dimensions, part
of (it having been blown down in December, 1705. In
the south aisle is a curious altar-tomb of variegated
marble, with figures of two armed knights. There are
places of worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends,
and Wesleyan Methodists. Dr. William Harvey bequeath-
ed £200 for the benefit of the poor of this town, and
 mephew and executor, Sir Eliab Harvey, in 1674, in
of this , founded a school for twenty
oof children, and endowed it with part of the income
an estafefn the parish of Lympne, from which the
master receives a salary of about £36 per annum: the
- scholars are nominated by the mayor and jurats, who,
with several other trustees, have the management of the
school. About a mile and a half south of the town,
o the summit of a lofty hill, are ancient earthworks,
to have been those of the Roman fortress.
m the town in the same
The most celebrated
\ , born in 1578,
n of the ; and John
and one of the pring
T lbout &e‘ close of the
ne gives ‘the title of viscount

df Radnor
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:,nt;l :‘lgcece 1;: Il‘n;nct#n, wfated in the king's books at
&8, 0. 3. The Rev. W, Wilkinson was patron in 1820.
The church is dedicated to St. Helen, 930

FOLKTON, a parish in the wapentake of Dicker -
NG, East riding of the county of Yorxk, comprising the
townships of Flixton and Folkton, and containing 411
inhabitants, of which number, 144 are in the town-
ship of Folkton, 6 miles (8. by E.) from Scarborough:
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeacon-
ry of the East riding, and diocese of York, rated in the
king's books at £8. 11. 104., endowed with €200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bounty : there is also
a sinecure rectory, rated at £15. H. Osbaldeston, Esq.
was patron in 1817. The church is dedicated to St.
John the Evangelist,

FOLLYFOOT, a township in the parish of Seor-
FORTH, upper division of the wapentake of Craro, West
riding of the county of Yomrxk, 5 miles (N.W. by w.)
from Wetherby, containing 293 inhabitants. There is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

FONTHILL (BISHOP'S), a parish in the hundred
of DownToN, locally in the hundred of Mere, county of
Wiwrrs, 1§ mile (E. by N.) from Hindon, containing 228
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books
at £10, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Win-
chester. The church, dedicated to All Saints, is princi-
pally in the early style of English architecture,

FONTHILL (GIFFORD), a parish in the hundred
of DunworTH, county of WiLrs, 1§ mile (S.E.) from
Hindon, containing 471 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £13. 10., and in the patron-
age of the Executors of the late Mr, Farquhar. The
church is dedicated to St. Nicholas. In this parish was
the magnificent mansion belonging to William Beckford,
Esq., called Fonthill Abbey.

FONTMELL (MAGNA), a parish in that part of
the hundred of Sixpenny-Hanprey which is in the
Shaston (West) division of the county of Dorser, 4%
miles (8.) from Shaftesbury, containing, with the ty-
thing of Hartgrove, 733 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage with the curacy of West Orchard, in the arch-
deaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the
king's books at £7. 10.: the prebend, or rectory, to
which the vicarage is united, is rated at £18. Mrs.
Salkeld was patroness in 1819. The church, dedicated
to St. Andrew, is chiefly in the later English style, There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

OLOW, a township in the parish of Eyam, hun-
dred of Hign Prak, county of Dersy, 2§ miles (E, by
N.) from Tidswell, containing 298 inhabitants. There is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

FOOTHOG, a township in that part of the parish of
Cwwyoy which is in the hundred of Ewyasracy, county
of HerErorp, 10 miles (N.N.W.) from Abergaveany,

taining 87 inhabitants. : L
 FORCETT, a parish in the western division of the
wapentake of GiLLiNg, North riding thswz:f
le,? comprisi 31:0 tomhi%l;ﬂfﬁlﬂou:i, ar-

orcett, ; h'lsm, an mm Mg n=
:’.‘&m. of which number, 86 are in the township
of Hooonty & miles (N. bvla f:‘?w%
hmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £400
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voyal bounty, and amommudin about Easter, for
the pa ' of the Vicar of Gilling, The church, de- the steward of the
dicated Cuthbu-thnwmt\m. There are this parish, was

aelndnp of a Roman intrenchment in the pnmh

'FORD, a hamlet in that part of the parish of Din-
roN which is in the hundred of AyrLessury, county
of Bucmz«mut, 4 miles (8.8.W.) from Ayleshury.
The population is returned with the parish. Here was
formerly a chapel.

FORD, a joint tawns)np with Bidstone, in the

parish of Bipsrong, lower division of the hundred of
WIRRALL, county palatme of Cuester, 8% miles (N.)
from Great Neston, contaxmng 257 inhabitants.
- FORD, a hamlet in the parish of Norte WinG-
vieLD, hundred of ScarspaLE, county of Dersy. The
population is returned with the parish. The celebrat-
ed non conformist divine, William Bagshaw, called the
Apostle of the Peak, was a native of this place,

FORD, a chapelry in the parish of Bisuop-WEAR-
movuTH, northern division of EasiNneTon ward, county
palatine of Durmam, 3% miles (W.) from Sunderland,
comprising the villages of High and Low ¥ord, and
containing 791 inhabitants.  The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, and
in the patronage of the Rector of Bishop-Wearmouth.
The chapel was built in 1817, by Captain Thomas
James Maling, R.N., who likewise endowed it. Low Ford
is situated upon the river Wear, across which there is a
ferry, called Hylton Ferry, and where there are two
yards for ship-building, copperas works, and an earthen-
ware manufactory.

FORD, a chapelry in the hundred of Worray,
county of HEREFORD, 4 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Leo-
minster, containing 31 inhabitants. The living is a per-
petual curaty, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Here-
ford, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £800
royal bounty, and in the patronage of Richard Ark-
wright, Esq.

FORD, a joint township with Orrell, in the parish

of Separon, hundred of West Dersy, county palatine
of Lawcaster, 53 miles (N. by W.) from Liverpool,
containing 217 inhabitants,
.~ FORD, a parish in the western division of GLEN-
pALE ward, county of Nonmuunnmun, 9 miles
(N.N.W.) from Wooler, containing 1807 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of North-
umberland, and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's

books at £24, and in the patronage of the Marquis of
Waterford. The church is dedicated to St. ehnl.
‘hmmphcuofwonhnpfor&pum*
vians. The parish contains a considerable quan

under d omgnanded b
theEarl ofSumy lnwlﬁch former w lefeated
and their king slain,. 'Hlet&pofthehillunow )
with fir trees. As some workmen were digging m
near Floddon, in 1810, they dnoovered a l-rge pig
with human bones.’

FORD, a parish in the hundred of Fonn, eounzy pf i
Savor, 44 miles (W. by N.) from Shrewsbury, contuhlhg
212 inhabitants. The living is a ual , in
the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford,
rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 4., endowed with
£400 private benefaction, and £400 royd bounty, and
in the patronage of W, E. Tomline, Esq. The church is
dedicated to St. Michael. The Roman Watling.street
runs through the parish, which is bounded by the river
Severn,

FORD, a parish in the hundred of Avisrorp, rape
of ARuNDEL, county of Sussex, 54 miles (8.8.W.) from
Arundel, containing 83 inhabitants. The living is a
dlscharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Chichester, rated in the king's books at £9. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Chichester, The chnrch
is principally in the decorated style of English archi-
tecture. The Portsmouth and Arundel canal passes
through this parish, which is bounded on the ust by
the river Arun.

FORD, a tything in the parish of Lmuwox, hnn :
dred of Ax.nr.nnunv, county of WivLts, contninmg 20‘
inhabitants.

FORDHALL, a hamlet in the parish of W
Waven, Henley division of the hundred of B:
wAY, county of WARWICK, containing, with ‘lpley. 106
inhabitants.

FORDHAM, a plrll!i i;;he(hn;lm of Smm:,
county of Cunnum, 5 es (N. Newnﬂrﬁ@t
containing 1042 inhabitants. ng u:::chaqed‘

vicarage, in the @
of Norwich, rated i
and in the patronm
Jesus Col C

St. Mary. The In

de Fordham, as a &ell
same order at
vestige of which remains. Ji
this parish, took refreshment
King's Path,” and killed
circums ‘
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~market town and %ﬂsb
‘ MPTON, 20 miles
) from on, through Ringwood,
1 92 (§W. by W.) from London, containing, with the
of Godshill, sometimes deemed  extra-paro-

, 2602 inhabitants, ~ This town is mnoticed in
Domesday-book urder the name of Forde, in which it
is further

stated to have contained a church and
two mills. Tt has suffered repeatedly by fire, and
ay irly at the b ng of the last century. Tt

is pleasantly situated on the borders of the New
Forest, and on the banks of the Upper Avon, which
i here navigable, and crossed by a bridge of seven
arches at the south-east entrance into the town which
is plentifully supplied with good water. There is a
sail-cloth manufaciory, and there was formerly one
for bed-ticks and checks to a considerable extent, but
of these only a small quantity i now made. The mar-
ket is on Friday; and an annual fair is held on the
Oth of September, chiefly for amusement. The living
i€ & vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Win-
chester, rated in the king's books at £30. 2. 34,
and in the patronage of the Provost and Fellows of
King's College, Cambridge. The church, dedicated
to St. Mary, consists of a mave and aisles, with a
small north transept, over which rises a square tower
and two charicels 1 ‘with each other, one east
of the nave, the other beyond the north aisle and tran-
: the tower is about seventy feet high, and of ex-
‘workmanship : the south chancel is the most
part of the building, and is supposed to have
; erected about the conrrencement of the thir-
‘teenth century. The west window, which is very large, is
3 specimen of ‘the decorated English style.
: sase at Thsley, in this parish. Here
for the Society of Friends and
‘Catherine Eycott Bulkeley gave
18t, to apply the divi-
‘Sunday school ; and

éd £50 for the same
by volun-
of £5, payable every
Damglo ,h’llﬁss,to
1 of this parish. There are the
‘encampments in the neigh-
‘which is at Godshill, about

h in the liberty of Forp-
‘of the county of Dorser, §
ster, containing 1275 inha-

' , in ‘the
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In the 20th of Edward 1II., Queen
grant of a market on Tu
day, and morrow of St. George.
many barrows, some of them very large;
coins are frequently ploughed up. In 1747, above two
hundred ekeletons, the supposed remains of those who
fell in the Danish wars, were discovered at' the depth of
four or five feet, the skulls being remarkably thick, and
many of the teeth very sound: they were re-interred
in the church-yard, or in pits dug on the place. Many
other gkeletons have been found, from time to time, in
this neighbourhood.

FORDLEY, formerly a distinct parish, now united
to MiopLETON, in the hundred of Buyrmine, county
of Surrork, 3% miles (N.E: by E.) from Saxmundham,
containing 851 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, united to the rectory of Middleton, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk; and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £5. The church, dedicated to
the Holy Trinity, was situated in Middleton church-yard,
but has long since been demolished.

FORDON, a chapelry in the parish of Hunmansy
wapentake of Dickering, East riding of the county
of Yorx, 124 miles (N.by E.) from Greuat Driffield, con-
taining 48 inhabitants.

FORDWICH, a parish, and a member of the town
and port of SANpwicH, locally in the hundred of Down-
hamford, lathe of St. Aveusting, county of Kent,
2 miles (E. by N.) from Canterbury, containing 242
inhabitants, The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the
king's books at £5. 15. 2. Earl Cowper was patron
in 1802. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Ford-
wich is situated upon the river Stour, which is navigable
as far as the bridge that crosses it a littie above the
village, and upon which are extensive flour-mills, In
Domesday-book it is recorded as the “ small borough of
Forewich,” and later authorities state it to have been a
borough by preseription, governed by a mayor, jurats,
and commonalty, with a high steward, treasurer, and
town clerk. The mayor, who by virtue of his office
was also coroner, and the jurats, who were justices, had
the privilege of holding a general session of the peace
and gaol delivery, together with a court of record.

FOREBRIDGE, a township in the parish of CAsTLE-
Crurca, castern division of the hundred of Currre-
STONE, county of Starrorp, § of a mile (8. E.) from
Stafford. The population is returned with the parish.
Here is a free school endowed with £15 per annum, in
which about fifty children are taught.

FOREMARK, a parish in the hundred of ReproN
and Gruesney, county of Dersy, 6§ miles (8.8.wW.)
from Derby, containing, with the township of Ingleby,
208 inhabitants. The living is a p curacy, in

“the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield

‘and Coventry, endowed with a::lmo r:gd bmw“rf.‘“:f
£200 parliamentary grant, in the patronage
Sir thrch Burdett, Bart. The church; &Mm
‘our Saviour, is a plain small ediﬁee.mm old 1 al
church, which was an appendage to riory

stood in the hamlet of Ingleby, on the banks of the
“Tyent, about one mile to the east; but falling into
(decay, the present edifice was erected by the then
3 “of Foremark, at his own e . and ‘con-
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of children. hthepmnhhmmmhnk-
_appearance of

the centre of which: presenting the

edifice in ruins, tradition /asserts to. have. heen, the{eﬂ-

dence of an anchorite, whence it has derived the name

of Anchor Church. Human bones have been dug up on
this spot; and the faint tracuofuﬁguresomewhat
sepulohral are yet left beneath the rock.

FOREST, a joint township with Frith, compmmg
Ettersgill, dedle-Foreot, and Harwood parts, in the
parish of MipprLeron in Terspane, south-western
division of DaAruiNeTON ward, county palatine of
Durnam, 4% miles (N.W.) from Middleton, containing
723 inhabitants. = This township contains several lead
mines, and abounds with romantic scenery : it is bound-
ed on the south by the Tees, where that river, rolling
over a rocky bed, forms several cascades, two of which,
Caldron Snout and High Force, rank amongst the most
remarkable waterfalls in the kingdom.

.+ FOREST, county palatine of Caester. See MAC-
CLESFIELD-FOREST.

FOREST-HILL, a parish in the hundred of BuL-
LANGTON, county of Oxrorp, 5 miles (E. by N.) from
Oxford, containing 157 inhabitants. The living is a

tual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of

md, endowed with £ 200 private benefaction, £600
. royal bounty, and £500 parliamentary grant, and in
. the patronage of the Rector and Fellows of Lincoln
- College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Nicho-
' las,  The children of this parish are entitled to gratui-
~tous instruction in' the school at Stanton-St.John,
' founded by Dame Elizabeth Holford.

FOREST-QUARTER, a township in the parish of

| Sranuaore, north-western division of DArRvLINGTON
- ward, county palatine of DurnaMm, 7 miles (N.W.) from

Stanhope, containing 3735 inhabitants. This township
. contains the market town called St. John's Chapel, and

several hamlets., At Copt Hill is a chapel built by

Dr, Barrington, late Bishop of Durham, who endowed

it with land which now lets for £15 per annum. There

are places of worship for the Primitive and Wesleyan

Methodists within the township. The bishop also erected

two school-rooms, one at Wear's Head, and the other

at Lane Head, both schools being conducted on the

Nmonnl plan.

45 FORMBY a chapelry in the parish of WarToN on
the Hirr, hundred of West Derny, county palatine of
LancasteR, 83 miles (W.) from Ormskirk, containing
1257 inhabitants. The living is a perpetnal curaty, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowedwith
£400 private benefaction, £600 royal bounty, and £200
parliamentary gnntandmthepa&onugeofthe-’ector
9‘ Walton. The chapel is dedicated to St
are two free schools for the education of chil-
‘_ one situnated near the Cross, called the
‘or Upper school, and the other at the north en
Formby, near Ainsdale, the income of both being
about £34 pumm,thebeqnentof Richard Marsh,
{in 1708 : upwards of one hundred childmmbltmctod.
‘The Mwuhphdanc&enﬂyacharmd mnht,rhoh
~ has fallen into disuse. . : B2
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FORNCE’I'I‘ (ST. PETER)J parish in thulmm
DepwabE, county of NorroLx, Bl- miles (w.:byn.);ﬁag
St. Mary Stratton, containing 638 inhabitants. The
lxvmglsarectorynniudfo the rectory of Forncett-
St. Mary, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and dim

of Norwich,

FORNHAM (ALL SAINTS), a parish xnthelmndgﬁl
of THiNGOE, county of SvUrroLK, 2% miles (N.N,W.)
from Bury-St. Edmund’s, containing 305 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory with the rectory of Westley, in -
the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £19. 10. 5., and in the pa-
tronage of the Master and Fellows of Clare Hall, Cam-
bridge. The navigable river, Lark runs through the
parish. There are the remains of an ancient priory for-
merly connected with the abbey of Bury, now converted
into a dwelling-house.

FORNHAM (ST. GENEVEVE), a parish m the
hundred of TaEpwEsTRY, county of Suuonx,ﬂmilm
(N.N.W.) from Bury-St. Edmund's, containing 144 in-
habitants. The living is a discharged rectory united
to that of Risby, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books. at
£7.1. 0. The church was burnt down about twenty
years since, and has not been rebuilt. - The navigable
river Lark runs through the parish.

FORNHAM (ST.MARTIN), a parish in the hundred
of TaepwesTRY, county of SurroLk, 2 miles (N.) from
Bury-St. Edmund’s, containing 222 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £7.11. 3. George Hogg, Esq. was patron
in 1814. The navigable river Lark runs W
parish, ;
FORRABURY, a parish in the bundred of Igllv
NEWTH, county of Comu.x., ‘miles (N,E.), ﬁom
Bossiney, containing 223 i The living is a
discharged rectory, in the. of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, ntedmthekmglbookpgt :
£4. 12. 8k, endowed with £200 royal unty,qu.ag

the pa of Thomas John
church is dedicated to St. Simph
merly a place of some.ir :
tributed to the destruction of 1

bonndedonthenorthrwe-tbythg,
- FORSB ‘a township in_ th
nouz,mrthern vinonoftheh




Towcester. The population is re-

R 0y ¢ A , a parish in the lower division of
‘the ‘hundred of TEWKESBURY, county of GLOUCESTER,
&aw-«va‘ from Tewkesbury, containing 474 inhabi-
~ ‘tants. - The living is a perpetual curacy, endowed with
£1400 private benefaction, £1000 royal bounty, and
£600 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
J. Yorke, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
The navigable river Severn runs through the parish, and
frequently inundates the meadows on its banks. Forth-
ampton ‘court, a private mansion, was formerly the
vesidence of the abbots of Tewkesbury.
1V FORTON, a township in the parish of GArsTaNG,
hundred of AmMouNDERNESS, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, 4 miles (N.) from Garstang, containing 587 in-
habitants. The Independents have a place of worship
here. ' There is ‘an endowment of about £20 per annum,
the bequests of different individuals, for the education
of children.

" FORTON, a joint' tything with Tatworth, in the
parish ‘of Cuarp, eastern division of the hundred of
Kincssury, county of SomerseT, 14 mile (8.E.) from
Chard, containing 437 inhabitants. ;
/“/FORTON, a parish in the western division of  the
hundred of CUTTLESTONE, county of STA¥ForD, 14 mile
(N.E. by N.) from Newport, containing, with the town-
ship of Meer, 702 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, rated in the king’s books at £20. 19. 2.,
and in the patronage of Sir J. F. Boughey, Bart., The
church is'dedicated to All Saints.

" 'FOSDYKE, a parish in the wapentake of KirToN,
parts of HoLuAnp, county of Lincorn, 6 miles (N.N.W.)

‘from Holbeach, containing 424 inhabitants. The living

is a perpetual curacy annexed to the rectory of Algarkirk,

in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln. The church
is dedicated to All Sain

" 'FOSTON, a p

n the hundred of GuTHLAXTON,
L miles (8. by E.) from Lei-
: sitants. The living is a rec-
deaconry of Leicester, #d diocese of
the king's books ut £14.4. 31, and
of Sir C. Lamb. The church 1& dedicated

| in the wapentake of LovepeN,
ounty of LincoLy, 53 miles (N.W.

m, containing 426 inhabitants.
curacy annexed to the vicarage
in the archdeaeonry and diocese
h is dedicated to St. Peter. . Sir
tton, Kat., a baron of the ex-
d to the by the title of
ston, in the county of Lincoln, on
in the wapentake of BurmEg,
“¢county of York, sing the
‘and Thornton upon Clay, and con-

, 11} miles
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POS'!'ON upon the WOLDS, a 1 in the w o
take of Dickerine, East riding ofmtyonm-,
comprising the townships of Brigham, Foston upon the
Woldg, Gembling, and Great Kelk, and containing 648
inhabitants, of which number, 300 are in the township
of Foston upon the Wolds, 6% miles (E.S.E.)" from
Great Driffield. The living is a discharged vie in
the archdeaconry of the Kast riding, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £15. 8. 64., endowed ‘with
£400 royal bounty, and £ 1200 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew. The Wesleyan Methodists and Cal-
vinistic Dissenters have each a place of worship here.

FOTHERBY, a parish in the wapentake of Lunno-
ROUGH, parts of Linpsey, county of LiNcoLy, 3% miles
(N. by W.) from Louth, containing 198 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £3, en-
dowed with £800 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

FOTHERINGHAY, a parish in the hundred of
WirLysrooxk, county of NorrEAMPTON, 3% miles
(N. N. E.)) from Oundle, containing 309 inhabitants,
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough.  Thomas
Belsey, Esq. was patron in 1814.  The church, dedi-
cated to St. Mary and All Saints, is a handsome edifice
in the later English style: it has an ancient stone pulpit,
and the font is a very fine one: several distinguished
members of the Plantagenet family are interred in it.
It was formerly collegiate, and at one period the conven-
tual church of a nunnery, the inmates of which were
translated to De la Pré, near Northampton. Edmund of
Langley, son to Edward IIL, procured a license to erect
a college, but his death prevented the execution of the
design. He left two sons, Edward and Richard, the for-
mer of whom founded and endowed the college, which was

.confirmed by Henry V., who also bestowed upon it certain

lands that belonged to Alien priories. Edward IV, made
the college of his own foundation, and enlarged the build-
ings. At the dissolution its revenue amounted to about
£ 419 per annum. On the north, side of the church is a
free school, endowed with £20 per annum, for a master,
payableoutof the exchequer by the receiver for the county.
The village, in which a fair for horses is held on the third
Monday after July, was anciently a considerable town:
the adjoining country is much esteemed ‘for its
excellent pasture and corn land. It is pleasantly situ-
ated on the river Nen, over which is a bridge of free-
stone, erected in 1722 by the Marquis of Halifax, in
lieu of & wooden one built in 1573 by Queen Eliza-
beth. Fotheringhay castle was a strong and handsome
structure, with double ditches, keep, &c. In the reigh
of Henry III., when the many strong holds encouray

the nobility to rebel, it was surprised by William, Earl
of Albemarle, who laid waste the surrounding country.
It was the birthplace of Richard IIL., the scene of the
trial of Mary Queen of Scots, and the place of her ex-
‘ecution, James L., Mary's son, on his accession to the
throne, demolished the castle; its site may however still
visible, and part of the cloisters. =~ 0
~ FOTHERLY (HIGH), a township inthe parish of

‘BywerL-St. Perer, eastern division of Trinpave ward,

county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 3 miles (88, W.) from

Bywell, containing 92 inhabitauts. ; ‘
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 rated in the king's books at £27. 14. 0f;, and in the
pat) Nicholas

mumv,.hﬂuh&a sh of r
in the lower division of the wapentake of Ag) i
and partly in the upper division of vdn ‘wapentake,
OseoLpcross, West riding of ¢he nmty wof York, &
miles (E. 8. E.) from Wakefield.

'FOULDEN, a parish in the nutlun division of the
hundred of Greenuoz, ecounty of Norrouk, 5 miles
(E. by 8.) from Stolm~l"my, containing 467 inhabitants.
The living is a vicarage, united to the rectory
of Oxborough, in the nchdnamry of Norfolk, and dio-
cese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10. 1. 10.
The church is dedicated to All Saints.

. FOULMIRE, a parish in the hundred of TERIPLOW,
county of CamerineE, 54 miles (N. E.) from B.oyswn,
contdnhg 541 inhabitants. = The living is a rectory, in

the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated in the king's
books at £29. 14. 2., and in the patronage of the Earl
of Hardwicke. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
There was anciently a market at this place.

FOULNESS, an island and a parish in the hundred
of Rocrrorp, county of Essex, 9 miles (E. by N.) from
Rochford, containing 565 inhabitants.. The living is a
discharged rectory, within the jurisdiction of the court of
the Commissary of Essex and Herts, concurrently with the
Consistorial court of the Bishop of London, rated in the
king's books at £15,and in the patronage of the Earl of
Winchelsea. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is nearly
‘in the centre of the island, the floods having frequently
prevented the inhabitants from attending their respective
places of worship on the main land. There is a small
endowment for the education of children. The circum-

 ference of Foulness is about twenty miles, exclusively
~of a tract called the Saltings, which is not yet em
banked from the sea. Courts leet and baron are occa-
- sionally held by the lord of the manor. There is a fair
for toys on the 10th of July.

FOULNEY, an island in the parish of Dauron in
Forness, hundred of Lonspanr, north of the sands,
county palatine of Lntcmn, 7 miles (8. by E.) from

FOULRIDGE, a township in that part of the parish
of ‘WaarLey which is in the higher division of the
hundred of Buacksurw, county palatine of LancasTER,
3:11& (N.) from Odlne, containing 1307 inhabitants.

is remarkable for romantic scenery.
mmasm ‘a market town and parish, in the
m of Evynsrorp, county of Norrork, 18 miles
(N.W.) from Norwich, and 108 (N. N. E.) from London,
containing 835 inmhabitants. In 1770 this town was
almost totally destroyed by fire, but it has been in

a superior manner, and now contains many good
- There is a market for corn every Tuesday :

are held. on ‘Easter Tuesday for petty
llt on the’lutTulhy in May for cattle and toys ;
utm::mwu i cuvm:.mthaﬁnt
Michaelmas-day. The living is a rectory,
Norfolk,

in the of , and diocese of Norwich,

age of the Rev. Henry Astley. The

m& Here was fommlynehpd, longlimom

FOUNTAIN' SrEARTH a mdlip in tbe m
of Kirkny-MaLzEARD, lower division of the wapentake
of Craro, West ri ing of the county of Yl?‘t:’e 3% miles
(8.w. by w.) from Ripon; containing, wit chapel.
ry of Middlesmoor, 441 inhabitants. An abbey of the
Cistercian order was founded here in 1132, for thirteen
Benedictine monks of St.Mary's near York, who leaving
their ‘house with the design of observing a more strict
and reformed rule, obtained from Thurstan, Archbishop
of York, a grant of land sufficient for their purpose.
It was dedicated to the honour of the Blessed Virgin,
and was endowed with great revenues, said to be worth,
at the dissolution, £1173. 0. 7. *The abbey was sitnated
in a valley environed by well-wooded hills, on the banks
of a small stream called the Skell : the ruins, occupying

of about two acres, are considered the most ex

ve and interesting monastic remains in the kingdom;

they are partly in the Norman, and partly in the early

style of English architecture, and consist of the church,

with its lofty tower, two cloisters, the chapter-house,

refectory, dormitory, and kitchen, besides the append-
ages of the gate, the mill, and the bridge.

FOVANT, otherwise FOFFONT, a parish in Gh
hundred of CAWDEN and CapworTH, county of Wivrs,
7 miles (W.byS$.) from Wilton, containing 523 inhabi-
tants. The living is a rectory, in the and
diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £17,
and in the patronage of the Earl of Pembroke. 'ﬂlo,
church is dedicated to St.

FOWBERRY, a township in thepnmhof Owﬂa
ecastern division of GLENDALE ward, county of Nuluu-
UMBERLAND, 3 miles (E.N.E.) from Wooler. The
lation is returned with the parish. lnlﬁSSthh.
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I ‘town except Yarmouth. Fowey was attacked and
. partly by the French, in 1457 ; and being subse-
uently threatened by them in the reign of Edward IV.,
hat monarch caused two towers, the ruins of which are
- yet visible, to be built at the public charge for its secu-
rity ; but he was subsequently so much displeased with
inhabitants, for attacking the French during a truce
which was proclaimed with Louis XI,, that he took
away all their ships and naval stores, together with a
chain drawn across the river, between the two forts,
~ which was carried to Dartmouth. In the parliamentary
war, it was, at first, one of the royal garrisons: in 1644,
the town and harbour were taken possession of by the
Earl of Essex, with several ships and seventeen pieces
of ordnance ; and here his army was mostly quartered
when it surrendered to the king. The fortress and haven
were held by the royalists till March, 1646, when they
were delivered up, with thirteen pieces of ordnance, to
Sir Thomas Fairfax. * The Dutch under Admiral de
:‘nyt;,;mnde an unsuccessful attempt on the harbour
1667
* The town is situated at the mouth of the river
Fowey, extending a mile along its eastern bank; and
the scenery around the harbour is at once beautifully
grand and interesting: the cliffs on the opposite side
‘the river,across which there is a ferry for passengers,
are of the boldest character. The streets, however, are

&

e is @ spacious market-house, over which is the
town-hall, erected some years since, by Viscount Valle-
tort and Philip Rashleigh, Esq., then representatives for
. the borough. T ‘at one time a place of con-
_~ 'siderable commercial importance, but little of this now

. wemains, except what arises from its Pilchard fishery,
y . most of the inhabitants are engaged, and

" which affords ent to a great number of vessels.
b 5. computed that upwards of twenty-eight thousand
ads of fish are annually brought into this port :

also a few vessels engaged in the timber and coal
p or three London traders, and some small
, In 1827, the tonnage inwards
thousand four hundred #nd

ndred and fifty-six tons. The copper-
nd tons ; the china, clay, and stone,

SR R e
above. The shoves are bold and freegofrom dmge:;n and

ships in distress may run in with perfect safety, with-
out cable or anchor. The fort ofpeSt. Cnth‘:eize,- con-
structed for the protection of the harbour in the reign
of Hsnry VIIL., still exists, and has four guns mounted
upon it ; and between this and the town are two small
forts of more modern erection, )

Fowey was incorporated by charter of James IL
Another charter was granted by William and Mary, in
1690 ; and a third in 1819, under which the corporation
consisted of a mayor, recorder, eight aldermen, a town
clerk, and assistants; but a writ of ouster was brought
against them for the abuse of their chartered privileges,
and judgment having been recorded against them in
Trinity Term, 1827, no attempt has been made to elect
another mayor, hold sessions, nor do any other corporate
acts; and the county magistrates have ever since acted
within and for the borough. Under the charter of 1819,
the mayor and free burgesses were empowered to hold a
court of record for the recovery of debts not exceeding
£100; but no process has been issued from this court
since 1823. The only courts now held are those of the
lord of the manor, including a court leet, and a court
baron. The borough sent members to a national coun-
cil in the 14th of Edward IIL, but first returned repre-
sentatives to parliament in the 13th of Elizabeth, since
which it has continued to send two members. The
elective franchise is vested in the inhabitants of the
borough paying scot and lot, and in such'of the tenants
of the duchy manor as are capable of being portreeves of
the borough, viz., those of the duke’s tenants only who
have been admitted on the court rolls of the manor of
the borough, whose lands, being freehold, were anciently,
and still continue to be, held immediately of the duchy
of Cornwall, as parcel of the manor, and whose title to
such lands has been presented at a court baron, by a
sworn homage, or jury, of the freeholders of the manor:
the portreeve is the returning officer, and the number
of electors about sixty, who are in the patronage of
Joseph Thomas Austen, Esq.

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea-
conry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter, rated in the
king's books at £10, and in the patronage of J. B
Austen, Esq. The church, dedicated to St. Fimbarrus,
is a handsome edifice, consisting of a nave, two aisles,
with a lofty pinnacled tower at the west end : it was
rebuilt in 1336, and again rebuilt, or much altered, and
its present tower erected, about 1466: in the north
aisle is a fine altar-tomb of marble, with a recumbent
statue in alabaster, and an inscription to the . of
John Rashleigh, Esq., who died in 1582; and there &
also levera.le:g!l:’er :]onuments belonging to the fmﬁ
hleigh and Treffry. There are places of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists and Independents. A school,
for educating thirty children of voters, was founded
bm ‘by a bequest from Shadrack Vincent, in 1700, and
’endowedwiehssoo.tlobeinmted hﬁg‘f b e of
land : it was formerly a grammar school, but is now

: ‘school for teaching English, writing, &e: -




almshouse here for eight poor -
with the great tithes of the -
widows receive 25. 9d. each weé'ﬁly A
from ing, or receiving an er elee
The castellated mmion of hbuae, on an eminence
near the church, anciently the residence of the Treffry
family, but now that of the Austen family, is a curious
relic of early domestic architecture ; and an oriel, pro-
Jecting from the wdﬁl side of it, is very richly orna-
mented with "The ruins 'of ‘the Block- houses,
erected for the wénce of the harbour in the reign, and
bythe commund ‘of Edward IV., are also still to be
seen.’
FOWNHOPE, a parish in the hundred of GREYTREE,
“of Hererorp, 7 miles (S.E.) from Hereford,
wi‘(h‘ilﬁng 866 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage,
with the vicarage of Woolhope and the perpetual curacy
of 'Faﬁvley, in the archdeaconry and.diocese of Hereford
rated in the king's books at £6. 9. 93., and in, the pa-
; “of the Dean and Chapter of Hereford. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary. The village is plea-
santly situated on the east bank of the Wye.  About
‘half a mile to the north of it is an eminence crowned by
‘an ancient camp ; and not far distant is a second camp,
loccupying the summit of another eminence, called
‘Capler-hill : the latter is double-trenched and called
' Woldbury ; the former has no distinct appellatlon The
| Capler-hill is finely wooded, and from 1ts summit the
| prospects are rich and extensive.
- FOXCOTE, a chapelry in the parish and hundred of
Axpover, Andover division of the county of Sovrn-
. AMPTON, 2 miles (N.W.) from Andover, containing 96
inhabitants,
~ FOXCOTT, a parish in the hundred and county of
Bvcxmcuux, 2 miles (N.E.) from Buckmgham, con-
taming 119 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln,
uted in the king's books at £9. 9. 4., and in the pa-
of the Duke of Buckingham. The church is
dedicated to St. Leonard.
FOXEARTH, a parish in the hundred of Hinck-
pRD, county of "Essex, 3% miles (N.w.) from Sudbury,
&Lﬂn 436 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the arch. nry of Middlesex, and diocese of London,
rated in the king's books at £10. 4, 45. The Rev. J
was patron in 1810.
~ FOXHALL, a parish in the hundred of CAB.L!'O!ID,
evﬁ'h "ova‘nor.x, 4} miles (E.byS.) from
ning 217 inhabitants. The living isaj
ctn‘lc_; annexed to the rectory of Brightwell, in the
ry of Suffolk, and diocese of orwich, = The
churéﬁ’w chwudedmatedtoAllSn‘inu hasbeen
y in the pariﬂ; of anmu.

of Wirrs, 5 miles
) on is r

riding, and’ amwmma ¢
£22. D. Sykes, Esq. was patron’ in 1815,
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

FOXLEY, a parish in the hundred of Evxsrorn;
county of Norrork, 2 miles (8. by E.) frdm:
containing 250 inhabitants. ~The living is a dhm
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and i?
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6.13. 4.
E. Lombe, Esq. was patron in 1792.- ‘The church lnhra
dicated to St. Thomas. TR i

FOXLEY, a parish in the hundred of Maza
BURY, county of Wrurs, 21 miles (W. 8. W.)' ﬁ'om
Malmesbury, containing 71 inhabitants.  The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts;
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books
at £3. 17. 81, endowed with £10 per annum private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of Lord Holland. This' parish is bounded on the
north by a branch of the Lower Avon. Lord Holland
is Baron Holland, of Foxley. LA

FOXT, a joint township with Moorage, in that part
of the parish of Ipsroxrs which is in the southern
division of the hundred of TormonsrLow, county of
STAFFORD, 4 miles (N.N.E.) from Cheadle, contunmg
415 inhabitants.

FOXTON, a parish in the hundred of TurirLOW,
county of Cumnmm:, 6 miles (8.8.W.) from Cam-
bridge, containing 368 inhabitants. The living is &
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £11. 2. 11., and in the patronage
of the Bishop of Ely. The church erected about’ the
year 1456, is dedicated to St. Lawrence. = A market
and two fairs were anciently held here ; one fair il M
held at Easter.

FOXTON, a joint township with Shotton, in ﬁle pu
rish of SEpGcEFIELD, north-eastern division of ! SrockToN
ward, county palatine of Duruam, 9 miles (N. W, W
from Stockton upon Tees, containing 63 inhabi

FOXTON, a parish in the hundred of GKMI:,
county of mexs'rzn, 3 miles (N.W. by W.) from: Mar-
ket-Harborough, con Jinhabitants. The r
xsadxsehu.rgedvn Arag: Onry

patr

Baptists. The Union canal runs 1
- FOY, a parish partly in the hw
chiefly in the upper division of
Low, county of Hnauonn, 8} miles
eontaining, with
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AP, & parish in the wapentake of Dick-
RINC ) st riding of the county ofwftﬁlt:;%nﬂb
‘ W) Br , containing, with the chapelry
‘of Awburn, 91 inhabitants. The ﬁ!in%ai; a perpetual
ouracy, -in the archdeaconry of the riding, and
~ -diocese of York, endowed with £600 royal bounty, and
i ﬁemi;p%of Sir W. Strickland, Bart.
-+ FRAM , & chapelry in the parish of Lower,
or Powsr Guyting, lower division. of the hundred of
KirrsGaTE, county of GLOUCESTER, 3 miles (E.) from
Winchcombe. The population is returned with the parish.
. FRAMFIELD, a parish in the hundred of LoxrieLp-
Dorser, rape of PevENsEY, county of Sussex, 14 mile
(8.E.) from Uckfield, containing 1437 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar juris-
diction of the Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the
king's books at £13. 6. 8., and in the patronage of
the Rev. Mr. Cooper. The church, dedicated to St. Tho-
mas a Becket, has portions in the early and decorated
styles of English architecture. In 1719, Robert Smith
bequeathed £200, the interest of one moiety of which
was to be applied to the education of poor children ; and
in 1764, this fund was increased with a bequest in
land by the Rev. Thomas Wharton, now producing £ 50
ayear : thirty children are instructed. There were for-
merly iron-works in the parish; and on the road side,
near Stone bridge, was a famous mineral spring, which
entirely disappeared a few years ago, upon the owner
draining a piece of boggy ground between it and a fish
bel

‘helow.

. FRAMINGHAM (EARL), a parish in the hundred
of HensTEAD, county of NorroLk, 5 miles (S.E,) from
Norwich, containing 56 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
’ rectory united to the rectory of Bixley, in the
archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £3. 6. 8. The church, a small
Norman edifice, is dedicated to St. Andrew.

- FRAMINGHAM (PIGOT), a parish in the hun-
dred of HexsTEAD, county of Nor¥oLK, 5§ miles (S. E.
by 8.) from Norwich, con ig 304 inhabitants, The
iving is a dischargec in the archdeaconry of
and dioce h, rated in the king's

‘ age of the Bishop

arket town and pari®hin
v of Surrork, 18 miles

1 _inhabitants. This place is of
i , having been one of the chief

‘of the Iceni, a British tribe in alliance with the
ans, to whom their king, Prasatagus, bequeathed a
| &Tm.in the hope of securing to his
icea, the undisturbed possession of the re-
death of Prasatagus, the Roman pro-

ion of the whole, and on Boadicea's
. to be scourged like a slave,
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_ tains several fine monuments, and the

~ the two wives of Thomas,

s
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a fortress existed here in, the time of Redwald, thi

i > A the @ or.
king of the East Angles, who occasionally re‘:x‘:g’d to it
from his court at Rendlesham. _The castle was also the
retreat of King Edmund the Martyr, who, when pursue
by the Danes, fled from Dunwich, and took refuge withi
its walls, whence endeavouring to escape, when closely
besieggd, he was overtaken, and beheaded at Hoxne, In
1173, it became the temporary asylum of Prince Henry,
whqm Queen Eleanor, his mother, had incited to rebel
against his father, Henry II. And upon the death of
Edward V1., in 1553, Mary retired to this castle, where
she was joined by the inhabitants of Suffolk and the
neighbouring counties, who, to the number of thirteen
thousand, accompanied her to London, to take posses-
sion of the crown. The castle was a spacious and noble
structure, the surrounding walls including an irregular
quadrilateral area of nearly an acreand a half ; they were
forty-four feet in height, and eight feet in thickness, de-
fended by thirteen square towers of considerably greater
elevation, of which, one towards the east, and one
towards the west, were watch-towers: the whole was
surrounded by a double moat, over the inner of which
was a draw-bridge. The walls are in a tolerably perfect
state, and in front of the gateway-tower are the arms
of the Howards, Mowbrays, Brothertons, &c., all quar-
tered in one shield, having lions for supporters, and for
the crest, a lion passant. In the interior, the build-
ings of which were demolished about the year 1670, an
almshouse for aged men, who are supported by an en-
dowment by Sir Robert Hitcham, and a workhouse for
the poor, have been built with the materials of the
castle. The town is pleasantly situated on a hill, near
the source of the river Ore, which rises to the north of
the castle, and falls into the sea at Orford ; it contains
many respectable and well built houses, is lighted with
oil by subscription, and amply supplied with water ; the
air is salubrious, the approaches good, and the town
generally improving. The trade is principally in malt :
the market is on Saturday, for corn, and occasionally
for cattle ; the fairs are on Whit-Monday, and October
11th, for toys.

The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suf-
folk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books
at £43. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Master and
Fellows of Pembroke Hall, Cambridge. The church,
dedicated to St. Michael, is a stately structure, part-
ly in the decorated, and partly in the later, style of
English architecture, with a lofty square embattled
tower, strengthened with buttresses; over the west en-
trance, a representation of St. Michael encounter
the n is finely sculptured in relievo : the chan
which, both in style and workmanship, is superior
to the rest of the church, is supposed to have been
added in the reign of Edward VL : the roof of the
nave, which is of oak curiously carved, is ﬂlPP‘“‘”Q,% :
octangular pillars, and that of the chancel by clustered
columns of very graceful proportion. The church con-
he ashes of many.

illustrious personages; among the former are tﬁemgm .
ments of Henry Howard, Earl of Surrey ; Henry Fitz-
roy, Duke of Ri 4 d’m m‘# nm Add. 5.

of Norfolk, who was

beheaded in the of d the wife of Sir
n &i.”zhh.mllere ] : ,“,m for ‘




dents Wesleyan it
ﬂ schoolmfonnded in 1636, by Sir
Knt., who endowed it with lands

revenue for the instruction in wxlﬁng, ng,
arithmetic, of forty boys, to each of whom he allowed an

apprentice fee of £10 ; the number of scholars has been
recently increased to ﬂfty There are four Sunday schools,
in which five hundred children are instructed, partly sup-
ported by subscription, and partly by the charitable be-
quests of Sir Robert Hitcham, who also founded an alms-
house for twelve aged widows, or widowers, who receive
each a weekly allowance in money, and an annual supply
of coal and a gown, on which they wear a badge with the
arms of the founder: the alms-people are required to
attend morning prayer at the parish church daily, for
which purpose Sir Robert Hitcham bequeathed £20,
now increased to £ 30 per annum, to the minister, and
£ 5 per annum to the clerk and sexton ; the school and
almshouse are under the management of the Master and
FPellows of Pembroke Hall, Cambridge. Thomas Mills,
in 1708, bequeathed estates producing at present nearly
#£700 per annum, for the foundation of almshouses for
eight aged persons; and alen for the education of
children, and the relief of the poor: there are like-
wise several other bequests for charitable purposes.
In 1823, some remains of elephants’ tusks were dug up
at the depth of ten feet from the surface, in a field to
the north of the town. Robert Hawes, who compiled
a history of the hundred of Loes, still in manuscript,
and to whom, as a zealous investigator of antiquities,
the Master and Fellows of Pembroke Hall, Cambridge,
presented a silver cup and cover, was buried here in
1731.

FRAMLINGTON (LONG), a parish in the eastern
division of CoqueTpaLE ward, county of NorTHUM-
BERLAND, comprising the townships of Brinkburn High
ward, Brinkburn Low ward, and Long Framlimgton, and
containing 815 inhabitants, of which number, 563 are
in the township of Long Framlington, 11 miles (N.N.W.)
from Morpeth. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Dur-
ham, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Felton. There
is a place of worship for Presbyterians. The interest of
5800 the bequest of Mrs, Tate, in 1825, is appropriated
to the maintenamce of a school for edncatmg twenty
?or children. Within the last few years the village

been much improved by the erection of several neat
houses and shops. It was formerly very badly sup-
plied with water, but in 1821, a liberal subscripelon was
raised to sink a public well, from which the inhabitents
have now an abundant supply Fairs for the sale
of sheep, black cattle, &c,, are held on the se-
cond Tuesday in July, and on October 25th. Lime-
_ stone, freestone, and coul, are found in the parish. The
~ Hall-hill, at this place, is :
of a Bomnstatim,mdthe remains of a u'lpleintrenc‘h-
ment are still visible, At Evergreen, near the same
place, are foundations of a building suppose
been a fort. At the north-western extremity
- h;‘a long‘nmow.trm ofj. d and d :

supposed to have been the site fr

in the liberty of Framrron, ﬁ%ﬁ’/

cﬂunty of Do““, 5 mr - |‘$y w.) i,
chester, and 180 (S. W.) from London, .
418 inhabitants. The name of tidu place e-

longed to the site of an ancient priory, an ﬁ deﬂ#d :
from the river Frome which passesit: in

book it is written Frantone, and, when that record was
compiled, the priory was a cell to the abbey of St.
Stephen, at Caen in Normandy. It was purchased, by
license of Richard IL., by Sir John Devereaux, Knt. ;
it afterwards fell to the crown, and was granted by
Henry V. to his brother, the Earl of Bedford, after
whose death it was given to the collegiate church of
St. Stephen, in Westminster. In the 14th of Elizabeth,
the manor and advowson were given to Sir Christopher
Hatton, who sold them to John Brown, Esq., in whose
family they now remain. A handsome residence was
erected in 1704, upon the site of the priory, by Robert
Brown, Esq. A market on Thursday, now disused, was
granted by Edward II1., and four fairs by succeedmgmo—
narchs; of the latier two only are now held, on March 9th
and May 4th, for cattle, horses, &ec. Courts leet and baron
are held annually, at which the constable and tything-
men for the liberty are appointed. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and
diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's booksat £11. 9. 7.,
and in the patronage of F. J. Brown, Esq. The church,
which is dedicated to St, Bartholomew, was built in the
reign of Edward IV, and is adorned with several devices
of that monarch; it consists of a nave, aisles, and
chancel, with a tower at the west end hamm-
ments and pinnacles, erected in 1695 by Robert e,
Esq., the old tower having fallen down : the pulpit is
ornamented with three curiously carved inniehu?-
one of these is much defaced, the other two represen
monks, one holding the sun in his right Mt
‘book in his left, the other a cross and a 4
entire edifice hu been recently altered and re
the expense of ‘the patron. The abovem
Robert Browne, by will dated in 1784, left
annum for the support of the minister, like

DPO
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ag's books ot £11. 16. 0,
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wrck dicated to $t. Peter. ' Independents and
‘esleyan. Methodists. have each a place of worship
here. - Frampton derives its. name from being situated
- FRAMPTON upon SEVERN, a parish in the lower
division of the hundred of WHairsTONE, county of
GrovcesTeRr, 64 milés (N. by w.) from Dursley, con-
‘taining 996 inhabitafts. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,
rated in the king's books at £7. 11., endowed with
£410 private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty.
J. Dunsford, Esq. was patron in 1813. The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, has portions in the decorated
style, and a handsome tower with pinnacles, There is
a place of worship for Independents. In the year 904,
the Danes were overtaken at this place, and attacked by
an army of Mercians and West Angles, by whomthey were
totally routed, and three of their kings slain. Framp-
ton is situated on the river Frome, near its confluence with
the Severn, whence it derives its name. The Gloucester
and Berkeley canal passes close to the village. A fair,
called Frying-pan fair, is held on the 14th of February.
At this place is particularly observable that remarkable
influx of the river, at the coming in of the tide, termed
“the Hygre, " and “the Bore, or Boar:” the water rolls
in with a head of foam three or four feet high, stretch-
ing like a moving weir across the stream. About 1750,
the Earl of Berkeley constructed a bulwark near it,
called Hock Crib, to prevent the river from encroaching
on the land.
v ‘WMSDEN., a parish in the hundred of THRED-
county of SurroLk, 4 miles (S.E.) from Deben-
ontaining 702 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
h, rated in the king's books at £10. 0. 24., and
be patronage of the Countess of Dysart. The
fch is dedicated to St. Mary. There was formerly
anastery at this place,
R. BY, a township in
lower division of the
. palatine of Cx.lu-mn., 7 diles

—phrish of Wesr
d of WIRRALL,

sh of HaGLEY,
SHIRE, ,county
," HQ’QQ’OWGD,
s dedicated to

S

8

the late Mr. Hughes. The

R. Reynolds, Esq. was patron in 1791 The church
i e B o 0L D e
- FRANSHAM (LITTLE), a parish in the himdred of
Lavnorrcn, county of Nomrorx, 5§ miles (E.N.E.)"
from Swaffham, containing 228 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged ‘rectory, in the archdeaconry and - dio-
;:esg OftNOTWiEh, rated in the king's books at £6. 8. 4.
. Swatman, . 'was patron in 1808. i
dbdickted to SEMNEY, yco g

FRANT, or FANT, a parish partly in the hundred
of Wasnrinesrone, lathe of Aviesrorp, county of
KenT, but chiefly in the hundred of Roruerrienn,
rape of PEVENSEY, county of Sussex, 2 miles (8. by B.)
from Tunbridge Wells, containing 1727 inhabitants.
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lewes,
and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£8. 5. 5., and in the patronage of the Rector of Ro-
therfield. The church, which is partly in the early and
partly in the decorated style of English architecture,
has lately received an addition of four hundred and
ninety sittings, two hundred and’ eighty of which are
free, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of
churches and chapels having granted £350 towards
defraying the expemse. This parish, which is within
the liberty of the duchy of Lancaster, is bounded on the
north and south by two branches of the river Medway :
it contains some mineral springs, and vestiges of several
iron-works. In that part of it which is in the county
of Sussex are the ruins of Beigham, or Bayham, abbey,
founded by the Premonstratensian canons of Brockley,
at the instance of Robert de Turneham, or Thornham,
who, about the year 1200, gave all his lands at this place
for that purpose: it was dedicated to the Virgin Mary,
and was originally established at Beaulieu, near Brock-
ley ; but the monks removed, with those at Otteham,
to this place : the monastery was one of those which
Cardinal Wolsey obtained for the endowment of his in-
tended colleges: its revenue, in the 17th of Henry VIIL,
was £152. 9. 4. The ruins, consisting of portions of
the walls of the nave and transepts of the abbey church,
are situated in the gardens of Bayham Park, a seat be-
longing to Marquis Camden, to whom it gives the title
of viscount.

FRATING, a parish in the hundred of TeNDRING,
county of Essex, 6 miles (E. 8. E.) from Colchester,
containing 268 inhabitants, The living is a discharg-
ed rectory united to the rectory of Thorrington, in the
archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese of London,
rated in the king's books at £10.

FRECKENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Lack-
¥oRrD, county of SurroLk, 3§ miles (S.W. by w.) fmm
Mildenhall, containing 366 inhabitants. The living
comprises a discharged vicarage and a rectory, within
the peculiar jurisdiction of the Bishop of Rochester, the
former rated in the king's books at £8. 15. 24., the
latter at £16. 11. 5%, endowed with £220 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Master and Fellows of Peter House, Cambridge. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew. The river Lark is
le on the north of this parish, where it receiv
a smaller stream, which runs through the village.

'FRECKLETON, a township in the parish of Kigx-
mam, hundred of AMOUNDERNESS, county palatine of
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. LANCASTER, 2 miles (8.) from Kirkham, containing 875

inhabitants. The lndepunﬁ;n@gﬂye:‘l%hee of worship
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here, There is a large uckigg,gd,Mmu—
famFrl{Eiilt)m “'&'f;euy in the prhh of luuzo '
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MoWBRAY, hundred of. l“lun.hm, county of Leices-
TER, 34 miles (E.N.E,) from Melton-Mowbray, contain-
ing 110 inhabitants. = The is dedicated to St.
Mary. There is a " of worship for Independents.
The Melton-Mowbray and Oakham canal runs to the
south of this place.

FREEFOLK, a chapelry in the parish of Wairr-
cuurcH, hundred of Evincar, Kingsclere division of
the county of Sovrmampron, 1§ mile (E.N.E.) from
Wlntchurch containing 68 inhabitants. The living is

a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Winchester, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Win-
chester. Here isa very large paper-mill, where the paper
used for the Bank of England notes is manufactured.

FREEFORD, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
St. MicuaeL, Licarienp, which is in the northern di-
vision of the hundred of Orrrow, county of STAFFORD,
2% miles (8.E.) from Lichfield, containing 14 inhabitants.

FREEHOLDERS' QUARTER, a township in the
parish of LoNGHORSLEY, western division of Morrnrsa
ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, containing 109
inhabitants.

FREETHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Bro-
rIELD, county of NorroLk, 4 miles (8.) from Acle,
containing 304 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage with the rectory of Reedham, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Norwich, endowed with £400
royal bounty. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

FREMINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Fre-
MINGTON, county of Devon, 3 miles (W. by 8.) from
Barnstaple, containing 1099 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and dio-
cese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £20. 0. 5.,
and in the patronage of the Rev. C, Hill. = The church
is dedicated to St. Peter. There is a place of worship
for Independents. Fremlington is mentioned in ancient
records as a borough, and it once sent members to
parliament in the reign of Edward ITI. In the neigh-
bourhood are beds of hmestone, enclosed in a stratum
of blueish building stone; pipe and potters’ clay are
also found. At Fremington Pill, a small estuary of the
river Tor, coal barges discharge their cargoes, and mer-

chant vessels await the spring tides, A vage is claim-
ed by the lord of the manor. =
FRENCH-MOOR, a tything in the ish of

Bnouon'rom. hundred of THOrRNGATE, Andover division
of the county of SovraAMPTON, 74 miles (N. g,) from
Romsey, oontalmng44 inhabitants.
- FRENSHAM comprising the tything of

Dockingfield, in the hundred of Avron, Alton (North)
division of the county of SovTHAMPTON, and the tything
of Chart with Pitfold, in the hundred of Farnmam,
county of Sunmb: miles (8;!.%‘ ﬁ'o%mham.“ and con-
tnnmg 1433 tants. e li 18 a Eerpetual .

in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and diocese of

two extensive lheets

FRENZE) ow . 1 FARVA), s
in the hundred of Diss, county : - mile
(E. by N,) from Diss, eontdnl.ngﬁo tl.,é.;,'
living is & discharged rectory, MW y of
Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, P ¥
books at £2, 13, 4., and endowedvnth&ﬂﬂordyﬂbm
James Smith, Esq was patron in 1824, The ch
is dedicated to St, Andrew.

FRESDON, a tything in the parish of Hmnwon‘m,
hundred of HicaworrtH, CrRICKLADE, and STAPLE, "
county of Wirts, contcunmg 24 inhabitants.

FRESHFORD, a parish in the hundred of BaTn-
Forum, county of Soumnsm',ﬁ— miles (8. E,) from Bath,
containing 587 inhabitants, The living is a disc
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £7. 7. 8%.,
and in the patronage of the Rev, George Bythersea,
The church, dedicated to St. Peter, is a very neat struc-
ture. There is @ place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. . The Frome takes a winding course through
the parish from south to north-west, and then north,
when it falls into the Avon, which forms the boundary
of the parish on the northern side. The Kennet and
Avon canal runs parallel with the Avon, at the distance
of about half amile from the village, which is pleasantly
situated on the southern declivity of a hill, finely wooded,
and abounding with rich and extensive views, The hills
in the neighbourhood contain ample stores of the Bath
stone, limestone, and fullers’ earth, There is an extq—
sive manufactory for fine broad cloth, The ruins of an
old hermitage and friary, probably connected with Hin-
ton abbey, may still be seen, as may also the remains of
a Roman encampment,

FRESHWATER, a parish in the liberty of Wesr
MEepina, Isle of Wxght division of the county of Socu-
AmrroN, M mile (8.8, W.) from Yarmouth, con
876 inhabiwants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £9. 8. 4., and in the pa mnmthem
and Tellows of St. John's College,
church, dedicated to Al
addition of seventy-f
are free, the Incorp




v( Lol

o ' S : T T

b L IR 4. ¥

e P e g A e s
aining 1231 i

K, 7% miles (B, N. E.) fror
abitants. The living is o
' Viearage with the vectory of Withersdale, in the. arch-
 deaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, ‘rated in
. the king's books at, £17. 17, 1., and in the patronage of

;ﬁ_‘!’d&iaﬂﬂmm&l‘(}onege, Camb

he ¢hurch Ve dediekted 6 St. Peter and St Pasl

1bis i ‘was born in this parish, in which
founded m‘ma school,

~ FRESTON, a parish in the hundred of Samrorp,
_eounty of SurroLk, 3§ miles (8.) from Ipswich, con-
" taining 189 inha 8. The living is a discharged
Ty, i ' nry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king’s books at £6. 7. 6., and
in the patronage of the Rev.J. Bond. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter, The is situated on the
banks of the river Orwell, and abounds with beautiful
and picturesque scenery, the view of which is greatly
enriched by the old ruin called Freston Tower.

' FRETHERNE, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of Warrsrone, county of GLoucesTer, 9%
miles (W, N. W.) from Stroud, containing 210 inhabi-
tants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 6. 8. The Rev. J. H. Dunsford was pa-
tron in 1824. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. This
is supposed to be the place called in the Saxon Chronicle
Fethanleage, where Ceawlin, King of Wessex, obtained a
victory over the Britons in 584. Fretherne cliff rises

xty feet above the surface of ‘the Severn, on the bank
‘f ‘which it is gitnated, The Clifford family had anciently
castle in this

s
: AM, a parish in the hundred of
Tavermam, county of Norvork, 2} miles (S. W. by W.)
from Coltishall, containing 248 inhabitants. The living
i8 a rectory with that of Stanninghall, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books
at £10. Lord Suffield was patron in 1807 church
dedicated to St. Peter.
FRICKLEY, ubint parish with Clayton, in the
1 division of the wapentake of STRAFFORTH
and Trox s, West riding of the county of Yorx, 103
iles (£.by N.) from Barnesley, containing, with Clay-
y is a perpetual ‘curacy
v and diocese of York,

Tad s

county of YORK,
, containing 275
harged vicarage, rated

AR e
“"i'ﬂi- 13. 4

., and in the peculiar

of the ry of Wet-
‘n,rcl‘:!of"rurk; Whiers’ $4°

D0 in the . Upnor cas
 beth to defend the pass:

Fflizl‘:
lﬁgnmmme, county of Esspx. See FRYERN-
FRIESDEN, a joint chapelry with Nettlesden, in

the parish of PigLestaorwe, hundred of CorresLor,
county of BuckiNciam, ¢ miles (N.E.) from Berkhamp-
stead, containing 108 inhabitants, d

FRIESTHORPE, a parish in the wapentake of Law-
RESS, parts of Linpsky, county of LincoLx, 5% miles
(8.W. by 8.) from Market-Raisen, containing 45 inha-
Efitax'xtsi 'l:he living is a discharged rectory, in the pecus
liar jurisdiction and patronage of the Dean and Chapter
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £4. 10, and
endowed with £400 royal bounty.

FRIESTON, a parish in the wapentake of Skir-
BECK, parts of HoLLaxD, county of LincoLy, 31 miles
(E.) from Boston, containing 662 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage united to the vicarage of
Butterwick in 1751, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £16. 11. 10.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £300
parliamentary grant. G, Scholey, Esq. was patron in
1816. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists.

FRILFORD, a chapelry in the parish of MArRCHAM,
hundred of Ock, county of Berxks, 4 miles (W.) from
Abingdon, containing 152 inhabitants.

FRILSHAM, a parish in the hundred of Farrcross,
county of Berks, 6§ miles (8.8.E.) from East Msley,
containing 171 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £8, and in the patron-
age of Robert Floyd, Esq. The church is dedicated to
St. Frideswide. Here is a school endowed with the
interest of £200,

FRIMLEY, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
Asu which is in the first division of the hundred of
Goprry, county of SURREY, 4 miles (S.W. by 8.) from
Bagshot, containing 1284 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and
diocese of Winchester, endowed with £200 private be.
nefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £ 1500 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Warden and Fellows
of Winchester College. The church has recently been
rebuilt, and contains four hundred and fifty free sittings,
the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
and chapels having granted £400 towards defraying the
expense.

FRINDSBURY, a parish in the hundred of Smam-
weLL, lathe of AvLesrorp, county of Kent, Qmilel
(N. by w.) from Rochester, containing 1562 inhabitants.
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Rochester, rated in the king's books at £10, 13.113.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Rochester.
church de&icated to ﬁtu S;int;‘, Tnd. ;lm a cmnmmdm e 98
ing eminence risi m the Medway, along ONEd

f which river, m‘:lgover the town of Rochester, theview
from the church-yard is extremely fine. There is a

 place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The parish is

bounded on the south and east by the Thames, and the
Thames and Medway canal ““"t&‘“%ﬂ*m
way, on the banks of which are several wharfs, Brick-
making is carried on to some extent, and chalk is found
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a moat, and consists of a %bbng
form, connécted with a m%&‘ﬁ M a::.
FRING, a parish in the h‘nﬂi‘eﬂ of ’Sﬁmuos,
%of NowrroLk, 8 miles (8.W. by W.) from Burn-
estgate, containing 189 ‘inhabitants. The living
is a curacy, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich. endowed with £200 private
benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £500 parliamen-
tary grant, and in the pttronage of the Dean and Chap-
ter of Norwich.  The church is dedicated to All Saints.

FRINGFORD, a parish in the hundred of PLoveu-
LEY, count'y‘ of Oxvorp, 3} miles (N.N.E.) from Bices-
ter, conl 289 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford, rated in the
Mkl at 512 16. 0%, and in the patronage of

The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

" 'FRINSTED, a parish in the hundred of EyHORNE,
lathe of Aviesrorp, county of Kent, 44 miles
(8. by w.) from Sittingbourne, containing 152 inhabi-
tants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at
£9. 11. 8. S. T. Pattenson, Esq. was patron in 1822.
The church is dedicated to St. Dunstan.

FRINTON, a parish in the hundred of TenprING,
county of Essex, 18 miles (S.E.) from Manningtree,
containing 45 inhabitants. The living is- a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese
of Lendon, rated in the king’s books at £7. 6. 8. W.
Lushington, Esq. was patron in 1818, This parish lies
on the shore of the North sea, which is continually en-
croaching on the land.

FRISBY, a chapelry in the parish of GaAvLsy, hun-
dred of GarTrer, county of LwrcesTer, 85 miles
(E. by 8.) from Leicester, containing 18 inhabitants.
The chapel is desecrated.

"~ FRISBY on the WREAK, a parish in the eastern
division of the hundred of GoscorE, county of Lricus-
TER, 44 miles (W.8.w.) from Melton-Mowbray, con-
_taining 876 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln; rated in the king's books at £7. 16. 8., and
in the patronage of the Crown, The church is dedi-
cated to St. Thomas h Becket. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The river Wreak runs
‘the parish,
ISKNEY, a parish in the Marsh division of t,hc
tﬁke of CANDLESHOR, parts of Linvsey, county
‘of LiNcoLy, 4 miles (8,W.) from Wainfleet, ccnmnmg
1268 inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated inthe
books at £15. 6. 6., and in the patronage of W.
Booth, Esq. The chureh is dedicated to All Saints.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
" FRISTON, & parish in ﬂ\e hundred of PLomescATE,
eonnt’y@ S‘&nom, 3 mﬂes (G.E.) fromSnmndhm

Mp vi& Wmﬁuy 'hr
parish of WrensURY,-hundred of NAnTwICH, #
palatine of CumsTERr, 6 miles (s.w. by'w.) MM
wich, containing 526 inhabitants, AP

FRITHAM, a tything in Mpm of the parish of
Bramsuaw which is in the hundred of Nyw Fonest,
New Forest (East) division of the county of Sours.
AMPTON, 3% miles (N.W.) from Lyndhurst, Thé pupu
lation is returned with the parish,

FRITHELSTOCK, a parish in the hnndredofSnnn-
BEAR, county of Devon, 2 miles (W.) from Great Tor-
rington, containing 632 inhabitants. The living is'a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and
diocese of Exeter, endowed with £200 private benefac-
tion, £400 royal bounty, and £ 1000 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of Mrs. Prudence Johns. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary and 'St. Gregory. There
is'a charity school, with a small endowment given by
Mr, and Mrs. Gay. In the reign of Henry III, Sir
Robert Beauchamp founded a small hotse of Augustine
canons, dedicated to the Virgin Mary, St. Gregory, and
St. Edmund, and valued at the dissolution at £127.2. 4.
per annum : a small portion of the conventual. ehurch
is yet remaining.

FRITH-VILLE, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
western division of the soke of BorLiNGBROKE, parts of
LainpsEy, county of LincoLnn, containing 272 inhabit-
ants. This liberty, with six others, was created such
by an act of parliament in 1812, on account of the
drainage of about fourteen thousand acres in Wild.
more Fen, and in the East and West Fens. The !l\il
bitants attend the chapel of Carrington.

FRITTENDEN, a parish in the hundred of Cl.ul-
BROOKE, lathe of Scray county of Kent, 44 ‘miles.
(N.E.byN_) from Cranbrooke, containing 799 inhabitants, -
The livi a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Canterbury, rated in the 8 books at £15. 18. 'Q.,
nndmthepatromgeof.l L. Ho
dedicated to St. Mary, ls 1
style of English archite

FRITTON, apmshmﬁehmdredof D
‘county of NoRFOLK, 24 miles (E. by N.) from St.
Stratton, containing 275 inhabitants. The
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
endowbmyed with ale‘:oo ;;ntebeneﬁdﬁm,dg

The Rev owes was pam
church is &dicmdto St. Catherine. -
FRITTON, a
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in that part of the parish of
mnx which is in the hundred of KincscLERE,
division of the county of SovrmamrroN, #
of a mile (N.w,) from Kingsclere, with which the popu-
hhon is returned.
FBDCE&TER, a parish in the lower division of the
of WairsToNE, county of GLOUGCESTER, 5%
mileq (W.by 8.) from Stroud, containing 437 inhabitants.
,The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
.and diocese of Glouncester, rated in the king’s books at
£10, 5,10, Lord Ducie was patron in 1814. The
.church is dedicated to St. Peter. - The village is situated
at the foot of a lofty hill, from the top of which may be
obtained an extensive and beautiful vipw of the vale,
watered by the Severn., A college of prebendaries is
said to have anciently existed here, which having been
_suppressed, its revenue was given to the abbey of St.
Peter at Gloucester.
... FRODESLEY, a parish in the hundred of Con-
DOVER, county of Saror, 83 miles (W. by N.) from Much
Wenlock, containing 179 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
books at £4. 14,, and in the patronage of the Rev.T. R.
Gleadow, M.A. The church, dedicated to St. Mark, was
rebuilt in 1809, in a plain but very neat style, Several
years ago, coal mines were opened, but they do not
present the appearance of having been much worked.
The Roman Wa -gtreet, on the line of the present
turnpike-road, runs through the parish.
. FRODINGHAM, a parish in the eastern division of
mmtake of ManvLEY, parts of LiNpsgg, county of
WWLN, 8‘ milec (W, N. W.) from Glandford-Bridge,
ompr ships of Bromby and Scunthorpe,
itants. The living is a dis-
archdeaconry of Stow, and
ok ! in the king’s books at
ﬁdfendoied with £200 royal bounty.
was patron in 1827. The church is

DID GHAM (NORTH) a parish in the northern
‘the wapentake of Houprrness, East riding
ppqutyaf Yorxg, 53 miles (S. E, by E.) from
containing 575 inhabitants, The living
in the archdeaconry of the
d diocese of York, rated in the king's
owed with £20 per annum private
royal bounty. The Rev. Francis
milmq; The church is dedicated to
m m of womhip for Inﬂzpen
Aha. i d‘ qvmk

’F:rﬂ%ﬂ

Mﬁowmmmm There is a tri-
, fling endowment, the gift of the Rev. Samuel M
e o b e, 2

1 (SOUTH), a to in thlt

of the parish of OwrnorNE which is. in the mutm
division of the wapentake of Hovorrness, East riding
of the county of Yomx, 4 miles (N.) from Patrington,
cunﬁl:l&ngsn inhabitants,

HAM, a parish in the second divisi

hundred of Enmsnuxy, county palatine of Cﬁ:‘m
comprising the market town of Frodsham, the chapelry
of Alvanley, the lordship of Frodsham, and the town-
ships of Helsby, Klngsley, Manley, Newton, and
Norley, and containing 5451 inhabitants, of which
number, 1556 are in the town of Frodsham, 10 miles
(N.E. byN.) from Chester, and 192 (N.N.W.) from
London. Frodsham is mentioned in Domesday-hook as
being the property of the Earl of Chester, The town, si-
tuated on an eminence on the banks of the river Weever,
near its confluence with the Mersey, consists of a broad
street, a mile’in length, extending along the road from
Chester to Warrington, and another branching from it
and leading to the church : at the east end is a stone
bridge of four arches, over the Weever, which is here
navigable, and at the west end anciently stood a Nor-
man castle. A charter was granted about 1220, hy
Ranulph de Blundeville, sixth earl of Chester, to the
burgesses of Frodsham, which was pleaded in reply to
awrit of Quo Warranto, issued in the 22nd of Henry VIIL,,
and confirmed in the 33d of Henry VIIL and 21st of
Elizabeth ; but the manor having been separated from
the earldom about the beginning of the seventeenth cen-
tury, the chartered privileges of the burgesses expired.
Courts leet and baron are now held twice a year, and
there are two presentments, one for the borough and
fee, and the other for the borough and lordship; and
for each of these townships a constable is appointed and
sworn in court. The lord of the manor has the tolls of
a market held on Saturdays, and of two fairs, on the 15th
of May and the 21st of August: the market, owing to
the vicinity of Warrington, is inconsiderable, The prin-
cipal branch of trade carried on is the refining of salt,
besides which here are flour-mills and cotton factories,
In the township of Manley is a quarry of excellent
freestone. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books at
£28. 13. 114, and in the patronage of the Dean and
Canons of Christ Church, Oxford. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Lawrence, is situated on elevated ground,
adjacent to the village of Overton, but within the town-
ship of Frodsham : it is built of red freestone,
and appears to be of high antiquity, as the nm«dw
plays manifest traces of Norman architecture. ~An
organ was erected in 1790, and the organist reemes a
salary arising from a tenement called the Organ Lot.
Wesleyan Methodists have a place of worship here.
There is a free school, built about 1660, near the church.:
the master is chosen by twenty-four feoffees, consisting
of the vicar and churchwardens, with four Teoffees out
of the township and lordship, three out of Kingsley,
and two each from Norley, Newton, Alvanley, Manley,
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estate in Overton. Mrs. Gastrell bequeathed a' rent-
charge of £10 per annum, upon an' estate near the town,

to the W, nswew,ﬁrmmwmmm
oqahmsoftheclcrgymthe ‘archdeaconry of Chester ;
Mthaemmouchuihbhmmbﬂmm-

portance,
3 FR:OGGA.TT a tovmdﬂp in the pa.mh of Bake-
wxl.n, hundred of Higm Peax, county of DewrBY, 2
miles (N. E. by E.). &omStony«»Mddleton, containing 179
inhabitants. :
. FROME-SELWOOD, a market town and parish in
‘the hundred of Froms, county of SomerseT, 25 miles
(N.E.) from er, and 105 (W. by 8.) from London,
umﬁnmg 12,411 inhabitants, This place takes its
name from the river, called by the Saxons, Frau, now
Frome, which, passing by the town, runs into the Avon,
mnear Bristol ; and its adjunct, from its situation in an
ancient and extensive forest, formerly infested with
hordes of banditti, whose depredations were a terror to
the surrounding neighbourhood, but from which they
were expelled, by cutting down large tracts of wood-
ldind, and establishing small farms. A monastery
was  founded here in 705, and dedicated to St. John
the Baptist, by Aldhelm, afterwards Bishop of Sher-
borne; it was plundered in the Danish wars, and
the monks were dizpersed, but the church continued
till the middle of the twelith century; and the re-
mains, together with those of a chapel belonging to
a &mall nunnery dedicated to St.Catherine, have been
converted into tenements for the poor. The town is
pleasantly situated on the morth-east declivity of a
hill, in the ancient Forest of Selwood, and consists
chiefly of a great number of streéts, irregularly built,
and inconveniently narrow, but from their situation
tolerably clean. A new opening through the town has
recently been made, forming a very handsome street,
with well built houses on each side. The buildings in
general are constructed of small rough stone, and roofed
with stone dug in the neighbourhood ; the inhabitants
are well supplied with water, and the town has been
vecently improved by the erection of a commodious
market-house and other buildings. Over the Frome,
which abounds with excellent trout and eels, is a neat
stone bridge of five arches: the environs are pleasant,
and contain some bandsome seats. Frome has long
been celehrated for its woollen manufacture, of which
the principal articles are broad cloths and keueyua'ea
of very superior quality : the manufacture of woolscards
ig ;also carried on to a great extent, and formerly they
were supplied from this place to almost every town in
England. = Frome has long been in great repute for the
excellent quality of its beer, which is kept to a great age.
TW ‘market is on Wednésday, and theve is a
‘one on Saturday : the fairs ave on February 24th
and. qumbn %th, for cattle and cheese.. The ommty
magistrates hold here petty sessions for the division ; and
a hailiff, two constables,and a or the town-
1 ~are chosen annually
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of a nave, north and mhm;lahmeddud v ’ :
pulchral chapels, with a-square tower surmounted
a spire, and a morth and south porch ; in
many handsome and iuteremug monuments. ma
Church, erected in 1818, by subscription
the inhabitants, is a handsome edifice in the
style of English architecture, econtaining mine M
dred sittings, four hundred of which are free, the In-
corporated Society for the enlargement of c¢hurches
and chapels having grunted £100 towards defraying
the expense: the living is a perpetual curacy, in’ the
patronage of the Vicar “of Frome. Tn the Woodlands,
three miles south of the town, & c¢hurch was erécted
in 1712, by Thomas, Lord Viscount Weymatith, who
made the living a perpetual curacy, by endowing it
with £60 per annum, arising from an estate at Pen-
nard, in this county, to be paid to a minister ap-
pointed by his successors in the estate of Long“.leat-
it is forther endowed with £50 per annum, by’ the
will jof the Hon. Henry Frederick Thynne, a‘nd ‘also
with' the clear profits of the estate of Codrington' in
this parish. The church is a handsome edifice, with a
tower surmounted by an octagonal spive; the woodlands
which surround it ave the only parts of the ancient
Forest of Selwood which exhibit any traces of ‘their
former character. There are places of worship for Bap-
tists, the Society of Friends, Independents, Wesleyan
Methodists, and Presbyterians. The free grammar school
was founded in the reign of Edward VI, and is endow-
ed with £6 per annum, which, from time immenorial,
has been paid out of the Treasury, to  which, £5' per
annum has been subsequently added, but all docu-
ments relating to its foundation and further endow-
ment are lost: there are no scholars at present on the
foundation ; the master takes private pupils, and the
premises eonsist only of a large school-room dnd
ante-room. A charity school, in which thirty-seven boys
are clothed and educated for four years, at the end of
which time they ave apprenticed, is supported fromy
the funds of certain lands vested in twenty trustées.
Adjoining the school are almshouses for mmy-w i
aged women, supported out of the same- funds !
produce an annual income of nearly £70, arising pe
from property given by the oviginal ’ founder,
Leversedge, in the retgn of Edmd IV, and
from subsequent benefaciions,  In that part of the
called Keyford is an asylum, ﬁmnded’“lh 6
Robert Stevens, Esq., who :
g::hper \e;m. Bank'tn:fu’i'm,g“‘m
ng, and cducation of forty gils, to
also in service, or as apprentices ; and with £ 70(
samefmtds‘;ﬁr'mw | ‘aged




ch mumber, 298 are in the township of Bishop's
3 , 4% miles (8. by E) from Bromyard. ’lgw
_ is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
" Hereford, rated in the king's books at £8. 5. 10., and
__in the patronage of the Rev. John Hopton, The church
' is dedicated to St. Mary. There is an endowed free

. FROOME (CANON), a parish in the hundred of
Rapnnow, county of Hererorp, 6 miles (N. W. by N.)
from Ledbury, containing 105 inhabitants. The living
isa discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £4. 18. 4.,
endowed with £400 private benefaction,and :£400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Rev. John Hopton.
The church is dedicated to St. James. The river Froome
bounds the parish on the north.

. FROOME (CASTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Raprow, county of Hererorp, 7 miles (N.N. W.) from
Ledbury, containing 180 inhabitants. The living isa

,in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford,
vated in the king's books at £5. 13. 4., and in the
patronage of Francis Freeman, Esq. The church is
dedicated to St. Michael. The river Froome runs
through the parish, in which there is a considerable

pantity of limestone, also stone for building,

. FROOME (HALMONDS), a township in the parish
of Bismor's FroomE, hundred of Rapuow, county of
Hererorn, 5 miles (8. by E.) from Bromyard, con-

; taining 275 inhabitants.

W . FROOME (ST. QUINTIN), a parishin the hundred
of Torrervorp, Dorchester division of the county of
Dorsgr, 9% miles (8. by N.) from Beaminster, con-

120 inhabitants, The living is a rectory with
, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese
stol, rated in the king’s books at £15. 7. 1.,
the patronage of the Crown. The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary. The parish derives its name
gituation on the river Frome, and its prefix
ancient lords the St. Quintins. At Caldwell,
parish, there was anciently a chapel.
ME-VAUCHURCH, a parish in the hundred
grrory, Dorchester division of the county of
®T, 74 miles (N, W. by W.) from Dorchester, con-
g 105 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, united
to that of Batcombe, in the archdeaconry of
diocese of Bristal, rated in the king's books.
and in the joint patronage of the Dowager
Sandwich and the Marquis of Cleveland.
in 1774, gave a rent-charge of £21 per
children.

.f"‘tuwilh;i‘i’ the hundred of Bry-
SurroLk, 43 miles (N.N.W.) from
390 inhabitants. The living is a

1

.

g
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ted in the king's books at £1%.
t. was patron in 1806. The
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the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and po

DarLINGTON ward, and diocese of Winchester,
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county palatine of Durmam, 34 miles (W.) from Wal-

The population is returned with the parish.
Here was formerly a chapel, which has long since gone
to decay, but its site still retains the name of Chapel
Close. . There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. John Hinks, in 1735, and Mary Todd, in
1824, bequeathed property for the endowment of a
school, now producing an annual income of about. £40.
A school-room, with a house for the master, was erected
by subscription in 1747. i

FROWLESWORTH, a parish in the hundred of
GuraLAxTON, county of Lmicrster, 43 miles (N.W.
by N.) from Lutterworth, containing 301 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£12, 10, and in the patronage of the Trustees of
the Rev. S. G. Noble. The church is dedicated to St.
Nicholas. 'An almshouse was founded in 1725, by Chief
Baron Smith, and liberally endowed with land and money
for the maintenance of eighteen widows, who receive
£20 per annum each.

FROXFIELD, a chapelry in the parish and hundred
of Easr-Mzon, Alton (South) division of the county of
SovTaAMPTON, 83 miles (N. W. by W.) from Petersfield,
contoining 548 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy annexed to the vicarage of East-Meon, in the
peculiar jurisdiction of the vicar thereof, and in the
patronage of the Bishop of Winchester. The chapel is
dedicated to St. Peter. Robert Love, in 1721, be-
queathed £1000, with which a free school was founded
and endowed for the education of twenty of the poorest
boys of ‘Froxfield, being, in 1767, farther endowed with.
£300, the bequest of Francis Beckford, Hsq.: the in-:
come is about £55 per annum, for which twenty-two
boys are instructed.

FROXFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Kin-
WARDSTONE, county of Wirts, 84 miles (W. by 8.) from
Hungerford, containing 508 inhabitants. The living is
a discharped vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Wilts,
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at
£8. 16. 4., endowed with £200 private ben ion, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patvonage of the Dean
and Canons of Windsor. The church is dedicated to
All Saints, There is a noble almshouse, founded in
1686, by Sarah, Duchess Dowager of Somerset, who be-
queathed considerable landed and other property for its
erection, and for the maintenance of thirty widows, the
number to be increased to fifty, when the revenue should
exceed £400 per annum, Twenty apartments were
added to the original building in 1775, the whole
forming an oblong quadrangle, with a small chapel
within it, the minister of which has an annual stipend
of £70. Thirty widows of clergymen, <from‘nw.:.pd%
of England, and twenty widows of laymen, not having
an income of more than £20 per annum, are ‘
this charity, the allowance to each of whom is £21 a
T e
chosen from the nobility and gen ' the coun
who nominate the m;r:, W.W
- FROYLE, a parish in the hundred of Axrox, Alton
(North) division of the county of Sourmameron, 3%
miles (N.E.) from Alton, containing 734. inhabitants.
The is a ‘ ¢, in the archdeaconry

¥
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£11. 12, 3., endowed with £200 M Mtlm,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the

Rev. Sir Thomas Miller, Bart, 'ﬂech‘irchisdedrcated
to St. Mary. Three children o? are entitled
wpnrmkeofthebeneﬁ.tofedncttionntStAndrews
ichool, Holybourn. The river Wey runs through the

FB.YERNING a puuh in the hundred of CHELMSs-
FORD, county of Essex, 1 mile (N. W.by W.) from In-
gatestone, containing 612 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the 'at \ onry of Essex, and diocese of
London, the king's books at £9, and in the pa-
tronage of the Warden n.nd Fellows of Wadham College,
Oxford. ‘The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

FRYSTONE (FERRY), a parish in the upper divi-
sion of the wapentake of OscoLpcross, West riding
of the county of Yorxk, 4 of amile (W.N.W.) from Ferry-
Bridge, containing 777 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Dean and Chapter of York, rated in the king's books at
£5. 10, 2, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Sub-
Chanter and Vicars Choral of the Cathedral Church of
York. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

FRYSTONE (MONK), a parish in the lower divi-
sion of the wapentake of Banxs'romn-Asn, West riding
of the county of York, comprising the townships of Bur-
ton-Salmon, Hillam, and Monk-Frystone, and containing
860 inhabitants, of which number, 409 are in the town-
ship of Monk- Frystone 4 miles (N.N.E.) from Ferry-
Bridge. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of York, endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £1300 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Prebendary of Wistow in the
Cathedral Church of York.

FRYTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Hovineuam which is in the wapentake of RyepaLe,
North riding of the county of Yorxk, 6§ miles (W.N. W.)
fmm New Malton, containing 62 inhabitants.

FUGGLESTONE (ST. PETER), a parish in the
hundred of Brancu and DovLg, county of Wivts, # of a
mile (B,) from Wilton, contammg, with Bemerton, 528
inhabitants. The living is a rectory with that of Be-
mu'tan, in the nrchdea.conry of Wilts, and diocese of Sa-

lisbury, rated in the king's books at £24, and in the
a&w of the Earl of Pembroke, Accordingto Leland,
King of the West Saxons, having been slain by
the Danes in 827, was buried here. An hospital for
leprous brethren and sisters, dedicated to St. Giles and
St, Anthony, is stated to have been founded at this
place by Adelicia, second queen of Henry L: its re-
venue, at the time of the general dissolution, was valued
at £5. 13. 4.; the establishment was continued, and
MW a master (whnmuptbe a elergymm), and
ﬁmm people, who have ly
[ the ancient bml%
m'ﬂ ih 'Ndl it is

GRS o o

h architecture;
portions inthe Norman, carly English,
nﬁas,w%awmmmﬁow* (R l.f“ 4 ,,,;@}
gmmmm in the hundred of !nm:mmm
of CamsrinGr, 5 miles (E.N. E.) from comy-
prising the parishes of All Saints and St.V j
containing t
former isavi ,rated in the
and in the patronuge of the Bishop of Ely; and that of
the latter a rectory, rated at £ 25. 15. 24, and in the
patronage of the Master and Fellows of St. John's College,
Cambridge : they are in the a.rchdetconry and diocese of
Ely. Both churches were situated in one church-yard,
but one having fallen into decay, it was taken down
in 1776: the benefices still continue distinct..  There
is a place of worship for Independents.. On the north
side of the church-yard are some ancient almshouses
for eleven poor persons, Elizabeth March, in 1722; be-
queathed a farm, now producing about £ 100 a year, for
the endowment of schools in' the parishes of Fulbourn,
Haddenham, Brinkley, Fen-Ditton, and Histon, equally.

FULBROOK, a chapelry in the parish of Burrorp,
hundred of CrADLINGTON, county of Ox¥oRrn, § of amile
(N. E. by N.) from Burford, containing 351 inhabitants.
The chapel, dedicated to St. James, has lately received
an addition of sixty-seven sittings, of which forty-one
are free, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement, of
churches and chapels having granted £60 towards de-
fraying the expense,

FULBROOK, a parish in the Snitterfield dlvim
of the hundred of BARLICEWAY, county of WARWICK; 4'
miles (N.E. by N.) from Stratford upon Avon, contain-
ing 77 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, united in:
1428 to the perpetual curacy of Sherbourne, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
bookg at £0. 14. 2. The church has been demolished.

FULFORD, a tything partly in the parishes of
Cueriton-Frrzeaine and SHOBROOKE, in the western
division of the hundred of Bupreicu, but chiefly in
the parish and hundred of CrEpITON, cCounty of Devon,
14 mile (E. by N.) from Crediton, wnth which tkepopn.-
lation is returned.

FULFORD, a chapelry in the parish of S!m
southern division of the hundred of P!umwm
of Starrorp, 4§ miles (N. E.) from Stone. The popula-
tion is returned with the parish. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, in the nrehdemonryoi Stafford, and
of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with sm
benefaction, £200 'bom ,mdﬁm
grant, and in the pa :
chapel, dedicated to St Na ; lu,h;::w

4

cther 1023 inhabitants : the living «ﬁ' ;
'shooks at €14, 17.;
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~ mile (8.) from York. The living is a perpetual curacy,
£800 private benefaction, £800 royal hounty, and £600

i E.pnun ‘grant, and mthepmomg: of Thomas
, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Oswald. There
is @ place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The
York barracks, and a lunatic asylum, called the Retreat,
in connexion with the Society of Friends, are situated
in ‘this'parish. John Key, Esq., in 1771, assigned a
messuage and rent-charge of £9. 12. a year, for the edu-
cation of twenty children,
7 FULFORD-WATER, a township in the parish of
Furrorp-Amso, partly in the liberty of St. Prrer of
York, and partly in the wapentake of Ouvze and
Derwent, East riding of the county of York, 2}
miles (8. by E.) from York, containing 35 inhabitants.
“+ FULHAM, a parish in the Kensington division of
¢he hundred of OssursTong, county of MippLEsEx,
containing, with the chapelry of Hammersmith, 15,301
* inhabitants, of which number, 6492 are in the township
of Fulham, 4 miles (8.W.by W.) from London. This
, situated on the north bank of the Thames, con-
sists of several irregularly built streets, some of which
are paved, and lighted with gas, and is amply sup-
plied with water from the river and from springs. It
is a place of considerable antiquity, the Danes having
fixed their head-quarters here during their invasion of
in 879 ; from which, after wintering there, they
sct sail for Flanders in the spring. In 1642, the Earl
of Essex, the parliamentary general, caused a bridge
to be built, on barges and lighters, across the Thames,
from Fulham to Putney, for the conveyance of his
army and artillery into Surrey; and the parliamen-
tary army under Sir Thomas Fairfax was quartered
here in 1647, The manor, which appears to have
to the see of London from the end of the
“seventh century, was sold by order of the parliamentary
‘commissioners in 1647, but restored in 1660 ; and the
 manor-house, or palace of Fulham, has been, from a
 very early period, the usual summer residence of the
“bishops of andm It is built of brick, the oldest part
m, erected in the reign of Henry VIL, by Bishop

. The edifice consists of buildings sur-
‘two courts; on the north side of the inner
‘the chapel, the windows of which are orna-

with stained glass, the greater part of which
emoved from the chapé] of L House, Alders-
Bishop Compton, distinguished as a bo-

beginning of the last century, improved
by the introdpcti of a number of curious

itk

s, and much of the land is occupied by
ps, who are noted for the cultivation of
nufactory for earthenware, in imitation
shed in 1684 ; but this has been
1 by a manufactory for brown stone-

tants, : AT
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has been projected to form a communication with this
canal and the Thames, by a navigable line commencing
p@ar.Fqlhun, but the undertaking has not been ecarried
into_effect further than Kensington, where there is a
basin. This place is connected with Putney in Surrey
biﬂ? wooden bridge over the Thames, built by Mr.
_P thps, carpenter to George II. Fulham is within the
Jurisdiction of a court of requests for the recovery of
debts nnd.ex: 40s., held in Kingsgate-street, Holborn.
. The living comprises a rectory and a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese of London,
the former a sinecure, rated in the king's books at £26,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of London ; and the
latter rated at £10, in the patronage of the Rector,
The church, dedicated to All Saints, is an ancient stone
structure, consisting of a nave, aisles, and chancel, with
a handsome tower at the west end, in the decorated
English style: within it is a single stone stall, with
a canopy ornamented with quatrefoils; and some
ancient sepulchral monuments. Among the distin-
guished persons interred here may be mentioned Dr.
William Butts, physician to Henry VIIL; Dr. Richard
Zouch, professor of Civil Law at Oxford, in the reign of
Charles I.; Bishops Compton, Gibson, Sherlock, and
Lowth ; Dr, Richard Fiddes, author of a Life of Car-
dinal Wolsey ; and Dr. William Cadogan, an eminent
physician, who died in 1797. There is a chapel at Wal-
ham Green, dedicated to St. John, which was erected in
1829, at the expense of £9683. 17, 9., raised by sub-
scription and a grant from the parliamentary commis-
sioners: it contains one thousand three hundred and
seventy sittings, of which five hundred and forty-four are
free. In the Fulham division of the parish, on the south
side of the road between Kensington and Hammersmith,
is a proprietary chapel, erected in 1813 at the expense
of Richard Hunt, Esq., and dedicated to St. Mary ; and
in the Hammersmith division are the church of St.
Paul, and the chapel of St. Peter, the latter built by
parliamentary grant in 1829. There is a place of wor-
ship for Independents. A library is supported by sub-
scription. A National school for boys, and another for
girls, containing about three hundred children of both
sexes, eighty of whom are clothed, were established in
1811, and endowed with the produce of various benefac-
tions, amounting to about £50 per annum; but they
are principally supported by voluntary contributions.
An infant school was established in 1830, Sir William
Powell, Bart., in 1680, founded twelve almshouses for
poor widows, and endowed them with property producing
£51 per annum, to which considerable additions have
been made by subsequent benefac'tors.' : Dl‘.' 'l‘homu
Turner, in 1706, bequeathed £ 100, directing the produce
to be applied in apprenticing poor children; and there
are many other donations for charitable purposes,
FULKING, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
‘EppurTon which is in the hundred of Poyxines, m
of Lrwes, county of Sussex, 4 miles (S.W._}’:
Hurst-Pierpoint, containing 177 inhabitants, =~
 FULLAWAY, a tything in the parish o
NixGs, hundred of SWANBOROVGH, county of !
miles (E. by N.) from Devizes, containing 14 inkiab

of Lanpsgy, county of LiNcoLx, §
Horncastle, containing 254 inhabi
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a rectory, in the arch Lincoln,
rated 11, 56 Al B mg’m# " Rockifi
was patron’ in 784 i ; ted to. St
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'FULMER, aparls'h xnthewm B'rokn,
of BuckinGruam, 45 miles ss ﬁ)"ﬁdth Beaconsﬂ
containing ‘340 ‘nhabitants." The living is a rectory
not in charge, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and
diocese of Lincoln, and in ‘the patronage of the Dean
and Canons of Windsor." The church, dedicated to St.
James, was built ‘at’ the expense of Sir Marmaduke
Darell, in 1610, Falmer was formerly a chapelry to the
rectory of , but ‘was separated therefrom, and
made & distinet’ pa.rxsh in the reign of Edward VL. :

FULMODESTON, a parish in the hundred of Gaxv-
Low, county of NorroLk, 5 miles (E.) from Fakenham,
contauﬁng with Croxton, 331 inhabitants. The living
is @ rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and dio--
cese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10, and
in the patronage of the President and Fellows of Cor-
pus Christi College, Cambndge The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary. There is a chapel of ease at Croxton,
in this parish.

FULNECK; a hamlet in the parish of CALVERLEY,
wapentake of Morrey, West riding of the county of
Yok, 6 miles (S.W.) from Leeds. The Moravians have
one of their principal establishments here ; it was com-
menced about 1748, and now forms a considerable vil-
lage, wherein various trades are carried on, which sup-
ply the community with most of their articles of
consamption : the buildings, which occupy an extensive
terrace, comprise a hall containing a chapel, the minis-
ter's dwelling, separate school-houses for boys and girls,
a house' for single men, another for single women, a
third for widows, and several others for those who
have families, -

FULNETBY, a chapelry in the parish of Ranb,
western division of the wapentake of WrAGeOE, parts
of Lynpsey, county of LiNcorN, 4 miles (W.N.W.)
from Wraghy, containing 52 inhabitants.

FULSHAW , a township in the parish of Witmstow,
hundréd' of MacoursrieLp, county palatine of ‘Cazs-
MIQ (N.W.) from Macclesfield, containing 256

1

FWS‘NJW a parish in the wapentake of BraprEy-
HAVERSTOE, ‘parts of Linpsey, county of LiNcoLw,
ﬂvﬂhl (N.) from Louth, conta.inmg 389 inhabitants.
The isa ,in the archdeaconry and diocese
olnmooh,nhdinthe 's books at £8. 10, 3., en-
dowed with £800 royal bounty, and in ﬂ?ﬁm
of the Crown. flheehm‘chli dedicated to 8

There is a place of for We
wmwm

W jeastern divilioﬁ‘bf cnm:

e of nmmmm(

cuuhdngt 118 inhabitants. '

iy o o E”,,*,
'. a itmwmi w! :fmu n T :swd»; ol 7R

‘& township in the parlih: of ’min.

St. Mary ‘Stratton, oontaimng 301' inhu'bw,,

lxvinguaperpetunlmmcy in the arch
Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich and in the nage
of T. T. Berney, Esq. The church is dedimtndto
Nicholas. :

FUNTINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Bouux.,
rape of CHICHESTER, county of Susug, 5 miles (W.N.W.)
from Chichester, containing 847 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Chichester, endowed with. £ 10 per annum private be-
nefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £1000 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of
Chichester.

FURLAND, a tything in the parish and hunM gf
CrEWKERNE, county of Somerser, The population
returned with the parish. Here was formerly a

FURNESS-ABBEY, county palatine of LANGAm ;
See DALTON in FURNESS

FURTHO, a parish in the hundred of . Gu:.lqlnr
county of NorTHAMPTON, 2 miles (N.N.W,) from
Stony-Stratford, containing, with a small portion of
the hamlet of Old Stratford, 12 inhabitants. The livi
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, ﬁ
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the i
£7, and in the patronage of the Principal a.p.d OWS.
of Jesus College, Oxford. The church is dedjcgtéd to.
St. Ba.rtholomew The Roman Wathnguetreet _passes.
along the south-western boundary of this YA

FYFIELD, a parish in the hundred ofpaag,‘pmty
of Berks, 44 ‘Tiles (W,N.W.) from Abi

ing 407 inhabitants. The lm is a.vi v,jm
kl mm ‘%»
benefaction, .

charge, in the arch
Salisbury, endowed th;li\ :IQOO pnm
£400 bounty, an: 1200 parliamen «grant,,
and in 0t of the President md% f,
St. John's College, Oxford. The church lq ‘
St. Nlchohl

ish in ﬂye




, s parish in the liberty of Warrny-
e VL AT
thy, conts

yin )‘llimmal curacy, in the archdeaconry

' Cleveland mdiocu:oof York,‘endowedwithic,looo

' , and £ 1400 par ary grant, and in
&u&' 'm&ﬂu Arehb{shop of Ye:;{. The church,
dedicated to St. Stephen, has lately received an addition
of one hundred and forty-two sittings, of which one
hundred and twelve are free, the Incorporated Society
for the enlargement of churches and chapels having
granted £150 toward defraying the expense. .
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GADDESBY, a chapelry in the parish of RoTaLEY,
eastern division of the hundred of Goscorg, county of
LEICESTER, 6 miles (8. W.) from Melton-Mowbray, con-
taining 282 inhabitants. It is within the peculiar
ecclesiastical jurisdiction of the Lord of the Manor of
Rothley, The chapel is dedicated to St. Luke.

GADDESDEN (GREAT), a parish in the hundred
of Dacorum, county of Herrrorp, 2} miles (N.W.
m) from Hemel-Hempstead, containing 1096 inha-

ts. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
A of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £10. 1. 10. Mrs. Halsey
was patroness in 1820. The church is dedicated to
St. John the’ This village, which counsists of
a few scattered houses, derives its name from the river
Gade, upon the south-west bank of which it is situated.
' GADDESDEN (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred
of Dacorum, county of HerTrorp, 5§ miles (N.byE.)
from Berkham , containing 531 inh:_.bganu. ‘;l'he
ving is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon,
'y et e

rated in the king's books at

£11.12. 8}, and in the pa of the Trustees of

ﬂwmwmw The church is dedicated

to St. Peter and St. Paul. !

GINGWELL, a hamlet in the parish of Cuvrcn-

' g, hundred of CHADLINGTON, county of Ox-
containing 63 inhabitants.

FORD, a_parish comprising the chapelry of

d the township of Houghton-Lee-Side, in the

astern division ; and the chapelries of Barnard-

d Whorlton, and the townships of Bolam,

‘M adlam, Ingleton, Langton, Marwood, Mor-
;  Pierse-Bridge, Staunton with Streatlam,
stwick, and a part of Cleatlam, in the
oolmg
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north side by the late John Walton Elliot, There
& place of worship for Wesleyan n«nﬁ'&m In
1601, the Rev. Henry Greswold left £100, directing the
interest to be applied to the education of children.
This place was anciently a seigniory, endowed with spe-

In 1293, Agnes de Valentia had lands and
free warren here, a place of execution, and various
other privileges of a royal franchise. There are some
mineral springs in the parish, and an abundance of
coal and limestone. The village is pleasantly situated
on the north b:fnk os the Tees, and consists of one
spacious street of good buildings, extending along the
high road, parallel with the river. The %Vlarqu?s of
Cleveland, as lord of the manor, holds courts leet and -
baron monthly, in the court-house at Barnard-Castle.
On the road between Gainford and Pierse-Bridge is a
stone deeply buried in the earth, of a form very like
that of a Roman altar, called the White Cross. In
digging on Gainford Green, many human skulls were
discovered, the supposed remains of some Scots who
suffered decapitation.

GAINSBOROUGH, a parish in the wapentake of
CorringuAM, parts of LiNpsEy, county of Lincorw,
comprising the market town of Gaingborough, and the
hamlets of Morton, East Stockwith, and Walkerith, and
containing 6761 inhabitants, of which number, 5593
are in the town of Gainsborough, 18§ miles (N.W.
by N.) from Lincoln, and 147 (N. by W.) from London.
This town, which is situated on the eastern bank of the
river Trent, appears to have been founded by a tribe
of Saxons, seon after their first invasion of Britain :
under the Heptarchy, it belonged first to the kingdom of
Northumberland, and then to that of Mercie. In 868,
Alfred the Great celebrated his nuptials at this place,
with Ealswitha, the daughter of a Mercian nchleman ;
and here the Danes, in 1013, landed under the com-
mand of their king Sweyn, and commenced their
devastations, which terminated in the subjugation of
the kingdom. Matthew of Westminster says that
Sweyn was assassinated at this place whilst revelling
with his followers ; but other historians consider Thet-
ford in Norfolk to have been the scene of his death.
On this event his son Canute, who was at Gains-
b , was chosen king of England by the Danes;
but Ethelred II. returning from Normandy, where he
had taken refuge, his troops attacked the Danes, com-
pelled Canute to flee from E d, and wreaked
their fury on his adheren‘s. In the beginning of the
war between Charles I. and the parliament this town
was placed by the king under the government of the
Earl of Kingston, who, being taken prisoner and sent
to Hull, was unfortunately shot by the royalists, by mis-
take, in crossing the Humber : it was taken by fhe par-
i tarians, but shortly after retaken by the Mar-
quis of Newcastle, who placed it under the
of a new governor. In 1643, Cromwell, on his way
to York, encountered a party of royalists near Gainé-
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The town chiefly ponisists ol mwm mahe‘

parallel with the river, with mmmg from
its bank to the cattle market : & new street, called
Spring-gardens, has been formed within a few years,
and'a cbnsidemble number of ‘has been raised
on the south side of the town. The streets are well
paved, and were first lighted with' gas in 1825 ; the
inhabitants are supplied with water from the 'l‘rent by

means of an éngine. ‘A handsome stone bridge of three

arches was erected across the river in 1791, which has
contributed materially to the improvement of the town.
A theatre has heen formed out of part of an ancient
structure, called the Old Hall, said to have been built
by ‘John of Gaunt; it is open for six weeks at the
October mart. A room in the present town-hall is
wclﬁonn.l)y used for assemblies ; and races are held
annually in the North Marsh, Here are two_extensive
-walks, four steam-mills for bruising linseed, se-
veral malt-houses, three ship- yards, and a fow brant
and iron-foundries. The town is favourably situated
for the purposes of commerce, and enjoys a very fair
proportion for an inland town. The Trent is navigable
for vessels of two hundred tons' burden, and a consider-
able trade to the Baltic is carried on; a great quantity
of corn is also shipped for the London and other mar-
kets ; and the counties of Stafford, Nottingham, and Lei-
cester, are chiefly supplied with foreign produce through
this port. Before the completion of the Grand Junction
canal, the whole of the Staffordshire ware was shipped
here for London. The annual number of vessels which
entered inwards, on an average, from 1812 to 1816, was
about thrée hundred, and that which cleared outwards
about two hundred and sixty. = Besides those entered
at the custom-house (which was established in 1820),
many small craft are employed in the trade to Hull,
and the counties of York, Leicester, Nottingham, &c.,
the Trent and the various canals which intersect
this part” of the country. The market is on Tuesday;
and there are two fairs, or marts, one commencing on
Easter-Monday, and the other on the 20th of October,
hoth. ten days; and a large market for wool on
tbeMonday before July 5th, and every alternate Monday
until August 5th, then on the Friday following for the
lmdgy The !nghest civil officer is a burgess-constable,
décted annually at a.court leet: a court baron is also
held twice a year, soon after Easter and Mich , at
Mﬁemﬁr&ofthemmor presides : is also
“for the recovery of small debts. Thé“quarur
18 for the
the

21e

yterians
1704, beuw&ed
the produce of which three 0 !
annually.  In 1708, Joshua ‘l‘ylét
chargeable with the payment of £5 per‘annm.ﬁf

the education of children. In 1731, - Wharton
gave, by will, land to the trustees of the free school,
directing the proceeds to be applied in ‘and

educating children, and providing bread for the poor.
In. 1736, Mrs. E. Hopkmson bequeathed 6358, the in-
terest to be applied to clothing poor women, and to the
education of children. In 1781, Miss Hickman gave
£200 for the education of poor girls, and the benefit
of the poor generally ; and she subsequently gave land
for the erection of a school-room, and a house for the
master. The free school was founded by letters patént
granted by Elizabeth, in 1590, and endowed with a rent-
charge of £30 per annum on the estates of the crown,
which was never paid, so that it is, consequently, only
nominally free : the master has the gratuitous use of
the school-room, dwelling-house, and play-ground, and
receives a ‘quarterage for the education of children. A
school on the Madras system is supported by subsecrip-
tion, wherein about two hundred children are instructed ;
and thirty girls are also educated on the same plan, at
a school-room in the old Methodist chapel yard. = The
Old Hall is a curious structure, forming three sides of
a quadrangle, and occupying nearly half an acre of
ground ; it is in the ancient style of domestie archi-
tecture : part of it is said to have been built by Johu
of Gaunt, Duke of Lancaster, the western wing by a
member of the Burgh family, about 1490, and the
castern one, about 1600, by a member of the'ﬁmily‘*bf.
Hickman, in whose possession it remains; it has.
converted into small tenements or workshops, and t
theatre. Near North-holme, on the hills eastward from
the town, is a spring possessing tonic qualities, similar
to those of the Buxton waters, but of a different de-
gree of temperature. This is the birthplace of William
de Gainshorough, the firm defender of the doétﬂnd‘ﬁ& )
pope’s infallibility, who was advanced by B b
to the see of Worcester, at whlch lloe he miﬁ
1308. Simon Patrick, Bish , X
Jolml .’ )

in 1626 ; as also was his

the translators of Plutarch.
‘GALBY, county of Lzic

GALHAM.PI‘ON‘ a h
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ontaini %ﬂnt';:b habitants. In- . GANTON, a parish in the wapentake of DICKERING,
esleyan Methodists have each a place East riding of thl:'conntyof York, 9% miles (8. 8. W.)
~ oo e oo oo from Scarborough, containing, with Brompton, 278 inha-
-+ GAMELSBY, a joint Whmmﬂ»,n ands, in the bitants. The living is a discharged Vica.?a’ge" dod
parish of Arkron, ward and county of BERLAND, . archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese of York,

34 miles (N. by E.) from Wigton, containing 191 inha-
W‘M ita‘.plwel%tfé worship for Wesleyan

WGAMLINGAY, a parish in the hundred of Loxe-
srow, county of CAaMBRIDGE, 2% miles (N.E. by N.)
from. Potton, containing 1256 inhabitants. The living
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely,
rated in the king's books at £5, and in the patronage of
the Bishop of Ely: there is also a sinecure rectory,
rated at £15..14. 2., and in the patronage of the Warden
and Fellows of Merton College, Oxford. The church
is'a handsome edifice, dedicated to St, Mary. There
is a place of worship for Baptists. In this parish is an
almshouse for eight poor widows, endowed with a be-
quest of £2000 South Sea Annuities, by Mrs. Elizabeth
Lane ; rand a small charity school has a trifling en-
dowment. A market was formerly he13 here, but it has
for many years been. discontinued, having been trans-
ferred  to the neighbouring town of Potton, in Bedford-
shire,

'« GAMPSTON, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
Waesr Bringrorp which is in the southern division of
the wapentake of BineraAM, county of NoTTINGHAM, 23
‘miles (8. E.) from Nottingham, containing 102 inhabi-
tants, . ‘ ‘

. GAMSTON, a parish in the South-clay division of
the - take of Basserraw, county of NoTTINGHAM,
84 miles '(8,) from East Retford, containing 385 inha-
bitants, The living-isa rectory, in the archdeaconry of
am, and diocese of York, rated in the king’s
booksat £11. 16, 5., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church, dedicated to St. Peter, has a tower with
eight pinuacles in. the later English style.
. GANEREW, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of WormzeLow, county of HEREPORD, 3 miles
(N:E. by N.) from ,Monmouth, containing 118 inhabi-
‘tants. iving i is rectory, in the arch-
 diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's
10., and in the patronage of Joseph Pyrke,
church, dedicated to St. Swithin, is said to
ch Vortigern, Prince of Dumnonium, was
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
The river Wye bounds the parish- on the
east : a considerable quantity of limestone is ob-
| in the vicinity. There are two hills, called Great
Doward ; on the slope of the former are the
1s of an ancient fortification, distinguished by the
Arthur's -and on the summit of the latter
e A W L
»wnship in that part of the pari¥h
in the middle division of the wapen-
s, Bast
by
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rated in the king's books at £5. 2. 6. Sir Thomas
Legard, Bart. was patron in 1828. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Nicholas, ‘

GARBOLDISHAM, a parish in the hundred of
Gurr-Cross, county of Norvonk, 4% miles (8.8.E.)
from East Harling, containing 700 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory consolidated with that of All Sainte,
in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £19. 16. 03. C. M, Mont-
gomery, Esq. was patron in 1815. The church is dedi-
cated to St, John the Baptist.

GARENDON, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
western division of the hundred of GoscorE, county of
LEe1cesTERr, 2 miles (W.) from Loughborough, contain-
ing 43 inhabitants, An abbey for Cistercian monks,
dedicated to the Blessed Virgin, was founded here in
1133, by Robert Bossu, Earl of Leicester, the revenue
of which, at the dissolution, amounted to £186, 15, 2.

GARFORD, a chapelry in the parish of MARCHAM,
hundred of Ock, county of Berks, 5 miles (W. by 8.)
from Abingdon, containing 192 inhabitants,

GARFORTH (WEST), a parish in the lower division
of the wapentake of Skyrack, West riding of the county
of York, 7 miles (E.) from Leeds, containing 731 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£8.17. 8%.  The Rev. J. Whitaker was patron in 1797.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Here are places
of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.
There is a small sum for the education of children ;
the school-house was erected by subscription in 1818,

GARGRAVE, a parish in the eastern division of the
wapentake of StarncLirre and Ewcross, West riding of
the county of York, comprising the townships of Bank-
Newton, Cold Coniston, Eshton, Flasby with Winter-
burn, and Garggave, and containing 1659 inhabitants,
of which number, 972 are in the township of Gar-
grave, 4% miles (W, N. W.) from Skipton. The living is
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £12. 13. 11j. John
Marsden, Esq. was patron in 1806. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, is principally in the later
English style, Here is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists, = There is a small endowed school. This
place is situated close to the Leeds and Liverpool canal,
upon which it has extensive warehouses : the principal
branch of business is the cotton manufacture. A court
for the recovery of debts under 40s. is held every thre
weeks, of which the Duke of Devonshire is chief

The river Aire runs through the village, There i e
Roman pavement and encampment in the parish,
L N&ONDSWAY-MOOR.;Q, \ i th
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GARRETT, a hamlet in the n.mn
western d.ivxsioﬂ ‘of the h w w’ N, }
SurrEy, 7 miles (8. W, b%ﬁ') ﬁom
lation is returned with 1 mock electxon
formerly took phce ‘here on ﬂxe dfusolution of every

ent ; which circumstance gave rise to Foote's
diverting comedy of “the Mayor of Garrett.” An iron
railway from Wandsworth to Croydon, and thence to
Merstham near Reigate, pum through this place.

GARRIGILL, a in the parish of ALDSTONE,
Lears ward, coﬁmty of CuMBERLAND, 3 miles (E. 8.E.)
from Aldstone Moor, containing 1288 inhabitants. The
Independents and Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists
have each a Xhée of worship. Mines belonging to the
London Company afford employment to many of
the inhabitants, Fairs for cattle and sheep are held on
the third Friday in May, and the first Friday in Sep-
tember.

GARRISON-SIDE, an extra-parochial liberty, locally
in the county of the town of Kingston upon Hull, East
of the county of York, contammg 178 inhabitants.
GARRISTON, a township in the parish of Havks-
WELL, western division of the wapentake of HAng,
North riding of the county of Yorxk, 4% miles (N. N, E.)
from Middleham, containing 52 inhabitants.
GARSDALE, a chapelry in the parish of SEpBERGH,
western division of the wapentake of StarncrLiFre and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 6 miles
(E.) from Sedbergh, containing 679 inhabitants. The
living is a curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Richmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £400
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £400 par-
liamentary grant, and in the })atronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. There
is & small sum for the education of children.
GARSDON a parish in the hundred of MALMES-
BURY, coun of ‘Wivts, 2 miles (E, by N.) from Malmes-
bury, con ing 183 inhabitants, The living is a
réctory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of
Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £10. 9. 9%., and
in the paﬂonﬁ of P.Methuen, Esq.+ The church is
Saints,

- GARSINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Buw-
Lum'rok county of Oxrorp, 5 miles (S.E. by E.) from
Oxford, eontafning 5905 inhabitants. The livin n s
rectory, annexed to the Headship of Trinity
Oxford, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Qxford,
rated in the King abookaatﬁu 19. 9%, The church,
dedicated St. Mary, is an ancient structure,
GARSTANG, a
g% the hundred of AMOUNDER
o8 ;:;u, county palatine of

CASTER, comprhhg the
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gembably from Garri, a Saxon thane, who is said to have
its first resident lord; Though not. a station of
the Romans, it was situated on one of their great roads
leading from Lugovallum (now Carlisle), to Condate,
(now Kmderton, in Cheshire). At the close of the last
century, a Roman shield of brass, of curious workmans
ship, was found in the d, which is now
among the Towneley collection in the British Musewm.
An oaken box also, strong, but roughly constructed, and
fastened by wooden pins, was turned up by the plough in
this parish ; which, on being opened, was found to contain
a fine collection of celts, spear-heads, and other instro«
ments, partly Roman and partly British. = During the
parliamentary war, this parish was the scene of some
unimportant operations, and the castle of G
which is in the neighbourhood, was held for the
by the Earl of Derby, in 1643, When the Scottish
adherents to the Pretender made their incursicn into
England, in 1715, they halted at Garstang, before taking
possession of Preston, and in the following year,: some
of the rebels were executed at this place.

The town is situated on the river Wyre, on th
road between Preston and Lancaster : the more ancient
part consists of houses indifferently built, the streets
being irregularly formed ; but great improvements have
lately been introduced : the streets are now well paved,
the town lighted, and a few houses of respectability have
recently been added. The trade and manufactures are
not very considerable : several looms are employed in
weaving linen and cotton goods, and there are some
cotton mills, and a large calico-printing  establish~
ment in the neighbourhood ; but the town derives its

test advantages from its situation as & thoroughe-
are. The market is on Thursday; and. a market for
cattle is held every alternate Thursday, between the
first Thursday in Lent and Holy, Thursday. Fairs are
held on Holy Thursday, July lodw,and Nov.22nd.  An
impulse has lately been trade of the town
and parish by the facilities. by the Lancaster
canal, which crosses the river Wy!e by a handsome
aqueduct near the end of the ‘street, thus
forming a communication with the Trent, Sevem.vﬂ
Mersey ; and from the Wyre, which winds round the
wwnontheeutmmd-mha‘ddu,u
supply of fish is obtained. The inhabitants were first i
corporated by a charter granted in 1314 ; but this was

by a new.one granted byChu-hu 1L, in 1680,
with addmonal privileges, by which the ML
of the town was vested in a bailiff and seven capital bur«
gesses, elected annually on the 29th of September. I
case of the death or removal of a burgess, the remainder-
elect another from amg the ﬁmﬂm 'ﬂw bailiff is
chosen from am
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books ‘at €14. 8. 4., and in the patronage of the Rev,
John Pedder.  The church, dedicated to St. Helen, is a
stately structure, situated about a mile and a half from
the town; in that part of the parish called Garstang
Ghurch Town, in the township of Kirkland: having
been - injured by the overflowing of the river Wyre,
near which it stands, it was repaired in 1746, and
againin 1811, when the walls of the nave and chan~
cel 'were raised, and' the whole received a new roof,
atan expense of £1200, which was defrayed jointly
by the parishioners and Thomas Strickland Standish,
Esq:; the lay impropriator. There is a chapel within
the town; the living of which is a perpetual curacy, en-
dowed with £400 private benefaction, £600 royal bounty,
and £ 500 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
the Vicar of Garstang : there is another chapel at Pilling,
which is in the patronage of the Lord of the Manor.
The: ‘Wesleyan Methodists, and Roman Ca-
tholics, have each a place of worship here. The free
school was built: about the year 1756, partly from the
funds of the corporation, and partly by subscription,
and endowed with a bequest of €150, from John Mor-
land; Esq., and £ 5 per annum, the gift of William Bayl-

ton, rthe proceeds of which are paid to the master for
i four children, two others being educated at
the of the corporation : besides which, there

are between sixty and seventy scholars who pay quar-
The Roman Catholics support also both a day
and @ Sunday school. Three miles west of Garstang

 issPilling-moss, ‘the scene of a phenomenon, of which

following account is given in the Philosophical
msa ; No. 475, January 26th, 1744-5 :—“ A part
of | Pilling-moss was observed to rise to a surprising
height ; and after & shdrt time it sank as much below
the level, and moved towards the south side ; and
i : : ped twenty acres of land. The
improved land ng tothat part of the moss which
moved, in a concave circle, containing about one hun-
dred’ acres, was ‘nearly filled up with moss and water.
That part of the moss which sank remained like the bed
of.ia 1 from north to south, above a mile
: and a mile in breadth.” A considerable
'the moss has been reclaimed of late years, and
/converted to 'agricultural purposes, while
’ i ‘an abundance of turf, which com-
pensates in a measure for the scarcity of coal.
. GARSTON; a chapelry in the parish of CHILDWALL,
hundred of West DErsy, county palatine of Lancas-
TeRy 6 miles (S.E.) from Liverpool, containing 874 in-

Niving is a ¢

e
i

GAR
657 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicaragy
the archoeaconsy o Basks, aad e g
rated in the king's books at £13, 6. 8,, and in the p
tronage of the Dean and Canons of Christ Churzt
Oxford. The church is dedicated to Al Saints,

is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists., There
is a small sum for the education of children, ;

GARTHORP, a township in the parish of Luppine-
ToN, western division of the wapentake of ManLEy
parts of Linpsey, county of LincoLy, 18 miles (w:
by 8.) from Barton upon Humber, containing 500 in-
habitants,

GARTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Fram-
LAND, county of Leicester, 5} miles (E.N.E.) from
Melton-Mowbray, containing 115 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in. the archdeaconry of
Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £7. 5. 2, and in the patronage of the Lord of
the Manor, The church, dedicated to St, Mary, has por-
tions in the decorated style. The small river Eye runs
throuih the parish. ;

GARTON, a parish in the middle division of the
wapentake of HoLper~Ess, East riding of the county of
York, containing, with the townships of Garton and
Owstwick, part of which latter is in the parish of Rooss,
299 inhabitants, of which number, 160 are in the town-
ship of Garton, 12 miles (N.E. by E.) from Kingston upon
Hull. The living is a. discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of the East riding, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £6. 1, 0%, endowed with
£400 royal hounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is a neat structure, dedicated to St. Michael.
Here is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

GARTON upon the WOLDS, a parish partly in the
liberty of St.PeTER of YORK, and partly in the wapen-
take of Dickering, East riding of the county of Yorx,
3 miles (W. N. W.) from Great Driffield, containing 357
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in %&
archdedconry of the East riding, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £5. 6. 8., endowed with
£600 royal bounty, end in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St, Michael, There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A school ‘is'gid;l- \
ly supported by the proceeds of a share in the Driffield
canal, bequeathed by the late Mrs, Jane Cook, ‘

GARVESTONE, a parish in the hundred of M-
vorp, county of Norrork,5 miles (8.8, E.) from East
Dereham, containing 330 inhabitants, The living isa
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and_diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7. 16, Sir'W.
Cheyton, Bart. was patron in 1828, The church is de:
dicated to St. Margaret, o b, .

GARWAY, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred mol;unnow,hmwwm_ ; 7 miles
(N. W.) onmouth, containing 522 inbabitants,
The living is a perpetual Mzh;ﬁ:‘“ d




ﬁA'ﬁ

mﬂmmln Mmmﬁn.,. :
like manner, among six wﬂdom.

GASPER, county of Soun-n See Bnoox_

GASTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Guive-
Cross, county of NorroLk, 44 miles (8.) from East
Harling, containing 118 . The living is a
rectory not in charge, united to that of Riddlesworth, in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich.
The church, which was dedicated to St. Nicholas, has
fallen to ruins.

- GATCOMB, a parish in the liberty of WrsTr MeDINA,

Isle of Wight. division of the county of SOUTHAMPTON,
3% miles (8. 8. W.) from Newport, containing 247 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£25. 18, 9., and in the patronage of the University of
- Oxford, in trust for the Principal of St. Edmund's Hall.
The church is dedicated to St. Olave. There is a small
‘endowed school.
‘" ‘GATCOMBE, a hamlet' in the parish and hundred
of Coryron, county of Devon, 24 miles (8. W.) from
Colyton, with which the population is returned. Here
was formerly a chapel.

GATEFORTH, a township in the parish of Bray-
ToN, lower division of the wapentake of BARKSTONE-
asn, West riding of the county of York, 5 miles
(S.w. by w.,) from Selby, containing 192 inhabitants.

GATELEY a parish in the hundred of Launpirca,
county of NorroLK, 5% miles (8. E. by 8.) from Faken-
ham, contaxmng 104 inhabitants. The hvmg is a dis-
chnrged vicarage with the rectory of Brisley, in the arch-

and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £8. 2. 8. The church is dedicated to St.
Helen.

GATENBY, a township in the parish of Bur~gs-
7oN, wapentake of Harrvikerp, North riding of the
county of Yorxk, 43 miles (E.) from Bedale, containing
‘88 inhabitants.

. GATESGILL, a joint township with Raughtoa, in
“the parish of Diusron, ward and county of CuMBER-
LAND, 6} miles (s by W.) from Carlisle, containing 294
‘inhabitants,

GATESHEAD, a parish
in the eastern division of
CrestEr ward, county pa-
latine of Durmam, 1 mile
(8. 8, E) from
and 14 (N, by E.) ﬁ'om
Durham, conﬂumg, with
the seamen of e

the uouthem bank

‘of Newcastle, but they have long since become e
‘The principal manufactories at present are those f

‘whitmg manufactories, A market formerly
e, PR

"l‘wofamforthebiﬂngofmmum
~in 1822, and are bddanthe

” 'hippl 3767 i | mt!. '
;‘iwe is lltulhd on ‘i
the -

3ish ng )
gesses a charter o{ W “nearly similar to those
enjoyed by the of Newcastle. The ent
frequent contests

history of Gateshead relates to the
between the bishops of Durham and the corporation *
of Newcastle, concerning the navigation of the Tyne,
and the right of building quays on its' banks, which ulti-
mately terminated in favour of the latter, ‘On the dis-
solution of the see of Durham, in 1552, an act of pﬂh-
ment was passed for annexing this town to the'

Newecastle ; but the rights of the bishoprick htvingbem
restored soon after by Queen Mary, Gateshead reverted
to its former jurisdiction. From the earliest period of
authentic record, this town was governed by 'a bailiff
appointed by the Bishop of Durham, till 1695, since
which the supreme municipal authority has been exer-
cised by two stewards, who are annually elected by the
borough holders and freemen. The borough contains
one hundred and forty-four burgage tenements, but; as
more than one of these may be held by the same-in-
dividual, the number of borough-holders seldom exceeds
one hundred, and in addition to these, are ten or eleven
freemen. The town eomprises a line of irregular edifices
distinguished by the appellations of High-street and
Bridge-street, from which diverge Hillgate, formerly
St. Mary's Gate, and several streets of inferior im-
portance. Some local improvements have been effected
under the authority of an act of parliament for cleansing, .
lighting, and watching the strects, passed in 1814; and an¥
act passed in 1824, empowering the trustees, under the
Durham and Tyne Bridge road act, to formt pad fro:
the eastern side of the High-street to the go )
of the church-yard. In 1818,.a complmy was
for the purpose of hghtmg the town with gas.
inhabitants are plentifully ‘supplied with water
reservoir at a short distance from the town,
is brought by means of pipes There were
several mcorporated t ‘companies, similar to

and wrought iron and glass, which are very
sive ; there are also collieries, chemical laborato!

ay and Friday in each week, was disco
about the commencement of the sixteenth




Price, in 1819, and put up in
an organ, which cost five hundred
s, raised by subscription, was completed in Jan-
1824. The chapel of St. Edmund was built by
.subseription in 1808 : divine service is performed in it
+ 'on Sundays, and it is used for a National school on the
~ other days of the week, The hospital of St. Edmund,
to which it , was founded in 1248, by Bishop
Farnham, who endowed it for a master and three chap-
lains ; this establishment survived the Reformation,
_ ‘but its charters having been lost, and its revenue partly
converted to purposes of private advantage, it was re-
founded by James L, in 1610, for a master and three
“poor brethren, the master to be the rector of Gateshead.
dn 1810, an act .of parliament was procured, which
Wt the constitution of the hospital, and the bre-
thren are now thirteen ;in number, three elder, and
ten younger, who are all appointed by the master.
The annual revenue is about £455, of which sum, the
master receives one-third, the chaplain £40, each of
the elder brethren £25 with a house, and each of the
you £12. The ruins of the old chapel of St. Ed-
mund, affording a beautiful specimen of early English
.architecture, are still remaining, as is also a portion
of the old house of the brethren. Here are two
laces of worship for Methodists of the New Connex-
ion, four for Wesleyan Methodists, and one for Preshy-
‘terians. The Anchorage school, held in an apartment
i sover the vestry-room of St. Mary's church, is stated
"o derive its name from the circumstance of anchorage
pes of that part of the Tyne which formerly belonged
o the Bishop of Durham having been paid here. Its
ishment took place previously to 1658, and its
t’n.ri::'ip%the interest on £300, given by
hilus Pickering*D.D., in 1701, towards the sup-
‘of a free school, for instruction in English and
sical htqmtum, ‘and navigation: the master, besides
Jary, receives oné shilling a guarter from each of
fifteen boys who are upon the foundation, and is
itted to take as many pupils as the school-
will mo . the master and free scholars
nted by the rector. The National school was
, and removed in 1810 to St. Edmund's
, e it is called the Chapel school. An alms-
' e High-street, founded in 1731, thmugkoa\ee
st of Thomas Powell, is now used as the poor-h
e parish ; and there is an unendowed almshouse
lgate for six poor women, given to the parish by
i pan, in 1689. A cription news-room
d in 1820 : there is a society for the pro-
felons, the oldest institution of the kind in

@ parish in the mtlﬂﬁ‘divi-
d, connty palatine of Durnam, 3
le. The population is returncd

"“'.-.Of
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£2742, towards which the Society for building new
*s&mha contributed £350 : it egzaihmdh‘w )
sxttings,»ﬁve hundred of which are free.  Here are
glm of worship for Baptists and Wesleyan Metho-
istf;. The quarries of ‘the Fell are famous for pro-
ducing excellent grind-stones ; and there are numerous
c_oal mines, Notwithsfmding their division, the pa-
rishes of Gateshead aud Gateshead-Fell constitute one
constablewick as before, and the inhabitants of both
contribute jointly towards the maintenance of the poor,
the management of whom since 1821 has been entrusted
to a select vestry. In 1068, William the Conqueror here
gained a victory over Malcolm 11, King of Scotland,
who had invaded the kingdom in support of Edgar
Atheling.

GATTON, a borough and parish, in the second
division of the hundred of ReigaTe, county of
SURREY, 22 miles (E. by N.) from Guildford, and 18
(8. by W.) from London, containing 135 inhabitants.
This was formerly a considerable town, and had a
castle ; but it is now an insignificant village, only dis-
tinguished by the privilege of sending two members to
parliament, which it has enjoyed since the 29th of
Henry VI. The right of election is vested in the free-
holders and inhabitants paying scot and lot; and the
constable for the manor is the returning officer : the
patronage of the borough belongs to Sir Mark Wood,
Bart. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £9. 2. 84., and in the patronage of Sir M,
Wood, Bart. The river Mole has its source in this pa-
rish; and here is a quarry of white stone which will
bear exposure to a high degree of heat, and is therefore
much used in the construction of ovens, furnaces for
glass-houses, &ec. ;

GAULBY, a parish in the hundred of GarTRER,
county of LrrcesTer, 8 miles (E. 8. E.) from Leicester,
containing, with the chapelry of Frishy, 114 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£18. 2. 6., and in the patronage of G. A. Legh-Keck,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

GAUTBY, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of GArTrEE, parts of LinNpsey, county of
Lancorn, 6% miles (W.N. w.) from Horncastle, contain-
ing 118 inhabitants. ~The living is a discharged rectory,:
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in
the king's books at £6. 3. 4., endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the -
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to All

“Saints. Y

GAWCOTT, a chapelry in the parish and within
the liberty of the borough of Buckingmam, county of
Buckingaam, 2 miles % wl;) from Bmwuckinghm, con-
taining 566 inhabitants. The living isa bk
in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese m L
eoln, endowed with £ mdplii:”;e benefucﬁm,\a:fd m

liamen t, an the patronage of - certamy
;-:neea t‘:Il'y‘!;egﬁ‘w:xlc:ient chapel, dedicated to St. Cathe-

rine, was demolished, but a new one was sd
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GAWSWORTH, u parish in the hundred of Mo+

by 8.) from Macclesfield, containing 804 inh
.‘r{e lZvina is a rectory, in mtﬂ dio
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CuesTER, 34 miles (S.W.
inhabitants.
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JGAYDON, a ‘nhnpdw*-ln‘ ‘the parish of Bisuor's
Ireminaron, Kington division of the hundred of Kineg-
ToN, county of Warwick, 3 miles (N.E.) from King-
ton, containing 187 inhabitants: It is within the pecu-
liar ecclesiastical jurisdiction of the Prebendary of Col-
wich and Bishop's Itchington in the Cathedral Church
of Lichfield. The chapel is dedicated’to St. Giles. The
inhabitants marry and bury at Chadshunt, which is a

ial chapelry within the same parish.

. GAYHURST, a parish in the hundred of NEwporT,
" county of Buckineuam, 23 miles (N.W.) from Newport-

Pagnell, containing, with the extra-parochial liberty of

Gorefields, 90 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,

united in 1786 with that of Stoke-Goldington, in the

archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £6. 0. 2., and in the pa-
tronage of Miss Anne Barbara Wrighte. The church,
, dedicated to St. Peter, was completed in 1728, by means
' ofa sum of money bequeathed for that purpose by Mr.
Wrighte; lord of the manor. The river Ouse runs
through the parish, and there is a chalybeatespring in
the neighbourhood.
{ GAYLES, a township in the parish of Kirkny-Ra-
| VvENSWORTH, western division of the wapentake of
! Gruuine, North riding of the county of York, 5 miles
(N. W, by N.) from Richmond, containing 218 inha-
bitants.

GAYTON, a township in the parish of HeswaLL,
lower: division of the hundred of WirrALL, county
palatine of CresTER, 3 miles (N. W. by N.) from Great
Neston, containing 153 inhabitants. There is a ferry
over the Dee into Flintshire, the mstuary at this place

i mnearly four miles broad.

f YTON, a parish in the Lynn division of the
hnndred of FrersrinGe, county of NorroLk, 75 miles
. (B) from Lynn-Regis, - containing 545 inhabitants.

- mm a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry

‘of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
. £8. 6.8, and in the of the Bishop of Nor-

‘Ozhk. i ﬂ!l:fchm'oh is f:redicamd to St. Nicholas: Here

worship for Wesleyan Methodists. ‘William
g:dndn Bemdmhne pnoty here&n themp

sey, county of LincoLy,
Alford, containing 276
rectory, in the archdeaconry and of L
rated in the king's books at £13. 10. 2%, M
patronage of the Crown. The church is dcﬂw

St. Geo : g
GAY' ON-THORPE, a parish in the Lym M
sion of the hundred of FrerxsrinGe, county of Non’#
FOLK, 8miles (N. W. by N.) from Swaffham, con:
187 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
deaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the: ki
books at £6. A. Hamond, Esqwaspatmnin’hs
The church is dedicated to St Mary.

GAYTON le WOLD, a pamh in the Wold dxvmoh
of the hundred of Lov-rn-Esxm, parts of Linpsey,
county of LincoLw, 6% miles (W. by 8.) from L(m&
containing 122 inhabitants. The living is a disck
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
rated in the king's books at £8. 11. 0., and in ﬂn"
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedim.ted to
St. Peter.

GAYWOOD, a parish in the Lynn division of the
hundred of FreesripGE, county of Norvork, £ of a
mile (E. by N.) from Lynn-Regis, containing 474 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdmm
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the King's books at
£5. 13, 4., and in the patronage of W. Bagge,
The church is dedicated to St.Faith. The inhs
of the neighbouring parish of Bawsey, having no churck
attend at Gaywood.  The river Gaywoodvmrfm w i
the parish, in which there are two'hnmnl : 5. :

GAZELEY, a parish in the hun i
county of SurrorLk, 5% miles (E. I
market, containing, with the hamlet of
644 inhabitants. = The living is a
with Kentford, in the
cese of Norwxch The

GEDDING, a 1 "HED
WESTRY, county of Svﬁou, 6§ miles W ﬁm ¢
Market, containing 144 inhabitants, T
dmcharged , in the nry
and  diocese of Norwmh, rated in the
£4, 13, 4., and in the M“d the
Om‘pmsﬂmoflp"ieh. This place is

'!‘
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" GEDNEY, ‘a'pariihv, in the wapentake of Ervow,
parts of Honrann, county of LincoLn, 8 miles (E.) from
-« ining, with the chapelry of Gedney-Hill,

1786 inbabitants, The living is a vicarage, in the arch-

deaconry aund diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
ks at £30. 11. 104, and in the patronage of the
ywn. - There is also a sinecure rectory, rated at
£98. 11, 0%., and intbe patronage of the Crown for
two terms, and of W, Clayton, Esq. for one. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, is a beautiful
structure, supposed to have been built by the ab:
.of Crowland, who had a house and large posses-
ons in the parish: it contains fifty-three windows,
those of the north aisle having considerable remains
of painted glass. In this parish are vestiges of in-
trenchments, supposed to have been the site of Roman
fortifications.

_ GEDNEY-HILL, a chapelry in the parish of Gep-
.wapentake of Ervnox, parts of HoLraND, county
coLN, 63 miles (E.) from Crowland, containing
| inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
hdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, and in the pa-
certain Feoffees of land bequeathed for chari-
chapel is dedicated to the Holy Trinity.
Antoninus have been found here.

, & parish in the hundred of CLAvER-

~of Norrork, 24 miles (N. W. by wW.) from
conta - 984 imhabitants. The living is a
5§ nry and diocese of

lin the king's books at £6, endowed with
bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
h is dedicated to St. Michael.

NG, a township in the parish of Foston
' 2 of DickERING, East riding of
4 miles (E. by 8.) from Great

.), & parish in. the hundred of Les-
CorRNWALL, 10 miles (N. by E.) from
1 0 inhabitants. ﬂ'll’l’\e-lj;iﬁ is a
archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
the king's books at £8. Sir W.
was patron in 1783, This parish

 way at the west end, between two low towers :

d re are several smiall bequests
of n.  Anciently there was an
,dedimted,togt.hwmnw. SR

GEORGEHAM, a parish in the hundred of B

TON, county of Devow, 8 miles (N, W. by W.) from

Barnstaple, containing 811 inhabitants. The living is

a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and dio-

cese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £40. 17. 11.

Slr A. Chichester, Bart. was patron in 1783, The church

is dedicated: to St. George. Here is a charity school

with a small endowment, in which between twenty and
thirty children are instructed.

GERMANS (ST.), a borough, market town, and pa-
rish, in the southern division of the hundred of Easr,
county of CorNwALL, 19 miles (8. by E.) from Laun-
ceston, and 227 (W.8.W.) from London, containing
2404 inhabitants. The town is situated in a beautiful
valley;, on the borders of a creek called St.Germans,
formed by the rivers Tidi and Lynher, which, uniting
with the Tamar, fall into the sea: the Tidi becomes
navigable two miles above St. Germans; at a place
called Tiddiford. In the southern part of the parish,
which is bounded by the English channel, there is a
beacon. This place derived its name from St. Germanus;
Bishop of Auxerre, who is supposed to have resided
here during a visit which he made to Cornwall, in the
fifth century. Athelstan having conquered the Cornish
Britons, in the early part of the tenth century, founded
here the see of a bishop, which, in the reign of Canute,
was removed to Crediton, and subsequently to Exeter,
The loss of ecclesiastical authority probably contri-
buted to the decay of the town, the market, then held
on Sundays, having become very inconsiderable when
the Norman survey was made. Leland mentions it as
a poor fishing town ; but he adds, the glory of it stood
by the priory, which was a convent of Augustine canons,
whose revenue at the dissolution amounted to £227.4.8.:
its site is occupied by Port Eliot, a modern mansion
belonging to the Earl of St. Germans. The market,
which was altered from Sunday to Friday, has long
been discontinued ; but fairs for cattle are held May
28th and August 1st.. The town is governed by a port-
reeve, chosen annually at the court leet for the manor.
It has returned two representatives to parliament ever
since 1562 : the right of election is vested in house~
holders who have resided twelve months within the
borough : the portreeve is the returning officer..  The
patronage belongs to the Earl of St. Germaus. =

The living is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Bishop of Exeter, endowed with
£1200 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
the Dean and Canons of Windsor, The church, dedi-*
cated to St, Germanus, consists of the nave and aisles
of the conventual church, with a fine Norman '

_ monuments of t:;bf;:me._“hw' ]
which 18 & .mo’mm“‘




gives the title of earl to the far

GERMANS-WEEK,

Lirron, county of Devox, 11 !mles (W. by s.) from

pton, containing 324 inhabitants. The living
is a tual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Totness,
and diocese of Exeter, endowed with £800 royal bounty,
and. £200 parlmmentu'y grant, and in the patronage of
the Dean and Chapter of Bristol.

GERMOE, a parish in the hundred of KerriEr,
county of CorNwarwy, 53 miles (W. by N.) from Hel-
ston, containing 830 inhabitants. The living is a per-
petual curacy united to the vicarage of Breage, in the
archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter. Here
:o:tglue of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. On the

side of the church-yard is a singular edifice, called

 St. Germoe's chairs, consisting of a stone seat divided

into three parts by pillars in the Norman style, with

inted arches, and placed in a recess similarly decorated.

ﬁt parish, in which are the famous Godolphin tin mines,

derives its name from St. Germoe, or Germoch, said to
“have been an Irish king.

GERRANS, a parish in the western division of the
hundred of Powbprr, county of CorNwaLrL, 7 miles
(S.W. by 8.) from Tregony, containing 782 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction and
patronage of the Bishop of Exeter, rated in the king's
books at £15. 12. 6. The church is dedicated to St.
Gurons. Here is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. This parish lies at the upper end of St.
Mawe's harbour, and is bounded on the east by the
English channel. On an estate called Cargurrell, at this
place, is the ancient fortification called Dingerein, sup-
posed by Whitaker to have been the residence of King
Gerenni

us.

GESTINGTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of
Hinckrorp, county of Essex, 3 miles (N.E.) from
Castle-Hedingham, containing 694 inhabitants. ~The
. living is a discharged vicarage, within the jurisdiction
~ of the Commissary of Essex and Herts, concurrently
~with the Bishop of London, rated in the king’s books

- at £7, endowed with £200 private benefactlon, and
| #£200 royal bounty: there is also a sinecure rectory,
K at £13. 6. 8. J.T. H. Elwes, Esq. was patron in
isoc. The church is dedicated to St.

- GIDDING (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of _

TONSTONE, county of HunTiNGDON, 5 mi
(hur) from Sulton, contnimngi:Q&emhubﬁantl )
Emtm%dm, oceseof Lincoln, rwedinthekingl

 books at £ 8.52.,mdmthepntronageofLord
Sondes. chﬁhhﬁdm‘tedto& Mmhul,%onmm
~a curious bason ly water, resembling a Norman
mﬂ. A salary is paid by Lord Sondes to a master
:eadmg, writin‘. and uuhmetic, totwe.nty

of hmmm county of
(8.W. by 8.) from Stilton, m‘
The living i¢ a discharged remm-y :
of Huntingdon, and dioce e of fm\éum, at
king's books at £8.17. 8}. J. Heathcote,
patron in 1807. The church is dedicated to S
GIDLEY, a parish in the hundred of Wi
county of Devon, 8% miles (S.E. by E.) from Oakl
ton, containing 121 ‘inhabitants, The living is -
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry and dio
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £14. 10. 0%
Henry Rattray, Esq.'was patron in 1791, The church
is dedicated to the Holy Trinity. In “of
Henry II. the ancient family of Prous had a cllﬂ%
here, of which there are still some remains.
GIG(:LFSWICK a parish (formerly a market tos
in the western division of the wapentake of St
cuirre and Ewcross, West riding of the county”bf
Yorxk, comprising the townships of Giggleswick, Rath=
mill, Settle, and Stainforth, aud containing 2817 “in-
habntants of which number, 746 are in the
of Giggleswick, 2 of a mile (w. by N.) from
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdetcmry
and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£21. 3. 4., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £ 200 royal bounty. J.Coulthurst and J. Hart-
ley, Esqrs. were patrons in 1782. The church, dedi-
cated to St.Alkald, is principally in the llterE lﬁ
style. Here is a free grammar school, founde
Edward VI. in the 7th year of his reign, in W
Archdeacon Paley was educated : the income is
mated at £ 1140 per annum. The founderordained
it should consist of a master and an usher ; and ' the
eight inhabitants should be a body corpoute and ha
power to act as governors ; that it should be free |
classical instruction of all boys, without any
or qualification as to residence. Between sj
seventy boys are educated, and there is one ex!
to the University. Agnes Hargraves also
a close of land for the instruction of children.
foot of a ledge of rocks, in ‘this pmsh called
rises a spring, noted for ebbing and flowing, tha
tant nearly thirty miles from the sea : the water
known to rise and fall nineteen inches in five
 GILBERDIKE, a township in ‘the parish
of Howpensuire, East x




ip i - the parish of
‘York, and partly in the southern divi-
‘of StrarrorTH and TickuILL,

ding of the county of York, 4% miles (S.W.
) from Leeds, containing 1592 inhabitants. The
is ‘a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
: ese of York, endowed with £1000 royal bounty, and
£1200 parliamentary grant. The chapel has lately re-
‘ceived an addition of one hundred and forty-three free
.. sittings, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of
. churches and chapels having granted £200 towards de-
' “fraying the expense. There are places of worship for
¢ Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. = Bolton Hargrave,
. Bsq., in 1749, bequeathed £10 a year for the education
of childven. Here is a scribbling-mill ; and the manu-
. facture of cotton is also carried on. |

. 'GILES (ST.), a parish in the hundred of FrREMING-
ron, county of Devon, 3 miles (E. by 8.) from Great
Torrington, containing 786 inhabitants, The living is
. a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Exeter, and in the patronage of the Dean and Fellows
* vof Christ Church College, Oxford. The church, among
other monuments, contains one to the memory of Tris-
tram Risdon, the antiquary. Robert Lovett, in 1710,
. bequeathed £30, the produce of which is applied to ap-
. prenticing children. There are almshouses for four
poor widows, founded by an ancestor of Lord Rolle,
ho allows each of the inmates £1. 5. per annum.
venston, a mansion belonging to Lord Rolle, was
en possession of in the civil war, by Sir Thomas

fax, February 16th, 1646. !
GILES (ST.) on the HEATH, a parish in the hun-
of Brack TorminNGToN, county of Devow, 4§
(N. by E.) from Launceston, containing 301 in-
tants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
eaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter,ﬂand
_patronage of Lord Valletort. There is a trifling
ment, the glu‘::l of Roger Harvey in 1767, for
2 township in the parish of GREYSTOCK,
county of CuMBERLAND, 63 miles (W.byS.)
, containing, with the township of Jiggherby,

R & kesikin b e paciit W Kana
LIMOOR, = ip in paris RBY
E, Wi “of Ryepaie, North riding of

; r of York, 7 miles (N.E.) from Helmsley, con-
_inhabitants, There is a place of worship

7 udahoom rising the chapelries of
e, fnd the township of North
erndivision, and the townships of

- North riding of the county of
1673 inhabitants, of which num-
ship of Gilling, 3 miles (N, by E.)
living is a vi in the arch-
fiageee of \pBester) pated

11.54., and in. emh:gusg: #

bi
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the western division, of the wa- peri

“the parish, There are fairs for
‘sheep, on Trinity-Monday and -
‘Grice and others, in 1526, founded and endowed a free

'school, which was in mmhw&mg ‘the pa 0
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‘and was appropriated, in 1224, to the monas -y
Mary, in ?"l‘k.. There is a place of wmhfpmlgl‘%- %
leyan Methodists,  Gilling is a place of great antiquity,
and remarkable as the scene of the murder of Oswyn,
K'in_gof Delrae by his host, Oswin of Bernicia’; in ex-
piation of which crime, a monastery was founded on -
tpe spot, by Q.ueen. Eanfleda, but not the slightest ves-
tige of it now remains, There are quarries of excellent
freestone, with materials drawn from which most of the
bridges in the North riding are built. Sir Thomas
Wharton, in 1678, founded Hartforth free school, for
thir_ty children, and endowed it with an estate now pro-
ducing about £125 a year. There is also a school, en-
“dowed with £20 per annum by Matthew Hutchinson, in
which eighty children are educated on the National plan.
GILLING, a parish in the wapentake of RyepaLe,
North riding of the county of York, comprising the
townships of Cawton, Gilling, and Grimston, and con-
taining 329 inhabitants, of which number, 168 are in
the township of Gilling, 53 miles (S.) from Helmsley.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Cleve-
land, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £13. 10, and in the patronage of the Master and
Fellows of Trinity College, Cambridge. The church,
dedicated to the Holy Cross, contains a vault belonging
to the family of Fairfax. The castle was built by Alan,
Earl of Richmond, soon after the Conquest, to repel
the frequent attacks of the Saxons and Danes, for the
recovery of their lost estates. The Hon. Anne Fairfax,
in 1793, left £400, now producing £20 a year, for
teaching thirty children.
GILLINGHAM, a parish in the liberty of GiLLinG
aAM, Shaston (West) division of the connty of Dorser,
4 miles (N.W. by W.) from Shaftesbury, containing, with
the chapelry of Bourton, 3059 inhabitants. The living,
a vicarage, is a royal peculiar within the jurisdiction of
the Lord of the Manor, rated in the king's books at
£40.17. 6., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Salis-
bury. The church, dedicated to the Blessed Virgin Mary,
is a large edifice partly in the Norman style, with a chantry
chapel attached to it, and a high tower. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A library of six
hundred volumes, given by Thomas Freke, Esq., is
deposited in the vicarage-house, for the use of the
vicars. The river Stour runs through the parish, which
lies in the northérnmost part of the county, border-
ing on the counties of Somerset and Wilts ; it is of great
extent, being about forty-one miles in circumference,
and includes the ancient Forest of Selwood, which was
disafforested by Charles I, on condition that the lessee
should maintain four hundred deer for the king's use.
About half a mile eastward from the church, on the
road to Shaftesbury, are traces of the ancient palace of the ©
Saxon and Norman kings, who made it their residence
when they came to hunt in the forest, The ctu
of linen has been carried on here from a very e
iod, but the inhabitants derive their principal profits
rich pastures and dairy-lands abounding in
horses, bullocks, and

from the'
A
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wards Earl of Clarendon, received part of his education
Edmund Irouside, in 1016, having vanquished | nsegl
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at. Pen in Somersetshire, the pursuit is said to have:

- extended hither, which is probable from the number of
pits now discernible in, W ‘on the
supposed field of a second httb

.GILLINGHAM, a parish in the hwdmd of Cuuo
mam and GruuinemaMm, lathe of Avirsvorp, ‘county
of Kent, 14 mile (E, by N.) from - Chatham, containing
6209 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the
peculiar jurisdiction of the Archbishop of Canterbury,
rated in the king's books at £15. 13. 114, and in the
patronage of the Principal and Fellows of Brasenose
College, Oxford., The, church, dedicated to St. Mary
Magdalene, was, formerly remarkable for containing
what was deemed a miraculous image of the Virgin,
called “ Our, Lady of Gillingham,” to which frequent

ﬂgnnmges were made ; it is a spacious fabric with a
| on each side of the chancel, which exhibits some

\t, portxons of Norman architecture. The font is
in the same style, very capacious, and surrounded by
arches rising from single pillars : some

fragments of the richly stained glass remain, with
which most of the windows were formerly filled by the
family of Beaufitz, lords of Twydiall, some of whom
lie buried here. Memorials of the Romans may be
d.l within its walls. On the south side of the
h-yard are foundations of an extensive building,

onm the archiepiscopal palace, the hall of which has
been converted into a barn, and where a coin of the
E r Antoninus has been discovered. There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. This ancient
vﬂlﬂge which is recorded in Domesday-book by the
name of Gelingeham, though now inconsiderable, was,
préviously to the rapid rise of the neighbouring town
of Chatham, a place of note, and its harbour on the
Medway was a principal station for the Royal navy. In

s reign of Elizabeth it possessed four quays, viz.,
Twyddf.n Midfiete, Dean Med End, and Beggar Hyde,
copthar with various ships and boats. = Charles I. erected
a fort for the protection of the royal dock~yard and navy,
whiﬁ proving ineffectual to resist the Dutch in their

. expedition up the river, in 1667, was sub-

enlaxged. and distinguished by the name of
castle, though it was never considered of
gt,rength. At present, however, the entire neigh-
bmhood is strongly fortified with outposts connected
with Chatham lines, within which, at the western ex-
tremity of the parish, is the populous village of
nmud on_ the brow of -a hill overlooking

the royal, dock yard of Chatham, and chiefly inhabited
by artizans and. others employed therein. This parish
is within the of a court of requests held in
the city of Rochester, for the recovery of debts under

+ £5, Elizabeth Petty, in 1723, bequeathed a rent-
of £19. 10. a year, for teaching fifteen children of |

Minghm and Chatham ; and Philip Tidd, in lass,rpve

or widow of the parish, who
mxmmﬂywhw
and i hmmmy

ho W,\h«e

......

MMMM”# ‘occupied by a
who should teach six children,

~ GILLINGHAM, . g the united parishes of
AllSuntlandﬂt«!Mlq “in the hundred’of Cy "M’ :
county of Nomrovk, 13 mile (N.byW.) from Beccles,
containing 369 inhabitants. The i united na
discharged rectory with Winston and ’ mddé, .lh‘ ,
archdeac,onry of Norfolk, and diocese of Ni e
jointly in the king's books at £ 10. 6. 8. Wolf I&wu,
Esq. was patron in 1797. ‘The church, dedicated’ fd
St. Mary, is principally of Norman architecture ; that'
of All Saints was demolished in 1748, but the
tower still remains, and, being overgrown with ny, pre
sents a venerable and interesting appearance.
GILLMONBY, a township in the parish of Bowzs,
western division of the wapentake of Ginrine, North
riding of the county of Yorxk, 5 miles (8. W. by W.) from
Barnavd-Castle, containing 175 inhabitants,
GILLMORTON, a parish in the hundred of Gura:
LAXTON, county of Leicesrer, 8 miles (N.E. byN)”"
from Lutterworth, containing 718 inhabitunts. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£17.14. 9%. The Rev. D. J. Burdett was patron in
1809. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
GILSTONE, a parish in the hundred of Bravenin,
‘county.of Hertrorp, 34 miles (W.by8.) from Saw-
bridgeworth, containing 213 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese
of London, rated in the king’s books at £10. 3. 4., and
in the patronage of the Bishop of London. The cbnrch :
has a quadrangular western tower, embattled and sur-
mounted by a spire. There are an endowed alnishouse,
and a trifling rent-charge towards the support of a
school for girls, ”“WF&
GIMINGHAM, a parish in the northern division of
the hundred of ERPINGHAM, county of Non.robt., 4
miles (N.) from North Walsham, i
bitants. The living is a rectory with that of Tnmoﬁ :
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwic
rated in the king's books at £1 1105 and in the
patronage of the Master and Fell ofCathemHﬂL *
Cambridge. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
GINGE (WEST), a tytl pari
INGE, hundred of Wmmm
population is returned with the

cmntyofSurronu,imﬂea(N.NB.)&amSM" ke
containing, with the hamlet of\Stow-MaﬂWt, 07 in
habitants. The living is a donative, endow
acres of l::d hmht;d&:l'um of about
acres, in the paris Smhqu
~of C. Tyrrell, Esq. The
htheﬂﬂmntl;




art. w _in,tsqr mohnich is dedicated to
4 M hlmeti;m*thehtultyhdwuh

of NEWARK, county of NorTiNGHAM, 8 miles

.E.byE) from Tuxford, containing, with Mering,
whxoh is deemed extra-parochial, 189 inhabitants.
living is a curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Nottingham, and diocese of York.

. GISBURN, a parish in the western division of the
wapentake of Staincrirre and Ewcross, West riding
of the county of York, compriging the townships of
Gisburn, Glsbum-Forest, Horton, Middop, Nappa, News-
holme; Paythorne, Ri n, and Swinden, and con-
huung 2530 inhabitants, of which number, 690 are in
the township.of Gisburn, 105 miles (W. by 8.) from
Skipton. The town is situated in a fertile plain, near
the eastern bank of the river Ribble, and at a short
distance from the borders of Lancashire. A market,
which was formerly held here on Mondays, has been
discontinued ; but there is a market or fair for cattle
every alternate Monday throughout the year, and fairs
annually on Easter Monday and the 18th and 19th of
September. In the township of Rimmington is a vein

. of lead-ore which contains a considerable portion of
silver. A court leet for the manor is held annually
in May, and another in November, at one of which a
constable is appomted for the township. The living is
a vi , in the archdeaconry and diocese of York,

"r in the king's books at £11. 6. 8., endowedfthh
“&900 liamentary t, and in the patronage of the

&mwm ckumh,gr::dlcawd to St.Mary, is a neat

edifice, including @ nave, aisles, and a chancel, with a

tower, i the later style of English architecture;
the windows are ornamented with stained glass. Here
is asd\oolvnh ‘a small endowment for the education

hild¥én. Qn an eminence near the

3 t.ownnhip in the parish of
N, western division of the wapentake of Srain-
: and Ewcross, West riding of the county of
‘miles (8.) from Settle, containing 457 mbu-
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of NorroLx, 4} miles (N. N. E.) from Diss, M
544 inhabitants. The living' h)tfeetory in the arch-
deaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £14. 16. 55. The Rev. SRW R.
Kempe, Bart. was patron in 1816. The church, dedi
cated to St. Mary, has a low rouud tower at the west end.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

GITTISHAM, aparish in the eastern division of the
hundred of BupLeiem, county of Devon, 24 miles
(8. W. by w.) from Homton, containing 351 mhabmmts
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £21. 8. 114,
and in the patronage of the Rev. T. Putt. Sir Thomas
Putt, in 1686, founded a charity school, and endowed
it with a rent-charge of £10 a year for teaching twenty
children.

GIVENDALE, a township in that part of the parish
of Rreon which is'within the liberty of Rirox, though
locally in the wapentake of Claro, West rndmg of the
county of York, 2 miles (8. E.) from Ripon, containing
31 inhabitants,

GIVENDALE, or GWENDALE (GREAT), a parish
in the Wilton-Beacon division of the wapentake of
Hartuinn, East riding of the county of Yorxk, com-
priging the townships of Great Givendale and Grim-
thorpe, and containing 89 inhabitants, of which number,
60 are in the township of Great Givendale, which is
partly within the liberty of St. Peter of York, 34 miles
(N. by E.) from Pocklington. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction aud patronage of
the Dean of York, rated in the king’s books at £4. 18. 4.,
endowed with £700 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty.

GLAISDALE, a parish in the eastern division of
the liberty of LaNgsaurea, Northriding of the county
of Yorxk, 10 miles (W.8. W.) from Whitby, commmng
1043 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, £400 royal
bounty, and £ 1500 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Archbishop of York. The church was
built in 1798, "upon the site of a more ancient edifice,
consecrated in 1388. A place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists was erected b y subscription in 1621. Samuel
Prudom, in 1741, and John Brodrick, in 1758, gave £2
per annum each, for ‘which eight boyslu-e instructed.

GLANDFORD, a parish in the hundred of Hovrr,
ommty of Norrorx, 1% mile (8. by W.) from Clay,

with the parish of Bayfield, 93 inhabitants.

-‘Thehvmghspapetualcmcynmenedtotheremﬁd

of Blakeney and Cockthorpe, in the archdeaconry and

diocese of Norwich. Thechurchxndedmtodb‘St.

Martin.
GLANDFORD-BRIGG, or BRIDGE, a market town

and  chapelry in the parish

of Wrawsy, southern' divi:
sion of the wapentake of Yumemou-., parts of Linp:
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n corn, coal, and timber, is carried on; and here
are several fur manufactories, hesides tanneries and
fellmongers' establishments ; and it is asserted, that
more  persons  are employed here in dressing rabbit-
skins than in any other provincial town in the kingdom.
A great improvement has been made by draining the
Ancholme level, the expense attending which is defray-
ed by a tax on land, and a duty on the tonnage of
the river. The market is on Thursday, and a fair is
held on the 5th of August. The petty sessions are held
here once a fortnight; and the town is within the juris-
diction of a court of requests for the recovery of debts
under £5, held at Alford every month, under an act
passed in the 47th of George III. The chapel, dedi-
cated to St. Mary, was erected in 1699, at the joint ex-
pense of four gentlemen, who endowed it with certain
estates vested in their respective heirs, and the trustees
of she free school. The Society of Friends, Indepen-
dents, and Primitive, and Wesleyan Methodists, have
each a place of worship; and there is a chapel for the
Roman Catholics. The free grammar school was found-
ed in 1669, pursuant to the will of Sir John Nelthorpe,
Bart., who endowed it with certain lands vested in trus-
tees for that purpose. Boys born in the town of Brigg,
and in all other parishes where the founder possessed
estates, are entitled to gratuitous instruction in the
Latin and Greek languages ; and all other boys, where-
'soever born, were to be taught reading, writing, and a¢-
counts, free of expense, by a master and an usher, for
cach of wliom the founder desired that a house should
be erected : the number of scholars is limited to eighty.
In the reign of John, an hospital was founded here by
Adam Paynel, which was a cell to the abbey of Selby
in Yorkshire ; but all traces of it have disappeared.

GLANTLEES, a joint township with Greens, in
that part of the parish of FrLron which is in the east-
ern division of CoqueTpare ward, county of NorTh-
UMBERLAND, 74 miles (8.8.W.) from Alnwick, contain-
ing 76 inhabitants.

GLANTON, a township in the parish of Wairring-
#aMm, northern division of CoqueTpaLE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 9f miles (W.) from Alnwick,
containing 474 inhabitants. There is a place of wor-
ship for Presbyterians ; and the township has recently
been much improved by the erection of several hand-
some houses. On a lofty eminence called Glanton Pike
was formerly a beacon. ~Several stone coffins, and urns

ontaining pieces of charcoal and burnt bones, were dis-
lcowu'od ; t]ut: 113716; ds?r;vapons which evidently be-
onged to ritons. ere is a petrifying - at
the bottom of which shell marl is found. wdl,

GLAPTHORN, a parish in the hundred of WiLy-

church is dedicated to St.

w"'-yyﬁl:-‘,'h*- iy

PR3 VAN
P d’;{[ Sgapen
! ;

)

224

wr X Qﬂ;}“jy

Usk which is in the lower div
Usk, county of Monmours, 3

from Usk, 201 inhabitan f»
place of worshipfm'g-pﬁm. ir, 1 U ;
GLASCOTE, a joint township with Bolehall,

s
part of the parish of TAMworTn which is in the
worth division of the hundred of HemrLINGFORD, county
of Warwick, 14 mile (S.E.) from Tamworth, mt%
ing 414 inhabitants, : ; i

GLASS-HOUSE-YARD, a liberty in the an-bug
division of the hundred of Ossursrone, county of
MippLEsEX, containing 1358 inhabitants. N

GLASSONBY, a township in the parish of Ap-
pINGHAM, Leata ward, county of CuMBERLAND,
8 miles (N. E. by N.) from Penrith, containing 153 inha~
bitants.

GLASTON, a township in the parish of ALpiNGHAM,
hundredof LoxspaLe, north of the sands, county palatine
of LANCASTER, 3 miles (8.E.) from Dalton. The popula-
tion is returned with the parish. Glaston may be
termed the modern port of Lancaster ; it is situated on
the river Lune, and has a spacious dock opened in 1787,
and capable of receiving twenty-five large merchant
vessels, the cargoes of which are discharged here and
forwarded by smaller craft to Lancaster. A canal
passes from the dock and forms a junction with the
Preston and Lancaster canal.

GLASTON, a parish in the hundred of WeANDIKE, .
county of Rurranp, 2 miles (E.N.E.) from Uppingham,
containing 188 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peter-
borough, rated in the king's books at £12. 16. 104,,
annexed to the Mastership of Peter House, Cambrid
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew. Wil
Roberts, in 1725, gave £ 100 for the education of
children, the interest of which is applied to that
pose.

GLASTONBURY, a mar-
ket town having separate
jurisdiction, locally in the
hundred of Glaston-Twelve- )%
Hides, county of SoMERsET, {
74 miles (N. by E) from o¥
Somerton, and 124 (W. by




| in Britdin. In thé most anciertt charters of
on: , G is styled “The fountain and
of all in'the realm of Britain.” When the
wurch erected by Joseph had fallen into decay, Devi,

op of St. David's, rebuilt it on the same spot, and

" on its subsequent decay, it was restored by twelve per-
#ons from the northern parts of England.  St. Patrick,
who came from Treland about 489, is said to have
spent thirty years of his life in this convent, and to
have formed the brethren, who préviously lived in huts
scattered round the church, into a regular community,
restoring also the primitive form of Christianity, which
after the death of Lucius, the first Christian king of
Britain, had fallen into disuse. About the year 530,
David, Archbishop of Menevia, with seven of his
suffragans, retired to this place, and greatly improved
the church, to the east end of which he added a chapel,
dedicated to the Holy Virgin, and enriched the altar
with a sapphire of inestimable value. The celebrated
King Arthur, after the fatal battlé with his nephew

* . Mordred, was interred in this isle : his remains are said
to have been discovered in the reign of HenryIIL., who
ordering a search to bé made, a leaden cross was found,
with a Latin inscription’in the rude characters of that
age, to this effect, “ Here lies the famous King Arthur,
buried in the Isle of Avalon.”" Beneath was observed

a coffin-like excavation in the solid rock, containing
the bones of a human body, supposed to be those of
Arthur, which were then depogited in the church, and
covered with & sumptuous monument. St. Augustine,
on his arrival in Britain, visited Glastonbury, and
attempted to introduce into the abbey the rules of the
der of St. Benedict, but the measure was not attend-
with success. The monastery, during the Heptarchy,
been much favouréd by successive monarchs, and
708, Ina, King of the West Saxons, took down the
buildings, which were greatly dilapidated,
the abbey from ‘its foundation in a style
* gplendour. In 942, Dunstan, who was ap-
by King Edred, and to him that mon-
s monastery; he enlarged the
| style of wunrivalled magni-
completed an establish-
inféndence, became the

entu
0

GLA

seized on their possessions ; he imposed on the monks
an abbot of his own nomination, whose tyranny ulti-
mately compelled him to retire into Normandy. ' Under
his snccessor, the abbey recovered many of the estates
of which it had been deprived ; and during the abbacy
of Henry de Blois, brother of King  Stephen, whose
liberality and prudence equally promoted the interest of
the monks, and the cultivation of literature am

them, it regained the greater part of its mﬁ.&‘z
wealth, and retrieved its prior fame and importance.
A considerable portion of the abbey having been de-
stroyed by fire in 1184, it was restored by Henry IL,
who granted the abbots a charter, confirming all the
privileges which had been obtained from his prede-
cessors ; but its internal tranquillity was greatly inter-
rupted by the violent contentions between the monks
and the bishop of Wells, with respect to the nomi-
nation of the abbots, which continued, with trifimg
intermissions, until the Reformation. In 1276, the
abbey was much injured by the shock of an earth-
quake, which threw down the church of St. Michael on
the Torr Hill. The strict discipline prevailing in the
establishment for a time delayed its preconcerted fate ;
but, in 1589, its venerable abbot, Whytyng, refusing to
surrender to the commissioners of Henry VIIL, was
arraigned and condemned for high treason, and, with
two of his monks, being drawn on a sledge to Torr Hill,
was hanged and quartered ; his head was placed over
the entrance to the abbey, and his members were -ex-
posed at Bath, Bridg-water, Wells, and Tichester. At the
dissolution of this celebrated monastery, which had fiou-
rished from the earliest introduction of Christianity into
Britain, the revenue was £3508. 13. 4. The abbey
and its dependencies comprehended a space of nearly
sixty acres : the ruins consist chiefly of the chapel of
St. Joseph, and of the conventual church:
the prevailing character of the chapel is Norman, but
the details and enrichment, which are in good pre-
servation, are in the early style of English architecture.
The remains of the church are of a less embellished
character, but exhibit much of the pure simplicity of
the early English style, with some portions of a later
date. The abbot's kitchen is the most entire, and is
probably of more recent erection than the other build-
ings: it is of an form, having four fire-places;
the roof /is finely vaulted, and from the centre rises
an octagonal pyramid, crowned with a double Jantern, of
curious design: the ruins are richly overspread with
ivy, and present a striking memorial of departed

 The town stands on the declivity of a considerable

eminence nearly in the centre of the county, and con-

sists of a us street forming the{:mcrpdtho-

' , intersected nearly at right angles by

of smaller extent : the houses are in general, low,

there ‘are several of more recent erection and of more
' e appearance ; and many houses in different

the
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the venerable remains by which it is surrounded,
has been ervected by the present ‘of the
abbey land. The town is’ well paved and lighted by
act of parliament, and supplied ‘with water from a fine
spring issuing from the ridge of a hill;, three quarters
of a mile distant, and collected in an ancient reservoir
of stone, whence it is conveyed by pipes into the town.
The principal branches of manufacture are those of
stockings ‘and ‘a’'coarse sort of gloves, which have su-
perseded the woollen manufacture formerly carried on
here, and at present afford employment to several hun-
dred persons in the town and neighbourhood. It is in
contemplation to form a communication between this
town ‘and ‘Bridg-water, by means of a canal from the
river Parret, at Boroughbridge. The market days were
formerly Tuesday and Saturday, the former has been
discontinued, and the latter is now only for butchers’
meat: the fairs are on the Wednesday in Easter-week,
September ' 19th, called the Torr fair, principally for
horses, October 10th, and the Monday week after St.
Andrew's day. The government, by charter of Queen
Anne, is vested in a mayor, recorder, seven superior,
and sixteen inferior, burgesses, assisted by a town clerk,
two ‘coroners, and subordinate officers. The mayor,
who is chosen annually from the superior burgesses,
the recorder, who must be a barrister of three years
standing, and the late mayor, are justices of the peace
within the "borough. The corporation hold quarterly
courts of session for the trial of all offenders within
the borough; and a court leet for the hundred is held
in the town.

Glastonbury comprises the parishes of St. Benedict
and St.John the Baptist, and gives name to a peculiar
jurisdiction which extends over several parishes. The
living of St. Benedict's is a donative annexed to the per-
petual curacy of St. John's, jointly endowed with £800
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £600 par-
liamentary grant, and in the peculiar jurisdiction and
patronage of the Bishop of Bath and Wells. The church-
wardens of St. John's are a body corporate with a common
seal, and have estates producing at present about £ 500
per annum; of which part was granted in the year 1300.
The churches are both interesting structures in the
later style of English architecture, with towers of very
graceful and highly enriched character of which the
former has open turrets and bm'.lements, and more
decoration than the latter, which is notwithstanding a
fine" composition. There ‘are places of worship for
Baptists, the Society of Friends, Wesleyan Methodists,
and Independents, which last has an endowment of £80
per annum. ‘A National school, in which thirty boys
£ “vgmm garesae—
- Y y ‘an’ ap per sanum,
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inhabited by ten aged women ; attached to. each is.a
small chapel, and in the hall of each; one .
tenant is allowed to reside in expectation of ‘the first
vacancy. On the summit of Torr Hill, at a short distance
from the town, is the tower of St. Michael, the. only
part remaining of a splendid church and monastery,
erected on the site of a former one which was destroyed
by an earthquake in 1276 ; over the west entrance is
a sculptured figure of St. Michael, holding in his hand &
pair of scales, in one of which is the bible, and in the
other the devil, aided by an imp in .a fruitless effort to
outweigh the sacred volume. = Weary-all hill, the spot
where Joseph of Arimathea and his disciples are stated
to have rested after their pilgrimage, is  connected with
a legendary account of the origin of a species of thorn,
called the Glastonbury thorn: on this hill, the legend
relates, Joseph struck his staff into the ground, which
immediately taking root, grew up into a flourishing
tree, producing in succeeding ages what was called the
holy thorn, there being still some trees of that species
in the neighbourhood. Equally absurd with this is .a
variety of other legendary tales which have heen inter-
woven into the history of this place. Some chalybeate
springs were discovered here, which about the middle of
the last century were numerously attended by invalids
from Bath, Bristol, and other parts of the eountry, and
such was the repute of their medicinal properties, that
the water was sent in bottles to London. A great variety
of organic remains consisting chiefly of nautili, eornua
ammonis, bivalves, &c., have been found imbedded in
the quarries near Torr Hill. Henry Fielding, the cele-
brated novelist, was a native of Sharpham park, in this
parish ; and among the many illustrious personages who
have been interred here, are several of the Slxon kings,
together with a numerous train of noblemen, bishops,
abbots, and priors. Glastonbury formerly conferred the
title of baron on the family of Greville, which became
extinct on the death of the late lord without issue, .
GLATTON, a parish in the hundred of m
Cross, county of HuNTiNgDON, 24 miles (8. 8. W.) from
Stilton, containing 358 inhabitants. The llvln&o‘u:
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £21. 8, J13.
TheRevJHophmwupatmninmys The
church is dedicated to St. Nu:holu. bl
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wm (et Beqweus jutron’dn 1596, | The

mnsmm-umh in'the lmndmdnf Baum-,
county of SurroLk, 4% miles (E. N.E.) from Clare, con-
ﬂntng 1mh&bimm ‘The is ‘a rectory, in
‘of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich,
hwdlnthe 8 books at £30, and in the patronage
of thrﬂﬁdp of Ely. The church' is dedicated to St.
Mary.' In the time of Edward the Confessor a collegiate
society of priests, under the government of a dean, was
established here, and ‘invested with several privileges,
whlch were confirmed to them by Henry III.

"GLEN (MAGNA), aparish in the lmndred of Gar-
nn,‘ county of LeicesTer, 6 miles (8. E.) from Lei-
cester, containing, with the chapelry of Great Stretton,
714 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books ‘at £12. 14. 2. Sir G. Robinson, Bart. was pa-
tron 'in 1814. The church is dedicated to St. Cuth-
bert. ' The Leicester Union canal passes through the

ish.
p.nGLEN (PARVA), a chnpelry in that part of the
parish of Avvgsrone which is in the hundred of
GuraLAxTON, county of LEICESTER, 4} miles (S. by W.)
from Leicester, containing 128 inhabitants.

‘GLENDON, a parish in the hundred of RorawzLy,
eounty’ of NorraAMPTON, 8 miles (N. W. by N.) from
Kettering, containing 37 inhabitants. The living is
a réctory, in the archdedconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£8, endowed with £1200 royal bounty. Mrs. Booth
was patroness in 1814, The church is dedicated to St.
H&len. e

G‘LENP‘[ELD a parish in the hundred of SPARKEN-
non, ‘county of hwnm:, 34 miles (W. N.W.) from
Leicester, the chapelries of Braunstone and
Kirby-Muxloe, and the liberties of Braunstone-Frith,
Glenfield-Frith, and Kirby-Frith, and containing 932
inhabitants,  The living, a rectory, is (exclusively oc;f its
chapelries) in the peculhr jurisdiction of the Lord of the
Manor of Grosby, and in the patronage of the Trustees
of the late Clement Winstanley, Esq., rated in the king's
books at £13. 9. 95, The church is dedicated to St.
Nth'r. ‘There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-

mm a liberty he parish of
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vicarage, with the curacy of Spittal on the Street, in
the archdeaconry of Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £7. 17. 6. The Earl of Scarbo=
rough was patron in 1802. The church, dedicated to St.
Michael, contains a sumptuous monument to the me-
mory of Sir Christopher Wray, Kut., Lord Chief Justice
in the reign of Elizabeth. Near the church is an alms-
house for three poor women,

GLIDDEN, a tything in the parish and hundred
of HamsrEDON, Portsdown division of the county of
SourHAMPTON, 8 miles (8. W.) from Petersfield. The
population is returned with the parish. It is within the
jurisdiction of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester
every Thursday, for the recovery of debts to any
amount.

GLINTON, a parish in theliberty of PETERBOROUGH,
county of NorraAMPTON, 8 miles (8.8.E,) from Mar-
ket-Deeping, containing 372 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, with the rectory of Peakirk, in
the archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peter-
borough. The church, dedicated to St. Benedict, has
a tower and spire mostly in the later style of Engluh
architecture.

GLOOSTON, a parish in the hundred of GArTrEE,
county of LEICESTER, 53 miles (N. byE.) from Market-
Harborough, containing 142 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8. The Earl
of Cardigan was patron in 1802. The church is dedi-
cated to St. John.

GLORORUM, a township in the parish of Bam-
BROUGH, northern division of BAMBROUGH ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 4§ miles (E.) from Belford, con-
taining 46 inhabitants.

GLOSSOP, a parish in the hund red of Hicu Prax,
county of DErBY, comprising the chapelries of Charles-
worth, Chinley-Bugsworth with Brownside, and Mellor ;
the townships of Chunat, Dinting, Glossop, Great-
Hamlet, Hadfield, Ludworth with Chisworth, Padfield,
Simondsley, and Whitfield ; the hamlets of Beard, Kin-
der, Olerset, Thornsett, and Whittle ; and the liberty of
Phoside, and containing 13,766 inhabitants, of which
number, 1351 are in the township of Glossop, 10 miles
(N.) from Chapel en le Frith, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of
Lichfield, rated in the king's books at £12. 18. 9., en-
dowed with £400 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Duke of Norfolk, The church, dedicated
* to All Saints, has lately received an addition of two
hundred and eighty sittings, of which one hundred and
forty ‘are free, the Incorporated Society for the enlarge-
ment of churches and chapels having granted £200
towards~defraying the expense. There are several places.

- of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.

‘within the limits of this extensive parish, the
of which has more than doubled during the last fifty
manufactures. '

n » owing to the great increase of its .
"+ are gbout fifty cotton-mills, five extamve mhlnh-
 ments fom calicowprinting,

two
factory for cloth, and another for brown
for cattle, and wboden and tin ware,
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the jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at yury every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of under 40s. On
the south side of the Mersey, near Woolley Bridge, are
vestiges of a Roman station, in dimensions one hun-
dred and twenty-two yards by one hundred and twelve,
called Melandra Castle ; the moat towards the south-east,
the four entrances, the ramparts, about nine feet in thick-
ness, and the site of the pretorium, twenty-five yards
square, are still discernible, as is the old Roman road
from Brough to this place, and that to Buxton.
GLOSTERHILL, a township in that part of the
parish of WarkworTa which is in the eastern division
of MorrETH ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 8%
miles (8.E.) from Alnwick, containing 31 inhabitants.
It is situated on the southern bank of the Coquet, near
its confluen ea.
TN GLOUCESTER, a city,
# inland port, and county of
#98 itself, locally in the hundred
) ¢ of Dudstone and King’s Bar-
ton, county of GLOUCESTER,
34 miles (N.N.E.) from Bris-
%) tol, and 107 (W.N.w.) from
3 London,onthe road to South
\| Wales, containing 9744 in-
’ " habitants. This was a town
of considerable importance
Arms. prior to the Roman invasion:
its origin is generally ascribed to the Dobumi, a tribe
of Britons who settled in this part of the country;
and, either from its founder, Glowi, a mative chief, or,
with greater probability, from its eminence, obtained
the appellation of Caer Glou, British words implying,
according to the former supposition, the city of Glowi,
or according to the latter, the fair city. Richard of
Cirencester relates that this British fortress was taken
in the year 47 by the Romans, who established here
@ colony, which he styles Glebon ; and in the Itinerary
of Antoninus, as well as other ancient writings, it is
denominated Glevum Colonia. Its situation on the Ryk-
mnield Street, which was both a British and a Roman road
here passing over the Severn, rendered it a station of
importance. The exact site of the Roman station is
supposed to have been a tract of land, now in tillage, to
the north-east of the present city, called King's Holme,
near which was a palace belonging to the Anglo-Saxon™
kings of Mercia, in old deeds named Regia Domus : on
‘this spot have been found Roman coins, urns, and o

ficing ummls. Tradition relates that Lucius, thg hig
ox»?gefut :

Christian king of Britain, founded a bish
Gloucester, in the second century, and thag h
‘buried in the church of St. Mary de Lode, *in thj

‘%Wm.mthc approach of an

“ e “' ':1{1,
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cester, in 964, styles this a “royal city.,” It was res
peatedly plundered by the Danes; "b;, whom, in the
reign of Ethelred IL, it was taken, and nearly destroyed
by fire. The injury it suffered was, however, soon re<
paired ; and Edmund Ironside having here taken up his
quarters, after his defeat by Canute at Assandune, chal=
lenged that prince to decide their mutual claim to ‘the
kingdom by single combat, which took place in the Isle of
Alney, on the south-western side of the city. Edward
the Confessor often resided here in regal splendour, as
also did William I. (who erected the castle on the bank
of the Severn), William II., and others of his successors.
According to Camden, a mint was established here in
the reign of John, on whose death, in 1216, his son,
Henry II1., was crowned in the abbey church, by the
Bishop of Winchester, in the presence of the pope's
legate. This king, in 1263, having appointed’ Sir Maci
de Besile, a Frenchman, sheriff for Gloucestershire, and
constable of Gloucester castle, the citizens, and the no-
hility of the county, taking umbrage at the promotion
of a foreigner, chose for their governor Sir William de
Tracy, who, proceeding to hold a county court, was
arrested by de Besile, and imprisoned in the castle.
The discontented nobles then besieged and captured that
fortress, which they held for some time; but at length
surrendered it to Prince Edward, afterwards Edward 1.;
who in 1279 held a parliament here, in which various
laws were enacted, called “ the Statutes of Gloucester.”
Another parliament was held at this place by Richard I1.
in 1378 ; others by Henry IV. in 1403 and 1407 ; and
finally a parliament was summoned here by Henry V.,
in 1420, which, at the expiration of fourteen days, was
adjourned to Westminster. When hostilities took place
between Charles I. and the parliament, the citizens
declared in favour of the latter; and having pro-
tifications, with threpmu;iltmmdof f b
, Wil e ce of a few regular
under the government of Colonel Massie, they rm
to defend themselves against all opposition. In the
middle of February, :lz;l, Lord Herbert, son of the
Marquis of Worcester, besieged the city at the head
of two thousand Welch royalists ; and after remaining
before it five weeks, surrendered himself and his’ fol-

Waller go relieve the place.
vantage of the opportunity afforded




; m s evil. George IIL, the queen, and the prlnceuee,
vigited Gloucester on their route from Cheltenham in
1788, and in 1807 his late Majesty, George IV., then

ce of Wales, dined with the corporation, and re-
qdyed the freedom of the city.

Gloucester is pleasantly situated in a fertile vale,
qnthg eastern bank of the river Severn, and consists
principally of four spacious streets diverging at right
angles from the centre of the town towards the car-
dinal points, and originally terminated by the East,
North, South, and West gates, from which they re-
spectively took their names. At the point of intersec-
tion was an elegant cross, surrounded by four churches,
of ;which only one is now remaining. The West
gate, on the western bank of the river, was standing
till the recent ervection of the new bridge, many
years previously to which the other gates had been re-
moved, This bridge is a handsome structure of stone,
congisting of one arch eighty-seven feet in the span,
with a plain parapet and cornice; the approaches
on both sides are defended by iron palisades: from
it .a causeway, half a mile in length, extends across
the Isle of Alney to Over, where is a noble bridge of
one arch, in the construction of which the segments
of a circle and an ellipsis have been combined. The
streets are well paved, and lighted with gas, by a com-
pany incorporated in 1820 : the houses are in general
handsome and well built, and the inhabitants are
amply supplied with. water from the Severn, and with
spring water from a reservoir at the distance of two
mles and a half from the city, conveyed into their

houses by plpes The approaches are ornamented

with ranges of modern substantial houses, and the
entrance from Cheltenham displays many mansions in

- situations, suited for the residence of fami-
lies of opulence and distinction. A horticultural so-
ciety, and a permanent tion library, have been
-established, ‘and a society for the cultivation of na-
tural history was formed in 1829. Triennial musi-
cal festivals of the united choirs of Gloucester, Wér-

sster, and Hereford, are celebrated here, at which ora-

s and selections of sacred music are performed in

mdm. and miscellaneous concerts and balls are _
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tion of visitors: near it have been built some hand-

some villas, and in 1823 a church, dedicated to the
Holy Trinity, was erected, in the Grécian style of archi-

tecture, from a design by Mr. Rickman ; the whole form-

ing an elegant appendage to the city, under the designa-

tion of Gloucester Spa. The mineral water is a saline
chalybeate, resembling that of Cheltenham ; and, when
fresh drawn, is transparent and ﬂparklmg, it emits a
sulphureous odour, and has a brackish taste, It exudes
through a thick stratum of blueish clay, which is dif-
fused, at a certain depth, over a great part of the vale,
In this clay are found large quantities of marine exuvie,
sulphuret of iron, and various saline compounds, which
being in some degree soluble in the water percolating
through the mass, communicate its peculiar properties.

The principal salts contained in this water, of which
there are several varieties, are sulphate and muriate of
soda, and sulphate of magnesia : it is also impregnated
with iron, held in solution by excess of carbomic acid ;
and from its resemblance to the Cheltenham waters it
may in general be used in similar cases.

As an inland port, Gloucester had attained some
eminence at an early period. The quay is mentioned
as existing in the reign of Edward IV., and in the
22nd of Elizabeth the customsewere granted by letters
patent. In the following year the custom-house was
erected, and also a wharf, or guay, for unloading ves-
sels, called the King's quay. The rising prosperity of
the port excited the jealousy of the inhabitants of Bris-
tol, who addressed to the privy council an unavailing
complaint against the establishment of the custom-house.
The jurisdiction of the port, as fixed by a decree of the
lords of the treasury, in 1820, extends from Chapel
rock, or St. Teclas’ point, at Beachley, on the north
side of the Severn, below Gloucester, across the river
to Aust Pill, including, on the south side, both banks,
up to the West-gate bridge, in the city of Gloucester ;
but, according to practice, the limits of the port are
from the source of the Severn, in Montgomeryshire, to
Chapel rock, at Beachley. The number of vessels
belonging to the port, in 1828, was two hundred and
thirty, averaging fifty-four tons' burden. It carries on
an extensive coasting trade, which is greatly facilitated
by the advantages afforded by the river Severn, for
keeping up a communication with Bristol and the coasts

_®f Somersetshire, Devonshire, and South Wales, ‘and a

very considerable inland trade with Worcestershire, and
other counties to the north. Many vessels are em-
ed on this river in the coal trade, upwards of one

d thousand tons of coal being annually shipped

from’ the Shropshire and Staffordshire collieries, for dis-
gbntuﬂ through the adjacent counties. Great quantities
lead, pig iron, grain, wool, hops, and other commo-

, are also conveyed from the inland counties to
Gloucester Bristol, and other places, whence various
kinds of goods are transmitted in return. The benefit
of water-carriage has been further extended to this city

. by the Gloucester and Berkeley canal, which was com-.
: ~menced in 1793, &nd opened April Qﬁth, 1827, at an

the ‘es-
expense ‘was £140,000: it extends six-
mileamdaqwl::l‘{ommmnuswp
mt;ufmmmmmmmm and
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ious basin for the reception of & ~and at Glou- _ The  municipal constitu-
Sc‘;:ar a second basin, with convenient g s for barges “of this city has varied
and small vessels drawing less than ten feet of water. considerably at Qifferent pe-

By means of this canal, a more safe, speedy, and conve-
nient passage is afforded for ships than by sailing up the
Severn. Some opinion may be formed of the advan-
tages it affords from the fact that, during the first two
years after it was finished; seven thousand seven hun-
dred and forty-one vessels traversed the line, the aggre-
gate burden of which was three hundred and eighty-
eight thousand five hundred and thirty tons. The He-
reford and (Gloucester canal, for facilitating the navi-
gation between Hereford, Gloucester, and Bristol, was
begun in 1792, and, after an expenditure of £ 105,000,
has been ,carried no further than Ledbury, a distance
of only seventeen miles, its proposed extent being about
thirty. In addition to these advantages is the benefit of
a junction with the Stroudwater canal, which opens a
communication with London by means of the Thames :
there is also a rail-road, extending from the quay to the
town of Cheltenham.

Gloucester is said to have been a place of consi-
derable trade before the time of the Conquest ; and in
addition to the mint, there was a merchants’ guild,
established in the reign of John, who granted the
burgesses exemption from toll, and other privileges
and immunities. Forges for the smelting of ore ap-
pear to have subsisted here so early as the twelfth
century, and Long Smith-street derived its name
from the number of artizans by whom it was inha-
bited : cap or felt-making, the refining of sugar, and
the manufacture of glass, which formerly flourished,
have been long discontinued. The principal branches
of manufacture carried on at present are those of iron
and pins; the latter, which was introduced in 1625
by Mr. John Tilsby, may be now considered as the
staple trade of the place ; the former, especially since
the establishment of a foundry by Mr. Montague, in
1802, has greatly improved, and the castings lately
produced are distinguished by a’degree of excellence al-
most unrivalled : some of the medals and smaller pro-
ductions are executed with such'admirable skill as to
be held in the ‘highest estimation, and to find a place
in the cabinets of‘ the curious. ‘A bell foundry has.
been carried on for nearly a century and a half, by thg
family of Mr. Rudhall, the original proprietor, in tie
course of which period not less than five thousand church-

ian
bells of various sizes have been cast: the trade of, waol . ar

stapling, which formerly afforded employment to many
persons, has been in a great measure supersededl hy the
dressing of hemp and flax : an establishment for the,
manufacture of shawls ‘in imitation of those of France,
has heen discontinued for several years. The days
are Wednesday and Saturday, and there h;narh‘et
for live stock on the first Monday in every + the'
markets were formerly held in the open streets, but two
large and commodious market-houses have bgen erected ;
one in- Eastgate-street, for the sale ; ;
try, and vegetables ; and the other in

for fish, butter, &c.: in front of the latter are ‘two

U, g

)  riods: ' in 1022, the chief
7/ magistrate is said to have

/ borne the title of praefect,
§/  and in the reign of HenryTL,
that of provost: under John
it was constituted a borough,
and governed by ‘two bai-
h AN liffs.  Henry III. granted
Corporate Seal. a charter of incorporation;
under bailiffs or provosts, of whom there was a sue-
cession till the 1st of Richard IIL, who bestowed a
new charter, appointing a mayor, two sheriffs, and
other officers, to be annually elected by twelve alder
men, and twelve other of the most legal and discreet
burgesses : he also ordained that the hundreds of Dud-
stone and King's Barton should be distinct from'the
county, and be called the county of the town of Glou-
cester. Henry VII confirmed all former grants and’
privileges ; and HenryVIIL, on establishing the bishop-
rick of Gloucester, in 1542, directed that it should
thenceforth be considered as a city. Edward VL;
Elizabeth, James L., and Charles L., confirmed preceding’
grants; but the charter which finally extended and es-
tablished the liberties and franchises of the city, and
under the authority of which the corporation now act,’
was granted April 18th, 1672, in consideration of a
payment to the king of £679. 4. 6. The govern<
ment is by this charter vested in a mayor, who is also
clerk of the market, and acts as marshal or steward
of the royal household when His Majesty i§ in the
city; a high steward, a recorder, twelve aldermen, any’
number of common council-men, which, with the mayor
and aldermen, will make the corporation gonsist of at
least thirty members, and not exceed forty, assisted by a
town clerk, treasurer, chamberlain, water-bailiff, sword-
bearer, four ‘at maee,
The mayor is elected annually by 1
own body, assisted :
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%m in the week,.but it has not
held the last forty years. Under charter of
e 1st of William and Mary, a court of requests is held
by the mayor and alderman every Monday, for the re-
covery of debts under 40s. The custom of Borough
English prevails here. The assizes and qmtuseuions
for the county are held in this city, which is in the Ox-
" circuit ; the average number of criminal cases at
e spring assizes is from one hundred and forty to
hundred and fifty ; and, at the autumn, from one
to one hundred and twenty. The munici-
affairs of the city are transacted at a building
the Tolsey, which stands at the angle formed
Westgate and Southgate streets; on the site of a
urch dedicated to All Saints : it was erected in pur-
suance of an act of parliament passed in the 23rd of
George IL: in the front is a pediment ornamented
with ‘the city arms; and in the council-chamber are
portraits of the late Duke of Norfolk and of the pre-
sent Duke of Gloucester. The city gaol, situated at
the bottom of Southgate-street, erected in 1782, being
too small, was, a few years since, enlarged and im-
proved, with the addition of a chapel, in which divine
service is regularly performed by a chaplain appointed
by the corporation. Adjoining this prison a lock-up-
house has been erected, as a place of temporary con-
finement for vagrants and disorderly persons. The
assizes were formerly held in an old edifice called the
Booth-hall, situated behind the Booth-hall inn, in West-

; but in 1814 a new and magnificent shire-
hall, in the Grecian style of architecture, was erected,
of Bath and Leckhampton stone, from a design by R.
_ Smirke, Esq.: it stands on the south side of Westgate-
~ street: in the front is a portico of four Ionic columns,
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w feet forming the principal entrance.
‘The '/ . extends three hundred feet in depth,
~and . eigh in front; on one side of the portico
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Gloucester is said to have

\ havmg preelded over the dio=
yA| cese in 490. This first bishop-

¥ rick was probably suppressed
when the country was con-

quered by the Anglo-Saxons;

and the whole county of Glou=

cester, which formed part of
the kingdom of Mercia, was,

on the introduction of Christianity,included in the diocese

of Lichfield. In 679 it was annexed to the newly esta-

blished bishoprick of Worcester, to which it belonged till

the Reformation, at which period Henry VIIL, by letters
patent dated September 8rd, 1541, confirmed by act of
parliament, erected the city and county of the city of
Gloucester, and all the county of Gloucester, into a see,

to which he also annexed so much of the city and courty
of the city of Bristol as had formerly belonged to the dio-
cese of Worcester. This new bishoprick was suppressed
by Queen Mary, but re-established on the accession of
Elizabeth. The ecclesiastical establishment consists of
a bishop, dean, archdeacon, chancellog six prebendaries,
four minor canons, registrar, and other officers. On
the foundation of the bishoprick the abbey church of St.
Peter was constituted the cathedral church. This con-
ventual edifice owed its origin to Wulphere, the first
Christian king of Mercia, who, about 680, commenced
the erection of a monastery, which was completed
by his brother and successor Ethelred. It was at first
a nunnery, which, being destroyed by the Danes, was
refounded by Bernulf, King of Mercia, in 821, for the
reception of secular priests. Canute the Dane, in 1022,
ejected these priests, and introduced Benedictine
monks, who, after some opposition, kept possession of
the monastery, which was governed by a succession of
thirty-two abbots belonging to that order, the last of
whom was William Malvern, otherwise Parker, who
wrote a history of the abbey, and died in retirement
after the dissolution. The monastery and its posses-

sions were surrendered to the king's commissioners in
January, 1540, by the prior, Gabriel Morton, when
ﬁmennewuumnmdntilﬂds 9. Of the
monastic buildings there are no remains except the
dlmh chapter-house, and cloisters, which escaped de-

ﬂ”slm of the episcopal establishment.
The present cathedral is one of the most magnificent

Arms of the Bishoprick.

ecclesiastical structures in England, combining specimens

‘«Nm with early and later English, architecture = u
a nave, choir, aisles, transepts, Lady
tral tower, besides other puu of less

t parts are the nave, the

b the choir, and the crypt,
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in1457. Befween 1851 and 1390, the cldnenmm
structed ; the west front and tovth e

of thechapelofourl.ady,nndth@ central
were begun in 1457, under the direction of Abbot Sebroke,
who, dying that year, committed the execution of the
work to Robert Tulley, one of the monks, who after-
wards became bishop of St.David's: the chapel was
finished in 1498, and the tower in 1518. Notwith-
standing the variety of style in its architecture, the
exterior presents a noble and impressive appearance :
the tower, in particular, though of colossal dimensions,
from the taste and delicacy of its ornaments has a light
and airy effect, which adds greatly to the beauty of the
whole . it is a square structure of three stages, rising
from the intersection, and crowned with battlements
and angular pinnacles. On the south side of the
‘church are six buttresses with niches, formerly de-
‘corated with statues of tutelar saints and benefactors
of the abbey, which, with other ornaments, were de-
faced at the Reformation, and during the usurpation of
Cromwell. The west front and the south porch, in the
decorated style of English architecture, display elegance
of taste and symmetry of proportion. Ou entering the
cathedral through the porch, on the left hand, is the
consistory court ; and opposite the entrance, across the
mave, is a gate of light open iron-work, presenting in
pleasing perspective a view of the exquisite tracery of
the roof of the great cloister: the western extremity
is adorned with a finely painted window. The nave is
separated from the aisles by massive round pillars, from
which spring semicircular arches ; and its roof- displays
tracery which is most ornamented towards the west
end. A classically correct and: appropriate screen, sepa-
rating the nave from the choir, was erected in 1820,
displacing one of a very different character. Elegant
clustered pillars rise from the base to the roof of
“the choir, where, by the branching of their cylinders,
‘they contribute to form the delicately heautiful trellis-
‘work by which it is ornamented. The sides of the
«choir are embellished with spiral canopies of rich ta-
bernacle-work, carved in oak, exhibiting some of the
finest specimens of English ornamental carving now
extant, The high altar, which was of oak, with deco-
rations in the Grecian style of architecture, has
:very properly removed, as inconsistent with the pue-
. character of the building,

-curimu pavement of painted bricks; or tiles,

nrmqndburmgs,theworkofthemonh At the

eutendofthechmru a window said to be, th
inEnglmd,cqn taining two thousand sevenhiindy
X t square feet of stained glass, |
‘mutilated, Thewhupevmg Ty

mbweﬁy&vemdlmm
~mication. between the opposite mdw
-remarkable property of conveying wi
«mwnndfromoneendtmthe'oﬂ'a
~hyLo=dVauhmmone,nf :
- supposed to have been the accidentaleff
MOfthegallery,not ‘.".

Before the altn isa B

By the recent .
lated remains of the origi W
T
with curious p!
to view. There are many tombs

among which may be mentioned the tomb ma-aty
Abbot Parker, in memory of Osric, King of Northum-
berland, one of the founders of the monastery, who died
about 729, with his effigy in freestone; in the north aisle,
near the entrance to the Lady chapel ; an altar-tomb in
a chapel in the same aisle, supposed to cover the remains
of Robert, Duke of Normandy, son of William the
Conqueror, with his statue carved in oak recumbent on
it, under a wire lattice ; not far from the high altar the
monument of Edward IL, who was murdered at
Berkeley castle, with a recumbent figure in alabaster,
supposed, from the elegance of the sculpture, to be-of
Italian workmanship, with a more modern but béaun-
tiful canopy of tabernacle-work; the monument of
Alderman Blackleach and his wife, with their statues in
white marble ; that of Mrs. Morley, with a group:of
statuary by Flaxman ; those of Judge Powell ; Sir George
Onesiphorus Paul, Bart.; Dr. Edward Jenner, who first
brought the practice of vaccination into general use;
Charles Brandon Trye, an eminent surgeon ; and Robert
Raikes, Esq., who, from his unwearied exertions in pro-
moting the increase of Sunday schools throughout the
kingdom, obtained the reputation of having been the
founder of these institutions, which, however, owe their
origin to the Rev. Thomas Stock rector of the parish of
St. John the Baptist, in this city. The chapter-house of
the monastery, situated on the north side of the cathe-
dral, with an entrance from the cloisters, is' now ap-
propriated to the reception of the college librarys

The city comprises the parishes of St. Aldate,
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